ADVANCED FINANCIAL
REPORTING

STUDY TEXT



STUDY TEXT

ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

Copyright

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any
means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise without the prior written permission of
the copyright owner. This publication may not be lent, resold, hired or otherwise disposed of in anyway of trade

without the prior written consent of the copyright owner.

ISBN NO: 9966-760-27-X
© 2009 SUP

First Published 2009

SupP
P.0. Box 59857, 00200,
Nairobi, Kenya.

Tel: +254 (0) 20606155  Fax: +254 (0) 20 607498



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Acknowledgment

We gratefully acknowledge permission to quote from past examination papers of the Kenya
Accounts and Secretaries National Examination Board (KASNEB).

[
x
L
—
>
(@]
o
[
n




ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

STUDY TEXT



Table of Contents

[ Ao Lo L= e T4 =T 4 P iii
[ o =30 00T 1 (= 41 £ \
g 8 2 Vii
L Od o 1N I =20 | T 1
ACCOUNTING FOR GROUPS ......iituiiieiirisirensiressrressressrsssssrsssssesssssnsssressssessssrnsssressssenssssnnns 3
B CHAPTER TWO ... .o oiiiiiiiiiiiieieieeeeeeeeeeseseessessssesseassseseeessseseesssesaesseesaeeeseeesseeesaeseeeeseeeeaesseessasseenees 75
ACCOUNTING FOR ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (PART A)...ccooviiiiceeeeeeeressssssssneesessessssssnnns 77
I CHAPTER THREE ......ccciteiitiitieitteeteeetteeseesseesssessessseeseeessssssessssssssesesseseeesressteereeeeeeerren 141
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (PART B) ..ccoiiiiiiiiiiinemerersissssssssssssss s sssssssssssss s s ssssssssssssssssssssses 143
[ Y - N = P 199
B CHAPTER FOUR. ... iiiiiiieieiieeeeesssesssssssssssaasssssassnnansssssssssesnnnnnsssssssssanssnnnnnsssssssssssnnnnnnsnnnsses 201
PRESENTATION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (PART A)........cceeeeevennn. 203
[ O3 o 1N I =5 L/ = 291
EFFECTS OF INFLATION ...ceuuiiieiiieeieemsremnssssnssrenssssnnssrenssssnnsssensssenssssnnssssnssssnnssssnsssennsssnnsnes 293
B CHAPTER SIX ooeeeeciiiiiieiesessssssessseresesssssssssassseesssssssssssssssesessssssssssssssseeessssnsssssssseesesnnnnnnnsssses 329
PRESENTATION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (PART B).....ccccccevvinnneee 331
[ Y - N O 371
Bl CHAPTER SEVEN ....coouiiiiiieiiiiiiecisessnssasessnnssssssnnsssssssnsssssesnsssssssnnssssssnnsssssennssssssnnnssssssnnnsssens 373
PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTING......iituiiieeirrnsiresssrenssresssisssssrensssessssssssssenssssssssrensssensssssnssrs 375
[ JOd o 1N o I =5 = [ O 443
CURRENT ISSUES ... .oeeiiieiieeirreeirsssrenssrsassrenssressssanssrenssssnssssensssenssssnnsssenssssnssssnnsssensssennns 445
B CHAPTER NINE.... ..o ceeeeieeeiieieesssssseeeessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssnesssssssssssnns 483

SUMMARIES OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(IFRSs), INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IASs)
AND IFRIC/SIC INTERPRETATIONS AS OF 315t DECEMBER 2005...........cccccccmiiuinninnnne 485

[
>
L
—
>
(@]
o
[
n




STUDY TEXT

ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

Il ANSWERS TO EXAM QUESTIONS.........cccoiiiinininss s s ssssns e 523
ll REFERENGES. ...ttt a e e e anes 559
[T IO LY 563
B INDEX..... et es et s e st se s e s e e s et e ae st sae e ne s e e e se e e ae b eae st eee e ees e s ane s nan s enentrsnanes 575






1X31L AAdN.LlsS




CHAPTER ONE

M

ACCOUNTING FOR GROUPS




ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

STUDY TEXT



CHAPTER ONE

ACCOUNTING FOR GROUPS

» OBJECTIVES

After this chapter the student will be able to:

. Understand the basic principles of acquisition and merger accounting.

. Explain the principles of measurement relating to the fair value of the consideration and
the net assets acquired.

. Discuss the nature of step-by-step acquisitions.

. Prepare consolidated financial statements where including Associate companies, jointly
controlled entities and foreign of subsidiaries.

. Prepare consolidated financial statements on disposal of subsidiaries.

» INTRODUCTION

This chapter begins with the on basic principles of group accounts professional requirements as
set out in IAS 27 Accounting for subsidiary undertakings. It then looks at the requirements of
IFRS 3 business combinations.

Thereafter, we look at the preparation of consolidated accounts where there has been a step-by-
step acquisition. As the name suggests, step-by-step acquisitions involve acquiring control of a
company in stages. A discussion on mergers, associates and joint ventures is provided.

» DEFINITION OF KEY TERMS

Subsidiary: An entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership that is controlled
by another entity (known as the parent).

Parent: An entity that has one or more subsidiaries.
Group structure: The relationship between the holding company and the subsidiaries.

Associate: An enterprise in which an investor has significant influence but not control or joint
control.
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Joint venture: A contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic
activity that is subject to joint control.

Foreign operation: A subsidiary, associate, joint venture, or branch whose activities are based
in a country other than that of the reporting enterprise.

» EXAM CONTEXT

In past examinations, the examiner has tested the students’ knowledge on the following
topics:

. Group structures

. Foreign subsidiaries

d Merger Vs Acquisition

. Disposal of subsidiaries

Students should, therefore, understand these topics.

» INDUSTRY CONTEXT

This chapter enables firms to know what kind of investment they have made in another firm. That
is, whether it is a subsidiary, joint venture, merger, foreign subsidiary and so on.

STUDY TEXT

Consolidation assists firms to know how to prepare consolidated financial statements if they have
acquired subsidiaries, joint ventures, mergers and so on.

The topic on foreign subsidiaries assists firms that have acquired foreign subsidiaries to know
how to translate the foreign subsidiary’s financial statements into the reporting currency of the
holding company.

It also assists the holding company to know how to prepare consolidated financial statements
with the foreign subsidiary.
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[
- 1.1 BASIC CONSOLIDATION (IAS 27)

FAST FORWARD: A parent is required to present consolidated financial statements in which it
consolidates its investments in subsidiaries.

IAS 27 has the objectives of setting standards to be applied in the preparation and presentation
of consolidated financial statements for a group of entities under the control of a parent; and in
accounting for investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associates when an
entity elects, or is required by local regulations, to present separate (non-consolidated) financial
statements.

[ ] The following are important definitions in IAS 27:

Consolidated financial statements: The financial statements of a group presented as those of
a single economic entity.

Subsidiary: An entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership that is controlled
by another entity (known as the parent).

STUDY TEXT

Parent: An entity that has one or more subsidiaries.

Control: The power to govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Control is presumed when the parent acquires more than half of the voting rights of the enterprise.
Even when more than one half of the voting rights are not acquired, control may be evidenced
by power:

(i) Over more than one half of the voting rights by virtue of an agreement with other
investors; or

(i) To govern the financial and operating policies of the other enterprise under a statute or
an agreement; or

(iii) To appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors; or

(iv) To cast the majority of votes at a meeting of the board of directors.
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The parent company need not present consolidated financial statements in the following
circumstances:

. The parent is itself a wholly-owned subsidiary, or is a partially owned subsidiary of
another entity and its other owners, including those not otherwise entitled to vote, have
been informed about, and do not object to, the parent not presenting consolidated
financial statements;

. The parent's debt or equity instruments are not traded in a public market;

. The parent did not file, nor is it in the process of filing, its financial statements with a
securities commission or other regulatory organisation for the purpose of issuing any
class of instruments in a public market; and

. The ultimate or any intermediate parent of the parent produces consolidated financial
statements available for public use that comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

The consolidated accounts should include all of the parent’s subsidiaries, both domestic and
foreign.] There is no exception for a subsidiary whose business is of a different nature from the
parent’s (This is a requirement by the companies Act but it is now not allowed on the grounds that
the firm can present segmental report). Also, as a result of an amendment of IAS 27 by IFRS 5 in
March 2004, there is no exception for a subsidiary for which control is intended to be temporary
because the subsidiary is acquired and held exclusively with a view to its subsequent disposal
in the near future.

Special purpose entities (SPEs) should be consolidated where the substance of the relationship
indicates that the SPE is controlled by the reporting enterprise. This may arise even where the
activities of the SPE are predetermined or where the majority of voting or equity are not held by
the reporting enterprise. Once an investment ceases to fall within the definition of a subsidiary, it
should be accounted for as an associate under IAS 28, as a joint venture under IAS 31 or as an
investment under IAS 39, as appropriate.

1.1.1 The consolidation process |

Intra-group balances, transactions, income, and expenses should be eliminated in full. Intra-
group losses may indicate that an impairment loss on the related asset should be recognized.
Some of the adjustments requires during consolidation include:

STUDY TEXT

(i)  Elimination of unrealized profit on inventory and Property, plant and equipment that has
been sold within the group.

(i) Elimination of inter-company indebtness as a result of inter-company transactions for
example receivables and payments and proposed dividends in subsidiary companies.

The financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries used in preparing the consolidated
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financial statements should all be prepared as of the same reporting date, unless it is impracticable
to do so. If it is impracticable a particular subsidiary to prepare its financial statements as of the
same date as its parent, adjustments must be made for the effects of significant transactions or
events that occur between the dates of the subsidiary’s and the parent’s financial statements.
And in no case may the difference be more than three months.

Consolidated financial statements must be prepared using uniform accounting policies for
transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

Minority interests should be presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity, but
separate from the parent’s shareholders’ equity. Minority interests in the profit or loss of the group
should also be separately presented.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority interest in the equity of the relevant
subsidiary, the excess, and any further losses attributable to the minority, are charged to the
group unless the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make good the losses.
Where excess losses have been taken up by the group, if the subsidiary in question subsequently
reports profits, all such profits are attributed to the group until the minority’s share of losses
previously absorbed by the group has been recovered.

1.1.2 Requirements of IFRS 3 ‘Business combination I

Cost of a Business Combination
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[ ] Fair value of consideration given plus costs

The holding company measures the cost of a business combination at the sum of the fair values,
at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the acquirer, in exchange for control of the subsidiary; plus any costs directly attributable
to the combination. If equity instruments are issued as consideration for the acquisition, the
market price of those equity instruments at the date of exchange is considered to provide the
best evidence of fair value. If a market price does not exist, or is not considered reliable, other
valuation techniques are used to measure fair value.

[ ] Measurement of acquired assets and liabilities

The acquired identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities are measured initially by
the acquirer at their fair value at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. In other words, the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities
incurred or assumed, must be initially measured at full fair value, including any minority interest’s
share of the acquired item.
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[] Step acquisitions

If a business combination involves more than one exchange transaction, each exchange
transaction shall be treated separately by the acquirer, using the cost of the transaction and
fair value information at the date of each exchange transaction, to determine the amount of any
goodwill associated with that transaction.

[] Goodwill

Recognition and measurement of goodwill

Goodwill is recognised by the acquirer parent as an asset from the acquisition date and is initially
measured as the excess of the cost of the business combination over the acquirer’s share of the
net fair value of the subsidiary identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

No amortisation of goodwill

IFRS 3 prohibits the amortisation of goodwill; instead goodwill must be tested for impairment at
least annually in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. If the acquirer’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquired identifiable net assets exceeds the cost of the business combination,
that excess (sometimes referred to as negative goodwill) must be recognised immediately in the
income statement as a gain. Before concluding that “negative goodwill” has arisen, however,
IFRS 3 requires that the acquirer reassess the identification and measurement of the subsidiaries’
identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities and the measurement of the cost of the
combination.

>>> Example 1

Mtito Limited purchased 80% of the ordinary shares of Andei Limited on 1 May 2005. On 30
September 2005, the trial balances of the two companies were as follows:
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Mtito Ltd. Andei Ltd.
Sh.‘000’ Sh.‘000’
Cash at bank - 11,500
Receivables 62,300 51,600
Dividend: Interim paid 4,500 3,000
Expenses (including depreciation of fixed assets) 184,700 123,600
Freehold land and buildings (net book value) 25,500 18,900
Investment in Andei Limited 94,260
Motor vehicles (net book value) 6,700 4,900
Purchases 375,400 335,200
Plant and machinery (net book value) 28,900 21,600
Inventory 22,100 17,600
Taxation: installment tax paid 9,100 6,380
813,460 594,280
Bank overdraft (secured on land and buildings) 6,700
Payables 38,200 17,100
Sales 586,600 480,000 .
frf]'nez:\rr;esc(e)afp|St;1I'.1 0Authorlsed, issued and fully paid Ordinary 60,000 20,000 E
Retained Profits 121,960 77,180 =
813.460 594,280 a
Additional information: 2
»

(i) Closing inventory was Sh.24, 200,000 in Mtito and Sh.19,200,000 in Andei.

(i) The turnover and expenses in Andei accrued evenly over the year; the rate of gross
profit was constant throughout the year.

(iii) Mtito paid its interim dividend on 15" May 2005; Andei paid its interim dividend on 31
March 2005. Mtito has not yet accounted for any dividend receivable from Andei.

(iv) Between 1 May 2005 and 30 September 2005, Mtito sold goods to Andei. These goods
had cost Mtito Sh.30 million. Mtito earned a gross profit of 37.5% on the selling price
of these goods. On 30 September 2005, one sixth of these goods were included in the
stock of Andei. Included in the debtors figure for Mtito was Sh. 7,200,000 from Andei:
Mtito’s account in Andei’s books agreed with this figure.

(v) The self assessment tax returns of Mtito and Andei show the corporation tax charge for
the year at Sh.10,020,000 and Sh.7,980,000 respectively; both companies have paid
installment tax on the preceding year basis.

(vi) The directors have proposed that Mtito should pay a final dividend of Sh.6 million and
Andei Sh.3 million.

(vii) Goodwill arising on the acquisition of Andei is considered to be impaired at
sh.1million.

Required:

Aconsolidated income statement for the year ended 30 September 2005 (including reconciliations
of the retained profit for the year and carried forward) and a consolidated balance sheet as at 30
September 2005.
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Solution:

Please note that the examiner has not given us the respective final accounts of the holding
company and the subsidiary. It will be important therefore to prepare the three sets of accounts
on and present them in columnar form for the purpose of presentation. However if possible, only
present the group final accounts and the individual accounts can be presented as a working.

Mtito Ltd and Andei Ltd

Income statement for year to 30 September 2005

Mtito Andei Group
Sh. ‘000’ Sh. ‘000’ | Sh. ‘000’
Sales 586,600 480,000 738,600
Cost of sales:

Opening inventory 22,100 17,600

Purchases 375,400 335,200

397,500 352,800

Less closing inventory (24.200) (19.200)

373,300 333,600
- Gross profit 213,300 146,400 467,300
E Expenses (184,700) (123,600) | (236,200)
- Goodwill impairment - (_1000)
> Operating profit 28,600 22,800 34,100
o Dividend income 2,000 - -
,Z_) Profit before tax 30,600 22,800 34,100
n Income tax expense (10,020) (7,980) (13.345)
Profit after tax 20,580 14,820 20,755
Less Mi - - (1.235)
Profit attributable to Shareholders of Mtito 20,580 14,820 19,520
Dividends: Paid (4,500) (3,000) (4,500)
Dividends: Proposed (6.000) (3.000) (6.000)
132,040 86,000 130,980
Retained profits: Yr c/f
Holding Co Mtito) 6,080 128,040
Subsidiary Andei) 2.940 2.940
9,020 130,980

Workings for intergroup sales

Sales = (30m X 0.6) +30000 = 48m

Group sales = (586,600 + (5/12 X 480,000)) — 48,000 = 738600

Group cost of sales = 373300 + (5/12 X 333600) — 48,000 + VP = 467300;
where VP = (1/6 X (48,000 — 30,000) = 3,000
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Group expenses = 184700 + (5/12 X 123,600) = 236,200
Dividend income

7 months 5 months

Total dividend payable by Andei = 6,000
Total dividend accountable for by Mtito = 80% X 6,000 = 4,800

Pre acq post acq
7/12 X 4,800 =5/12 X 4,800
= 2,800 = 2,000

Dividend receivable = 2,400

Post acq P&L) = (2.000)
Pre acq COC) = 400

Minority interest:

Profit after tax in Andei 14,820
Less pre acq (8.645)
Amount in Group P & L 6,175
MI 20%) 1,235

Statement of retained profits:

Retained profits: b/f Yr clf
Sh. ‘000’ | Sh. ‘000’ Sh. ‘000’

Holding co: Mtito) 121,960 10,080 132,040
UPCS - (3,000) (3,000)
Goodwill impaired - (1.000) (1.000)
121,960 6,080 128,040

Subsidiary: Andei) 77,180 (5.145) (82,325)
Less pre-acq profits (77.180) (5.145) (82.325)
3.675 3675

Group share 80%) - 2,940 2,940
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Mtito Ltd and Andei Ltd
Balance Sheet as at 30 September 1996

Mtito Andei Group
Sh.’000’ Sh.’000’ Sh.’000’
Non-Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment
Land and Buildings 25,500 18,900 44,400
Plant and Machinery 28,900 21,600 50,500
Motor vehicles 6.700 4,900 11.600
61,100 45,400 106,500
Goodwill - - 11,000
Investments: In subsidiary 93,860 - -
154,960 45,400 117,500
Current assets
Inventory 24,200 19,200 40,400
Receivables 62,300 51,600 106,700
Dividends rec’able 2,400 - -
Cash at bank - 11.500 11.500
88.900 82.300 158.600
Total Assets 243,860 127,700 276,100
Capital and Reserves
Ordinary shares @ Sh.10 60,000 20,000 60,000
Profit and Loss 132.040 86.000 130,980
192,040 106,000 190,980
MI - - 21.200
192,040 106,000 212,180
Current liabilities
Payables 38,200 17,100 48,100
Tax payable 920 1,600 2,520
Proposed dividends 6,000 3,000 6,000
Div to M1 - - 600
Bank o/d 6.700 - 6.700
51.820 21.700 63.920
Total Equity and Liabilities 243,860 127,700 276,100
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[
- 1.2 GROUP STRUCTURES

The relationship between the holding company and the subsidiaries is referred to as the group
structure. Apart from a situation where the holding company has only one subsidiary, the following
are examples of different types of structures and their accounting approach:

(i) Holding company with more than one subsidiary: This type of situation is straight forward
as the procedure involves consolidating the results of the holding with its subsidiaries
the normal way. However separate computation of goodwill for each subsidiary is
required.

(i) Holding company with a subsidiary company and a sub-subsidiary: In these type
of structure, the holding company owns a subsidiary company which owns another
subsidiary company called a sub-subsidiary company: The consolidation process is
also the same as before only that for the purpose of consolidating the sub-subsidiary,
we need to determine the effective shareholding and minority interest for the group.

The following example will help illustrate the accounting approach.

Hl >>> Example 2 — Sub-subsidiary

Ademo Limited is a company quoted on the Nairobi Stock Exchange. It distributes a wide variety
of household machinery including sewing machines. On 1 October 1997 it purchased shares in
Afro clothing Limited. The group purchased shares in Piki Limited, a nation wide chain of retail
shops dealing in casual wear on 1 April 1998. All the companies make up their accounts to 31
March each year.
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The draft final accounts for the three companies for the year ended 31 March 2000 are as follows
overleaf:
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Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution costs
Administration expenses
Finance cost

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit after tax

Proposed dividends

Retained profits for the year
Retained profits brought forward
Retained profit carried forward

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2000
Non current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment in Afro
Investment in Piki

Current assets
Inventory

Trade receivables
Cash at bank
Total assets

Ordinary share capital
Retained profits
Shareholders’ funds

Noncurrent liabilities
10% loan stock

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Current tax

Proposed Dividends
Total equity and liabilities

Income statements for the year ended 31 March 2000.

Ademo Ltd
Sh.m

1,368
(810)

558

(196)

(112)

50

BEE

—
\IGE—\
N N
‘§|OJSOO

Ademo Ltd

Sh.m
853

702

500

Afro Ltd
Sh.m
774

407

Afro Ltd

Sh.m
415

405
820

200

N
w N
o O;

—
-
S
o

Piki Ltd
Sh.m
685

355
330
(78)
(72)

BN
0]
o o

-
(@2}

w

OE

I =)
N W
‘@ |O OI;

Piki Ltd

Sh.m
495

495

N
O
o

o

346

—
-
_\|o
o



ACCOUNTING FOR GROUPS

The following additional information is available:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

On 1 October 1997 Ademo Ltd acquired 16 million sh.10 ordinary shares in Afro Clothing
Ltd. For Kshs 602 million when the retained profits of Afro Ltd was Kshs 490 million.
Ademo also acquired half of the loan stock in Afro on 1 April 1999.

On 1 April 1998 Afro Ltd acquired 7.5 million Sh.10 ordinary shares in Piki Ltd for
Sh.405 million when the retained profits of Piki Ltd amounted to sh. 300 million. On this
date the a leasehold property had a fair value of Sh.40 million in excess of the book
value and 10 years remaining on the lease. Depreciation charge on the book value of
the lease is included as part of administration expenses.

In the year ended 31 March 2000 Piki Ltd sold goods at a price of Sh.80 million. Piki
Ltd had marked up these goods by 100% on cost. Afro Ltd held 50% of these goods in
stock on 31 March 2000.

In the year ended 31 March 2000 Afro Ltd sold Ademo Ltd goods at a price of sh.90
million. Afro Ltd had marked up these goods by 80% on cost. Ademo Ltd held 25% of
these goods in stock on 31 March 2000.

On 1 April 1999 Ademo Ltd sold sewing machines to Afro Ltd for sh.150 million. Afro Ltd
included these machines in its PPE and charges depreciation of 20% on cost. Ademo
Ltd had marked up these items at 50% on cost. Afro Ltd includes the depreciation of
these machines in its cost of sales.

On 31 March 200 all the inter company balances are in agreement with Afro Ltd owing
Piki Ltd Sh. million and Ademo Ltd owing Afro Ltd sh.18 million. Meanwhile the group
had not yet paid the interest due on the respective loan stocks, the balances included
in the trade and other payables.

In the current year the management feels that half of the goodwill has been impaired.
This impairment loss is to be charged as a separate item in the income statement.

Required

The consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March 2000 and a consolidated
balance sheet as at the same date. (25 marks)
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Solution:
Ademo and Its subsidiaries

Consolidated Income statement for the year ended 31 March 2000

Sh. Sh.
Revenue 2,507.00
Cost of Sales (1,322.00)
Gross Profit 1,185.00
Expenses
Distribution Costs 338.00
Administration Expenses 261.00
Goodwill impaired 55.00
Finance costs 60.00 (714.00)
Profit before tax 471.00
Income tax expense (170.00)
Profit for the period 301.00
—
P
:"_J Profit attributable to: Holding Company 228.60
> Minority interest 72.40
a 301.00
D
-
n

Consolidated statement of changes
in equity (Extract)
Retained Profits

Sh. Sh

Balance as at 1 April 1999 878.60

Profit for the period 228 60
1,107.2

Less proposed dividends (150.00)

Balance as at 31 March 2000 - 957.20
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Ademo and Its subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2000

Non Current Assets Sh. Sh.
Property, plant and equipment 1,755.00
Goodwill 55.00
1,810.00
Current assets
Inventory 728.00
Trade Receivables 808.00
Cash at bank 326.00 1.862.00
TOTAL ASSETS 3,672.00
Ordinary Share Capital 900.00
Retained Profits 957.20
1,857.20
Minority Interest 330.80
Shareholders’ funds 2,188.00
Non-Current Liabilities
10% Loanstock 600.00
Current Liabilities
Trade & Other payables 609.00
Current tax 80.00
Proposed dividends 195.00 884.00
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 3,672.00
-
Statement of retained profits b/f Yr Ci/f <
Ademo 713.00 (25.00) 688.00 t
Share in Afro 96.00 100.00 196.00 =
Share in Piki 69.60 3.60 73.20
Workings -
Ademo —
As per the accounts 713.00 (10.00) 703.00 n
Add Divs receivable 80.00 80.00
. 10.00 10.00
Interest receivable
Less UPPPE (50.00) (50.00)
Less Goodwill Impaired (55.00) (55.00)
713.00 (25.00) .
Share in Afro
As per the accounts 610.00 50.00 660.00
Less preacquisition (490.00) - (490.00)
120.00 50.00 170.00
Less UPCS - (10.00) (10.00)
Add excess depreciation 10.00 10.00
Add Divs Receivable - 75.00 75.00
120.00 125. 245.00
Share of Ademo (80%) 96.00 100.00 196.00
Share in Piki
As per the accounts 420.00 30.00 450.00
Less Preacquisition (300.00) - 300.00)
120.00 30.00 150.00
Less UPCS (20.00) (20.00)
Less depn on FV adjustment (4.00) (4.00) (8.00)
116.00 6.00 122.00

Share of Ademo at 60% 6§L6Q 3.60 Z&ZQ
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Workings
P &L Items
Revenue CcOos DIST ADM FIN TAX
Ademo 1,368.00 810.00 196.00 112.00 50.00 60.00
Afrol 774.00 407.00 64.00 73.00 20.00 60.00
Piki 685.00 355.00 78.00 72.00 - 50.00
2,827.00 1,572.00 338.00 257.00 70.00 170.00
Less:
Sales by Pi to Af (80.00) (80.00)
Sales by Af to Ad (90.00) (90.00)
Sales by Ad to Af (150.00) (100.00)
Excess depn (20% x (10.00)
0
Fnt()arco. Interest (10.00)
Add:
UPCS: Pi to Af 20.00
UPCS: Afto Ad 10.00
; Depreciation due to FV 4.00
L 2,507.00 1,322.00 338.00 261.00 60.00 170.00
|_
Z 2. Goodwill impaired (separate goodwill figures for Afro and Piki)
o) Afro Piki
— Cost of investment 602.00 324.00
(7} Less:
0osC 160.00 60.00
P&L 392.00 180.00
FV adjustment - (5652.00) 24.00 (264.00)
50.00 60.00
Impairment 25.00 30.00

3. Profit attributable to Minority Interest in the P & L

Afro Piki
PAT 150.00 130.00
Less:
UPCS: Pi to Af - (20.00)
UPCS: Af to Ad (10.00) -
Depreciation due to FV - (10.00) (4.00) (24.00)
140.00 106.00
Less:
Excess depreciation 10.00 0
Adjusted PAT 150.00 106.00
MTI’s share at 20% and 40% 150.00 106.00

MI’'s share at 20% and 40% 30.00 42.40
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4. Retained Profit b/f

Sh.
Ademo Afro Piki
Sh. Sh.
Balance b/f 610.00 420.00
Less pre acquisition (490.00) (300.00)
120.00 120.00
Less depreciation on FV adjustment b/f - (4.00)
120.00 116.00
Share of Ad @ 80% & 60% 96.00 69.60 165.60
878.60
Afro Piki
Shm Sh.
Shareholders’ funds 860.00 550.00
ADD: FV adjustment - 40.00 -
Excess depreciation 10.00 - E
870.00 590.00 [
Dividends in Piki (0.75 x 100) 75.00 >
LESS: UPCS (10.00) (20.00) Q
Depreciation on FV Adju. (2 yrs) (8.00) ,:_’
Adjusted shareholders funds 935.00 562.00 2
MI’s share at 20% and 40% 187.00 224.80 411.80
Less share of Investment in Piki (0.2 x (81.00)
405) 330.80

5. Minority interest in the balance sheet

(i)  The holding company and subsidiary company both have a direct shareholding in sub-
subsidiary company: he accounting treatment is similar to that discussed in (ii) above
and care should be taken when computing the effective shareholding of the group in the
sub-subsidiary company. The following example illustrates this position:
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B >>> Example 3

Rain Ltd., Storm Ltd. and Thunder Ltd. are in the business of manufacturing tents. Their balance
sheets as at 30 September 2003 were as below:

Rain Storm Thunder
Ltd Ltd Ltd
Sh. Sh. Sh. Sh. Sh. Sh.
“000” “000” “000” “000” “000” “000”
Non-current assets:
gggr:;gﬁgafssets (et of 14,000 6,300 1,700
Shares in subsidiaries _5,000 1.900 -
19,000 8,200 1,700
Current assets:
Inventory 2,000 1,200 1,600
Trade payables 4,800 2,000 800
Cash 2.700 1.400 1,100
9,500 4,600 3,500
; Current liabilities:
L Trade payables 4,800 2,000 800
= Cash 2.700 1.400 1.100
a 9,500 4,600 3,500
) Current liabilities:
” Trade payables (5.000) (2.600) (1.800)
Net current assets 4.500 2.000 1,700
23,500 10,200 3.400
Financed by:
Authorised and issued
Share capital:
Ordinary shares of Sh.100
Each fully paid 15,000 5,000 2,000
Y
-
Retained Profits 2,500 (800) 400
23,500 10,200 3,400

Additional information:

1. Rain Ltd. purchased 30,000 ordinary shares in Storm Ltd. on 1 October 2001 for Sh.
3,400,000 and 5,000 preference shares on 1 October 2002 for Sh. 600,000. On 1 October
2002, Rain Ltd. purchased 5,000 ordinary shares in Thunder Ltd. for Sh. 1,000,000.
Storm Ltd. purchased 11,000 ordinary shares in Thunder Ltd. for Sh. 1,900,000 on the
same date.
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2. Balances are as given below:

Profit and loss account

Storm Ltd. 1 October 2001  Sh. 500,000 (debit).
1 October 2002  Sh. 600,000 (debit).

Thunder Ltd. 1 October 2002  Sh. 300,000 (debit).

General reserve

Storm Ltd. 1 October 2001 Sh. 1,000,000
1 October 2002 Sh. 2,000,000
Thunder Ltd. 1 October 2002 -

3. The following inter-company balance are included in the balances of trade debtors and
trade creditors:

Receivables Rain Ltd. Sh. 600,000 due from Thunder Ltd.
Thunder Ltd. Sh. 300,000 due from Rain Ltd.
Sh. 200,000 due from Thunder Ltd.

4. On 30 September 2003, thunder Ltd. remitted Sh.200,000 to Rain Ltd. which was not
received until 3 October. There were no other inter-company balances.

5. Rain Ltd. sold goods to Storm Ltd. for Sh.800,000. The goods had originally cost Rain
Ltd. Sh.600,000. Storm Ltd. still had Sh.200,000 worth of these goods (at invoiced
price) in stock as at 30 September, 2003.

Required:

Prepare the consolidated balance sheet of Rain Ltd. and its subsidiaries as at 30 September
2003.
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Solution:

Rain Ltd and its subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance sheet as at 30 September 2003

Sh.’000’ Sh.’000’
Non Current Assets
PPE
. 22,000
Goodwill (W2) 1006
Current Assets 23,006
Inventory (2 + 1.2 + 1.6 — 0.05) Receivables (W6)
Cash (2.7+1.4+1.14+0.2)
4.750 16650
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,500 —
Share caplt_al . 5,400 15.000
Sh.100 ordinary shares fully paid
7,780
General reserve (W5) 2398
- Retained Profits (W4) (300 + 2,028) 25108
s o 6.048
||.|_J Minority interest (W3) 31.156
> Current liabilities:
a —
= Payables 8500
— TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 39,656
n
Workings
1. Determination of group ownership structure
Storm Ltd Thunder Ltd
Ordinary Preference Ordinary
Rain Ltd: 25%
Direct 33%
Indirect 60% 1/6 (60% x 55%) 58%
Minority Interest 40% 5/6 42%
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Cost of Control

Sh.’000’ Sh.’000’
Investment in Storm: Share of Storm equity
. ' Ordinary share capital (60% x 5000) 3,000
Ordinary 3,400
General reserves (60% x 1000) 600
Preference 600
Share of retained losses Preference share capital (1/6 x 3,000)
(60% x 500) 300 .
430C Goodwill | 500
Investment in Thunder . —
Share of Thunder equity 4,300
(60% x 1,900) by 1,140 . : o
Storm 1000 Ordllnary share capital (58% x 2,000)
Rain spent in Thunder ’ Profit b/f (58% x 300) 1,160
— | Goodwill 11 174
806
6,440 6,440
Total goodwill on consolidation = 806 + 200 = 1,006
Minority Interest
Sh.’000’ Sh.’000’
Cost of shares in Thunder 760 | Storm Ltd: Equity 2,000
(40% x 1900) Ordinary share capital (40% x 5000) 2,500
Preference share capital (5/6 x 3000) 1,200
Storm Ltd Profit & Loss 320 | General reserve (40% x 3000)
40% x 800) Thunder Ltd: Equity 840
Consolidated balance Ordinary share capital (42% x 2000) -
sheet Preference share capital 420
6,048 | General reserve (42% x 1000)
Thunder Ltd Profit & Loss 168
(42% x 400)
7,128 7,128
Group retained Earnings Alc
Sh.’000’ Sh.’000’
Rain Ltd Bal b/d: Rain 2,500
UPCs (200/800 x 200) 50 | Cost of control a/c
Bal b/f 800 (60% x 500) 300
Thunder Itd: Minority Interest A/c
Cost of control a/c (40% x 800) 320
25% x 300 75 Bal b/d: Thunder 400
33% x 300 929 174
Minority interest
(42% x 400) 168
Consolidated balance 2,328 -
sheet 5 )
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5.
Consolidated General reserve
Sh.’000’ Sh.’000’
Storm Ltd: COC (60% x 1000) 600 | Bal b/f 6,000
MI (40% x 3000) 1,200 Rain 3,000
Thunder: Ml (42% x 1,000) 420 Storm 1.000
Consolidated balance sheet Thunder
10689 10,000
6. Group Receivables Alc
Sh.’000’ Sh.’000’
Rain Ltd 4,800 | Cash in transit (Thunder) 200
Storm Ltd 2,000 | Group creditors: T—R 400
Thunder Ltd 800 R-8 300
T-S 200
To consolidated balance 6,500
sheet
[ 7,600 7,600
>
L
|_
>
)
= 7. Group Payables Alc
— Sh.’000’ Sh.’000’
7))
Group debtors 900 | Rain Ltd 5,000
To consolidated balance sheet 8,500 | Storm Ltd 2,600
Thunder Ltd 1
gron &408

(i)
Multiple group structure: In this type of Structure the holding company has several subsidiaries that
also have sub-subsidiaries. It is not examinable within this scope and applies only in practice.
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[
- 1.3 ASSOCIATES COMPANIES (IAS 28)

FAST FORWARD: A holding of 20% or more of the voting power (directly or through subsidiaries)
will indicate significant influence unless it can be clearly demonstrated otherwise.

IAS 28 applies to all investments in which an investor has significant influence but not control or
joint control except for investments held by a venture capital organization, mutual fund, unit trust,
and similar entity that (by election or requirement) are accounted for as held for trading under
IAS 39. Under IAS 39, those investments are measured at fair value with fair value changes
recognised in profit or loss.

H The following are important definitions in IAS 28:

Associate: An enterprise in which an investor has significant influence but not control or joint
control.

Significant influence: Power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions but
not control them.

STUDY TEXT

Equity method: A method of accounting by which an equity investment is initially recorded
at cost and subsequently adjusted to reflect the investor’s share of the net profit or loss of the
associate (investee).

[] Identification of Associates

If the holding is less than 20%, the investor will be presumed not to have significant influence
unless such influence can be clearly demonstrated. The existence of significant influence by an
investor is usually evidenced in one or more of the following ways:

(i) Representation on the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the investee;
participation in the policy-making process;

(i) Material transactions between the investor and the investee; interchange of managerial
personnel; or

(iii) Provision of essential technical information.

(iv) Potential voting rights are a factor to be considered in deciding whether significant
influence exists.
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1.3.1 ACCOUNTING FOR ASSOCIATES (IAS 28) I

In its consolidated financial statements, an investor should use the equity method of accounting
for investments in associates, other than in the following three exceptional circumstances:

(i) Aninvestment in an associate that is acquired and held exclusively with a view to its
disposal within 12 months from acquisition should be accounted for as held for trading
under IAS 39. Under IAS 39, those investments are measured at fair value with fair
value changes recognised in profit or loss.

(i) A parent that is exempted from preparing consolidated financial statements by
paragraph 10 of IAS 27 may prepare separate financial statements as its primary
financial statements. In those separate statements, the investment in the associate
may be accounted for by the cost method or under IAS 39.

(i) An investor need not use the equity method if all of the following four conditions are
met:

a. the investor is itself a wholly-owned subsidiary, or is a partially-owned subsidiary of
another entity and its other owners, including those not otherwise entitled to vote,
have been informed about, and do not object to, the investor not applying the equity
method;

the investor’s debt or equity instruments are not traded in a public market;
C. the investor did not file, nor is it in the process of filing, its financial statements with a

securities commission or other regulatory organization for the purpose of issuing any
class of instruments in a public market; and

STUDY TEXT
o

d. the ultimate or any intermediate parent of the investor produces consolidated financial
statements available for public use that comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

[[] Applying the Equity Method of Accounting

Basic principle: Under the equity method of accounting, an equity investment is initially recorded
at cost and is subsequently adjusted to reflect the investor’s share of the net profit or loss of the
associate.

H Distributions and other adjustments to carrying amount:

Distributions received from the investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Adjustments
to the carrying amount may also be required arising from changes in the investee’s equity that
have not been included in the income statement (for example, revaluations).
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H Potential voting rights:

Although potential voting rights are considered in deciding whether significant influence exists,
the investor’s share of profit or loss of the investee and of changes in the investee’s equity is
determined on the basis of present ownership interests. It should not reflect the possible exercise
or conversion of potential voting rights.

B Implicit goodwill and fair value adjustments:

On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any difference (whether positive or negative)
between the cost of acquisition and the investor’s share of the fair values of the net identifiable
assets of the associate is accounted for like goodwill in accordance with IFRS 3, Business
Combinations. Appropriate adjustments to the investor’s share of the profits or losses after
acquisition are made to account for additional depreciation or amortisation of the associate’s
depreciable or amortisable assets based on the excess of their fair values over their carrying
amounts at the time the investment was acquired. Any goodwill shown as part of the carrying
amount of the investment in the associate is no longer amortised but instead tested annually for
impairment in accordance with IFRS 3.

B Discontinuing the equity method:

Use of the equity method should cease from the date that significant influence ceases. The
carrying amount of the investment at that date should be regarded as a new cost basis.
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B Transactions with associates:

If an associate is accounted for using the equity method, unrealised profits and losses resulting
from upstream (associate to investor) and downstream (investor to associate) transactions should
be eliminated to the extent of the investor’s interest in the associate. However, unrealised losses
should not be eliminated to the extent that the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred.

H Date of associate’s financial statements:

In applying the equity method, the investor should use the financial statements of the associate
as of the same date as the financial statements of the investor unless it is impracticable to do so.
If it is impracticable, the most recent available financial statements of the associate should be
used, with adjustments made for the effects of any significant transactions or events occurring
between the accounting period ends. However, the difference between the reporting date of the
associate and that of the investor cannot be longer than three months.
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B Associate’s accounting policies:

If the associate uses accounting policies that differ from those of the investor, the associate’s
financial statements should be adjusted to reflect the investor’'s accounting policies for the
purpose of applying the equity method.

B Losses in excess of investment:

If an investor’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its “interest in the associate”,
the investor discontinues recognising its share of further losses. The “interest in an associate” is
the carrying amount of the investment in the associate under the equity method together with any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the investor’s net investment in the associate.
After the investor’s interest is reduced to zero, additional losses are recognised by a provision
(liability) only to the extent that the investor has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the investor
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share
of losses not recognised.

B Impairment:

The impairment indicators in IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, apply
to investments in associates. If impairment is indicated, the amount is calculated by reference
to IAS 36. Impairment of Assets. The recoverable amount of an investment in an associate
is assessed for each individual associate, unless the associate does not generate cash flows
independently.

STUDY TEXT

Hl >>> Example 4 Associate Companies

Amua Limited purchased 80% of the ordinary share capital of Sawana Limited on 31 January
1999 for Sh.496 million and 20% of the ordinary share capital of Ukwala Limited on 31 July 1998
for Sh.56 million. Profits in all companies are deemed to accrue evenly over the year.

The draft accounts for the three companies are shown below:

Additional information:

Amua Limited has not yet accounted for dividends receivable from either its subsidiary or its
associated company.

Goodwill arising in the acquisition of the holding company and associate company is considered
to have been impaired at the rate of 20% per annum on cost.

Required:

The consolidated income statement (which should be in accordance with the International
Accounting Standard No. 1, showing expenses by function) for the year ended 30 April 1999,
and the Consolidated balance sheet as at that date.
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Balance Sheet
as at 30 April 1999

Profit and loss accounts
for the year ended 30 April 1999

Amua Ltd Sawana Ukwala Amua Ltd Sawana Ukwala Ltd
Sh. million Ltd Ltd Sh .million Ltd Sh. Million
Sh .million Sh. Sh .million
million
PPE (NBV) 414 280 220 | Sales 2,346 2,400 1,400
Investments 552 - - | Costof
966 280 220 | sales (1.564) (1.620) (840)
Current Gross profit 782 780 560
assets Distribution
Inventory 180 210 70 | costs (310) (400) (200)
Receivables 240 140 56 | Admin
Bank 28 12 21| expenses (240) 200 (180)
448 362 147 | Profit from
Current operations 232 180 180
Liabilities Interest on - -
Payables 189 109 45 | debentures
Tax 7 3 2 | Profit
Proposed before tax (42)
Divs 63 40 40 | Taxation
259 152 87 | Profit after
189 210 60 | tax
Net current 1,1 490 280 | Dividends 190 180 180
assets proposed
Retained
OSC of profits (72) (40) (20)
Sh.10 each 700 200 200 | For the year 118 140 160
Retained 175 290 80 | Brought
earnings 490 280 | forward 63 40 40
S/holders 875 Carried
Funds forward
15%
Debentures 280 55 100 120
1,155
120 190 (40)
175 290 80
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Solution:
Amua Ltd and its subsidiary co.

Consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 April 1999.

Sh.M Sh.M
Sales 2,946
Cost of sales (1.969)
Gross profit 977
Share of profit after tax in associate co
24
Distribution costs 410 1,001
Administration costs 297.4
Finance cost 42
Profit before tax (749.4)
Income tax expense 251.6
Profit for the period (82)
Profit attributable to : ordinary shareholders _169.6
: Minority Interest 162.6
7
169.6
; Statement of changes in equity extract
:"_J Retained Profits
a Sh.’000’
)
2 Bal as at 120
; 30.4..98
Transfer to 162.6
reserve
Profit for year
63
Dividends:
Final (63)
Bal as at 219.6

30.4..99
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Amua Ltd and its subsidiary co.
Balance sheet as at 30 April 1999

Sh.M Sh.M
Non-current assts
Plant, property and Equipment 694
Goodwill 95
Investment In associate 69.6
858.6
Current assets
Inventory 390
Receivables 380
Dividend receivable from Ukwala 8
Bank _ 40
818
1676.6
Capital and Reserves _
Ordinary share @ sh.10 700
Capital Reserve 2
Retained profit 217.6
319.6
Minority interest =
Noncurrent liabilities 98 E
15% debentures -
280
>
)
Current liabilities 298 1,297.6. )
Payables 10 =
Tax payable 63 &
Proposed dividends Group _8
Dividend to Ml 379
1676.6
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Minority Interest
Sh.M Sh.M
Bal C/d 98 | OSC 40
P& L _58

o
:

Retained Profits

Sh. M Sh.M

Capital Reserve 2 | Pre-acquisition dividend 175
Goodwill written off: S 5| OSC 20
U 24| P&L 18

Balance c/d 217.6 | Goodwill: Written off 8
_ Ccid _6

227 227
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ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

Goodwill (Premium) in Associate

Investment (56m less
pre acquisition dividend
of Sh. 2m)

OSsC

P& L

Group share (20%)
Full goodwill

Goodwill impaired (for
only 9 months)

Investment in associate

Investment

Group share of past acquisition
profit

Goodwill impaired

Sh.M. Sh.M
54
200
(10)
190
38
16
24
Sh.m. Sh.M
54
18
(2.4) 15.6
69.6

Cost of Control

Sh.M

Investment in S 496

Pre-acquisition dividend

OSC

P& L

Goodwill:Written off 5
C/d 95



ACCOUNTING FOR GROUPS

1.4 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (IAS 31)

IAS 31 applies to accounting for all interests in joint ventures and the reporting of joint venture
assets, liabilities, income, and expenses in the financial statements of ventures and investors,
regardless of the structures or forms under which the joint venture activities take place, except
for investments held by a venture capital organisation, mutual fund, unit trust, and similar entity
that (by election or requirement) are accounted for as held for trading under IAS 39.

Important definitions in IAS 31 ]

[] Joint venture:

A contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic activity that is
subject to joint control.

Venturer:

A party to a joint venture and has joint control over that joint venture.

Investor in a joint venture:

STUDY TEXT

A party to a joint venture and does not have joint control over that joint venture.

Control:

Refers to the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an activity so as to obtain
benefits from it.

[] Joint control:

The contractually agreed sharing of control over an economic activity such that no individual
contracting party has control.

H IAS 31 deals with three types of joint Ventures

(i)  Jointly Controlled operations,
(i) Jointly Controlled assets,

(iii) Jointly Controlled Assets



STUDY TEXT

ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

(i) Jointly Controlled Operations

Jointly controlled operations involve the use of assets and other resources of the venturers rather
than the establishment of a separate entity. Each venturer uses its own assets, incurs its own
expenses and liabilities, and raises its own finance. IAS 31 requires that the venturer should
recognise in its financial statements the assets that it controls, the liabilities that it incurs, the
expenses that it incurs, and its share of the income from the sale of goods or services by the joint
venture. [IAS 31.15]

(ii) Jointly Controlled Assets

Jointly controlled assets involve the joint control, and often the joint ownership, of assets dedicated
to the joint venture. Each venturer may take a share of the output from the assets and each
bears a share of the expenses incurred. IAS 31 requires that the venturer should recognise in its
financial statements its share of the joint assets, any liabilities that it has incurred directly and its
share of any liabilities incurred jointly with the other venturers, income from the sale or use of its
share of the output of the joint venture, its share of expenses incurred by the joint venture and
expenses incurred directly in respect of its interest in the joint venture.

(iii) Jointly Controlled Entities

A jointly controlled entity is a corporation, partnership, or other entity in which two or more
venturers have an interest, under a contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over
the entity. Each venturer usually contributes cash or other resources to the jointly controlled
entity. Those contributions are included in the accounting records of the venturer and recognised
in the venturer’s financial statements as an investment in the jointly controlled entity.

IAS 31 allows two treatments of accounting for an investment in jointly controlled entities
— except as noted below:

(i) Proportionate consolidation.
(i) Equity method of accounting.

Proportionate consolidation or equity method is not required in the following exceptional
circumstances:

(i) An investment in a jointly controlled entity that is acquired and held exclusively with a
view to its disposal within 12 months from acquisition should be accounted for as held
for trading under IAS 39. Under IAS 39, those investments are measured at fair value
with fair value changes recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Aparentthatis exempted from preparing consolidated financial statements by paragraph
10 of IAS 27 may prepare separate financial statements as its primary financial
statements. In those separate statements, the investment in the jointly controlled entity
may be accounted for by the cost method or under IAS 39.
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An investor in a jointly controlled entity need not use proportionate consolidation or the equity
method if all of the following four conditions are met:

1. the investor is itself a wholly-owned subsidiary, or is a partially-owned subsidiary of
another entity and its other owners, including those not otherwise entitled to vote, have
been informed about, and do not object to, the investor not applying proportionate
consolidation or the equity method;

2. the investor’s debt or equity instruments are not traded in a public market;

3. the investor did not file, nor is it in the process of filing, its financial statements with a
securities commission or other regulatory organization for the purpose of issuing any
class of instruments in a public market; and

4. the ultimate or any intermediate parent of the investor produces consolidated financial

statements available for public use that comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

i) Proportionate Consolidation

Under proportionate consolidation, the balance sheet of the venturer includes its share of the
assets that it controls jointly and its share of the liabilities for which it is jointly responsible. The
income statement of the venturer includes its share of the income and expenses of the jointly
controlled entity.

IAS 31 allows for the use of two different reporting formats for presenting proportionate
consolidation:]

The venturer may combine its share of each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the
jointly controlled entity with the similar items, line by line, in its financial statements; or

The venturer may include separate line items for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and
expenses of the jointly controlled entity in its financial statements.

(ii) Equity Method

Procedures for applying the equity method are the same as those described in |AS 28 Investments

in Associates.
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|
- 1.5 MERGER VS ACQUISITION (IFRS 3)

[ ] Definition of business combination/Merger

A business combination is the bringing together of separate entities or businesses into one
reporting entity.

B Scope exclusions

IFRS 3 applies to all business combinations except combinations of entities under common
control, combinations of mutual entities, combinations by contract without exchange of ownership
interest, and formations of joint ventures.

[ ] Method of Accounting for Business Combinations

B Purchase method

All business combinations within the scope of IFRS 3 must be accounted for using the purchase
method. The pooling of interests method is prohibited.

STUDY TEXT

B Acquirer must be identified

The old IAS 22 had required the pooling method if an acquirer could not be identified. Under the
pooling of interest method/merger accounting no goodwill arose on consolidation, there was no
distinction between the post acquisition and pre acquisition profits and consolidation was carried
out as if the companies have been one entity despite acquisition partway during the year. The
main form of acquisition was by way of share for share exchange in addition to cash payment.
However, the investment in the ‘acquiring’ company was valued at the par value of shares
issued. The difference between Par value of shares issued plus cash paid and the par value of
shares received was referred to as difference on consolidation or merger reserve. Difference on
consolidation is a debit balance that was written off against the group reserves while a merger
reserve is a credit balance that is shown in the consolidated balance sheet together with the
other group reserves.

The following two examples are comprehensive and include all the companies that have been
covered so far (Subsidiaries, Associates and jointly controlled entities.) he merger method of
accounting has been used for illustrative purpose only and is not to be used. IFRS 3 requires
all mergers to be accounted for using the acquisition or purchase method. Under IFRS 3, an
acquirer must be identified for all business combinations.
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[>3> Example 6

Embamba Ltd., a company quoted on the Nairobi Stock Exchange, with 200 million shares in
issue on 1 April 1996, has owned 75% of the ordinary share capital and 60% of the preference
share capital of Fanya Limited since 1 April 1990 when the balance on the profit and loss account
of Fanya Ltd. was Sh. 120 million.

On 1 July 1996, Fanya Ltd. purchased 40% of the ordinary share capital of Guvu Ltd. as a long-
term investment and appointed two directors to its board.

On 1 October 1996, Embamba Ltd. purchased 50% of the ordinary share capital of Hadithi Ltd.;
the other 50% was purchased by ABC Inc. a multi-national. Embamba and ABC both have joint
control of Hadithi.

On 2 January 1997, Embamba Ltd., issued 138 million of its ordinary shares of Sh.10 to the
owners of 92 million shares (in exchange for these shares) in Imani Ltd., which has 100 million
ordinary shares u. Sh.10 in issue and which are quoted on the Nairobi Stock Exchange. The
Registrar of Companies has approved the use of the merger method of accounting for this union.
The market values of the shares in Embamba and Imani were Sh.40 and Sh.60 respectively as
at the time. Neither Embamba nor Imani have any reserves other than their balances on the profit
and loss accounts.

E Ltd F Ltd G Ltd H Ltd | Lttd

Sh.m Sh.m Sh. M Sh. M Sh.m
Revenue 6 000 1.440 960 820 7.200
Profit for the year 1,320 280 290 220 1,600
Dividends received 74 20

1394 300
Taxation 460 100 (90) (60) 600
Profit after tax 934 200 200 160 1,000
Preference divs paid - (40) - - -
Ordinary dividends:
Interim paid (200) (40) (50) (40) (300)
Final proposed (1.014) (60) (70) (60) (300)

(1.214) (100) (120) (100) (600)

Retained profit for year (280) 60 80 60 4

Statement of retained earnings

At 1 April 1996 2,480 580 360 210 1,200
Retained profit for year 280 60 80 60 400
At 31 March 1997 2,200 640 440 270 1,600
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STUDY TEXT

ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

All companies paid their interim dividends in the month of December 1996. Embamba Ltd.
Considers that all goodwill is impaired at the rate of 20% per annum from the date of acqusition.
The goodwill that had arisen on the purchase of Fanya Ltd. was Sh.80 million. The goodwill
paid by Embamba Ltd. on the purchase of its shares in Hadithi Ltd. was Sh.50 million. The
premium paid by Fanya on the purchase of its shares in Guvu Ltd. was Nil. Embamba Ltd. wishes
to account for the results of Hadithi Ltd. in the same way as ABC Inc. does i.e. proportionate
consolidation combining items on a line-by-line basis.

Required:

A consolidated income statement for the group in accordance with the relevant International
Financial Reporting Standards; include a Statement of Retained Earnings, disclosing how
much of the retained profit for the year and carried forward is included in the holding company,
the subsidiary companies, the joint venture and the associated company. (20 marks)

Solutions:

NB: This is a June 1997 Question four. The format given was that used before ICPAK adopted
International Accounting Standards. The solution is therefore K limited to the format but a few
modifications have been made. Pay attention to the workings.

Embamba Ltd & its subsidiaries

Consolidated profit & loss alc
For the year ended 31 March 1997

Sh. Sh.
Turnover 14845
Profit for the year: Group Loss 3250
Share of associate co. 62.25
3,315.25

Taxation: Group Co. 1175
20.25 (1195.25)
Braie G Egciate co- 2120
Minority interest (131)
Profit attributable to Embamba 1989

Dividends: Interim paid 476
Final proposed 1290 1766
Retained profits: For year 223
B/f 3389
C/f 3612

Retained Profit

B/f Yr C/f
Sh. Sh. Sh.
Embamba 1940 1705
Imani (Merger) 1104 (2é365§ 1472
3044 133 3175
Fanya (subsidiary) 345 57 402
Goro (Associate) - 18 18
Hadithi (J.V.) - _15 _15

Group Co. 3389 223 3612



ACCOUNTING FOR GROUPS

Workings
i)
Turnover: Sh. Profit for year
Embamba 6000 1320
F Ltd 1440 280
H Ltd (50 x%) 205 55
G Ltd 7200 1600
14845 3255
Less: Goodwill amortised H Ltd 50% x 20% X 50 (5)
3250
ii) Share of Associate Co. Profit for year and Tax
Profit for Year Tax
As per alc 290 90
Prorated for nine months 217.5 67.5
Share (75% x 40%) 65.25 20.25
iii) Minority Interest
Sh. Sh.
Mlin I Ltd 8% x 1000 80
Ml in F Ltd: e
PAT 200 ¢
Less inter company (20) 0
180 e
Preference (40)  40%x40 16
PAOS 140 x 25% 35 >
131 o)
. . . D
iv) Retained Profits —
/f /f /f /f n
g $h. &h. g % g
Lt 24 2 Lt
Biv aeceivable F - 80 %80) 42{500 Biv &eceivable —580 gg %0
40% X 70
- 30 30 (40% X 70)
IJ\’_|e-acquisition div Re-acquisition div
H Ltd - (25) (25) 40% x 120 x 3 - (12) (12)
(50% x 100 x 6 ) 12
12
Re-acquisition profits ~ (120) - (120)
Goodwill (80) - (80) 460 76 536
rti F
amortisee (5) (5) Share of E 75% 345 57 402
Difference on (460) - (460) H Ltd
C lidati
onsolidation 60 X 50% X 6.
1940 (235) 1705 12 - 15 15
| Ltd 1200 400 1600

G Ltd
80x 9 x40% x 75%
Share of E 92% 1104 368 1472 12 - 18 18



ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

Difference on Consolidation

Sh.
Par value of shares issued (138 x 10) 1380
Less Par value of share received (92 x 10) 920
460

H
u 1.6 FOREIGN SUBSIDIARIES (IAS 21)

FAST FORWARD: The principal issues are which exchange rate(s) to use and how to report the

effects of changes in exchange rates in the financial statements.

The objective of IAS 21 is to prescribe how to include foreign currency transactions and foreign
operations in the financial statements of an entity and how to translate financial statements into
a presentation currency.

[] Important definitions in IAS 21

STUDY TEXT

Functional currency: The currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates. The term ‘functional currency’ is used in the 2003 revision of IAS 21 in place of
‘measurement currency’ but with essentially the same meaning. Presentation currency: The
currency in which financial statements are presented.

Exchange difference: The difference resulting from translating a given number of units of one
currency into another currency at different exchange rates.

Foreign operation: A subsidiary, associate, joint venture, or branch whose activities are based
in a country other than that of the reporting enterprise.

1.6.1 Foreign Currency Transactions

A foreign currency transaction should be recorded initially at the rate of exchange at the date of
the transaction (use of averages is permitted if they are a reasonable approximation of actual).
At each subsequent balance sheet dates:



ACCOUNTING FOR GROUPS

Foreign currency monetary (Receivable and Payables) amounts should be reported using the
closing rate.

Non-monetary (like property, plant and equipment) items carried at historical cost should be
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value should be reported at the rate that existed when the fair
values were determined.

Exchange differences arising when monetary items are settled or when monetary items are
translated at rates different from those at which they were translated when initially recognized or
in previous financial statements are reported in profit or loss in the period, with one exception.
The exception is that exchange differences arising on monetary items that form part of the
reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign operation are recognised, in the consolidated
financial statements that include the foreign operation, in a separate component of equity; they
will be recognised in profit or loss on disposal of the net investment. If a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised directly in equity (for example, a property revaluation under IAS 16),
any foreign exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in equity. Prior
to the 2003 revision of IAS 21, an exchange loss on foreign currency debt used to finance the
acquisition of an asset could be added to the carrying amount of the asset if the loss resulted
from a severe devaluation of a currency against which there was no practical means of hedging.
That option was eliminated in the 2003 revision.

H >>> Examples

A number of examples are worked below to illustrate the accounting requirements for foreign
currency transactions.
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(a) Purchase of property, plant and equipment:

Joki Ltd agreed to purchase a piece of plant and machinery from a Dutch company for Guilders
2450 on 31 March 2001 to be paid for on 31 August 2001 at a contract rate of KSh 30.5. The
Exchange rates on 31 March 2001 was G1 = KSh 30.

The plant and machinery will be recorded in the accounts at historic cost. This cost can be
ascertained by reference to the effective fixed shilling price of KShs 74,725. Thus, the transaction
would have been recorded as:

KShs KShs
DR Plant and Machinery (30.5 x 2,450) 74,725
CR Notes payable Alc 74,725

This is the true liability for such a purchase and should therefore be used to value the creditor
for the period that the debt is outstanding. No adjustment to this cost should be made in future
period. Similar arguments would apply Joki Ltd had entered into a forward contract to purchase
G2450 at KSh. 30.5 for every G1 on 31 August 2001.

If no contract rate had been agreed the asset would have to be recorded as costing KSh 73,500
(G2450 @ KSh 30) and as before no subsequent translations would be necessary. Itis likely that
an exchange difference would have risen on settlement.
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(b) Payables

A Kenyan company purchases goods from a UK company in July 2001 for Ksh.550. The company
paid off Kshs.200 in August 2001 and the balance was outstanding at the end of the year: i.e. 30
Sept. 2002.

Exchange rates were:

July 2001 Kshs.1 = KSh 70
August 2001 Kshs.1 = KSh 80.1
30 Sept. 2001 Kshs.1 = KSh 82.7

The creditors account would appear as follows:

Payables Account

KSh KSh
Aug. 2001 Cash Alc S July 2001 Purchase Alc S
(200 x 80.1) 16,020 (550 x 70) 38,500
Sept. 2001 Bal. c/d P & L (Bal figure)
(350 x 82.7) 28,945 6.465
- 44,965 44,965
P
w
|_ -
(c) Receivables
>
)
2 A Kenyan company sells goods to a German company for DM 3000. Payment is received in
. August 2001. Exchange rates were:
May 2001 1 DM = KShs 27.3
August 2001 1 DM = KShs 26.7

The Kenyan company would make the following entries in the ledger account:

Debtors Account

May 2001 Sales Alc Kshs Aug. 2001 Cash Alc 55730
(27.3x3,000) 81,900 (3,000 x 26.7)
P & L (Year End)
Exchange loss 1.800
81,900 81,900
Note

The above example assumes that the Kenyan company invoices the German company in DM. If
: the invoicing were in Kenya Shillings, accounting problems would be far simpler. i
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(d) Longterm Loans

Amabera Ltd, a Kenyan company acquired a loan from a Canadian bank on 1 January 2001 of
Kshs.10, 000. The proceeds were converted into shillings and remitted to Kenya. The year-end
for the Amabera Ltd is on 31 December 2001.

The Exchange rates were as follows:

1 Jan 2001 1 Kshs. = KSh 35.3
31 December 2001 1 Kshs. = KSh 33.4
31 December 2001 1 Kshs. = KSh 34.9

The loan account in the books of Amabera Ltd would appear as follows:

Loan Account

Kshs Kshs
31 Dec. 2001 1 Jan 2001
Bal c/d (33.4 x 10,000) 334,000 Cash A/c (35.3 x 353,000
P&LA/c 19,000 | 10,000) ;
(Exchange gain)
w
31.12.02 Bal c/d 1.1.02 Bal b/d %%8%8
(34.9 x 10,000) 349,000 P&LAC 15,000 o
(Exchange loss) g
349,000 349,000 =
)

Notes:

i. The amounts outstanding at each year end (Kshs.10, 000) should be translated into
Kenyan shillings at the exchange rate each year end.

i. Exchange differences (2001 gain of 19,000/-, 2002 loss of 15,000/-) should according
to the requirements of IAS 21 be reported in the profit and loss account as part of the
profit from ordinary operations, but must be disclosed in the notes as an unrealised
holding gain/loss.

1.6.2 The consolidated Financial Statements ]

This section deals with the second problem which a company may have in foreign currency
translation namely the translation of complete financial statements of foreign entities (subsidiary,
branches, associate companies).

The major problem is to determine which Currency to be used (determining the functional
currency)

A holding company with a foreign operation must translate the financial statements of those
operations into its own reporting currency before they can be consolidated into group accounts.



STUDY TEXT

ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

There are two methods normally used and each method depends on whether the foreign operation
has the same functional currency as the parent. IAS 21 requires the firm to consider the following
factors in determining its functional currency:

(i)  The currency that influences the sales price for goods,

(i) The currency of the country, whose competitive forces and regulations mainly determine
the sales price of its goods and services,

(i) The currency that influences labor, material and other costs.

[[] Translation Methods

According to IAS 21, the method to be used is determined by the relationship between the
holding company and the foreign entity concerned.

Two methods commonly used are:

(a) The Presentation Currency Method (Formerly called Net investment or Closing rate method)

This approach is normally used if the operations of the operations of the subsidiary company are
different from those of the parent company and therefore the subsidiary is considered to be semi
autonomous from the holding company.

The results and financial position of an entity whose functional currency is not the currency of
a hyperinflationary economy shall be translated into a different presentation currency using the
following procedures:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented (i.e. including comparatives)
shall be translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) Income and expenses for each income statement (i.e. including comparatives) shall be
translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions, and

(iii)  All resulting exchange differences shall be recognized as a separate component of
equity.

For practical reasons, a rate that approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions,
for example an average rate for the period, is often used to translate income and expense items.
However, if exchange rates fluctuate significantly, the use of the average rate for a period is
inappropriate.

Under such circumstances, it is assumed that changes in the exchange rate has little or no direct
effect on the activities or present and future cash flows from operations of either the parents or
the foreign entity and because the foreign operation is not an integral part of the operations of
the parent.
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[ ] Translation Procedure

H Balance sheet of a foreign entity

All balance sheet items should be translated into the reporting currency of the investing company
using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.

Profit and loss account of the foreign entity

Items should be translated at either an average rate for the period, or at the closing rate.

Exchange differences:

These may arise for three reasons:

. The rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date is different from that ruling at the
previous balance sheet date. For example, land and buildings translated last year at
one rate will be included in the consolidated balance sheet this year at a different rate.

. The average rate used to translate the profit and loss account differs from the closing
rate.

The exchange differences may also arise out of measurements of cash flow differences (occurring
immediately or in the future).
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(b)The functional method (formerly referred to as temporal method)

IAS 21 states that where the operations of the foreign entity is an integral part of the operations
of the parent company i.e. the affairs of a foreign subsidiary company are so closely interlinked
with those of the holding company that the business of the foreign entity is regarded as a
direct extension of the business of the investing company rather than as a separate and quasi
independent business - the functional currency method should be used instead of the closing
rate method.

IAS 21 gives the following as examples of situations where the temporal method should
be used, where:

i.  The foreign entity acts as a selling agency receiving stocks of goods from the investing
company and remitting the proceeds back to the company.

ii. The foreign entity produces a raw material or manufactures parts or sub-assemblies
which are then shipped to the investing company for inclusion in its own products.

iii. The foreign entity is located overseas for tax, exchange control or similar reasons to act
as a means of raising finance for other companies in the group.
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Each subsidiary company must be considered separately. The relationship between each
: subsidiary and the holding company must be established so that the appropriate translation
method can be determined. The method should then be used consistently from period to period
unless the financial and other operational relationships which exist between the investing
: company and the subsidiary changes.

[ ] Translation Procedure

(a) Exchange differences out of translation should be reported either as part of the profit
and loss for the year from ordinary operations or as an extraordinary item as the case
may be.

(b) Profit and loss items

Item Rate

Sales, cost of sales Average

Depreciation charge Historical

Expenses Average

Tax charge Average

Dividend paid Actual (at date of payment)
Dividend proposed Year end (closing)

(c) Balance sheet items

Fixed assets

STUDY TEXT

(1) if acquired before subsidiary became part of the group, use exchange rate of date of
acquisition of subsidiary

(2) If acquired post acquisition, use Historical cost.
Stock Rate on date of acquisition of stock (Year end is usually reasonable, practical
approximation)

NOTE: The most commonly used method of translation is the Presentation method, and
: this should be used unless the examiner states otherwise.

Goodwill arising on consolidation is considered to be an asset of the subsidiary company
and should therefore be translated using the closing rate method. Fair value adjustments
: are also translated at the closing rate.
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ACCOUNTING FOR GROUPS

Kenya Curios (KC) Limited purchased 80% of the ordinary share capital of Tanzan Artefacts
(TA) Limited, a company incorporated in Tanzania; on 1 October 1995 when there was a credit
balance on the profit and Loss Account of Tanzania (T) shillings 630 million. Both companies sell
a range of products to tourists and to the tourist industry.

Draft income statements for the
year ended 30 September 1998

KC
Ksh.
Million
Revenue 930
Opening inventory 52
purchases 780
832
Closing inventory (57)
Cost of sales 775
Gross profit 155
Operating expenses (29)
Depreciation (18)
(47)
Operating profit 108
Dividend from subsidiary _ 8
Profit before tax 116
Taxation (33)
Profit after tax 83
Dividends: Interim paid (20)
Final (40)
proposed (60)
23

Retained profit:
For the year 23
Brought forward 161
Carried forward 184

Additional information:

TA
Tsh.
Million
2.211
537
1.353
1,890

702

848

Draft Balance Sheets

as at 30 September 1998 KC TA
Ksh. Tsh.
PPE (Net book value) Million Million
Land and buildings 90 1,764
Equipment 60 84
Motor vehicles _12 _60
162 1,908
Investment in subsidiary 312
Current Assets:
Inventory 57 702
Receivables 160 660
Bank 31 264
248 1.626
Current liabilities:
Payables 91 396
Taxation 7 132
Proposed dividend 40 420
138 948
110 678
584 2,586
Financed by:
Ordinary shares Sh. 10 400 1,400
Retained Profits 184 1.186
584 2,586

1. Inthe year ended 30 September 1998, KC Limited sold goods worth Ksh. 98 million to
TA Limited. These goods had cost KC Limited Ksh. 82 million. In the group accounts, the
unrealised profit at the commencement of the year was Ksh. 6 million and Ksh. 8 million
at the end of the year. Group policy is to recover the whole of the unrealised profit from
group stock and from the company which made the profit, the minority interest bearing
its share if appropriate. Dividends payable to minority interests are shown as current

liabilities.
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ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

2. Both companies were established on 1 October 1993. The land, buildings and equipment
of both companies were purchased on this date. All the motor vehicles in both companies
were replaced on 29 September 1997 — No depreciation had been charged on these
motor vehicles in the year ended 30 September 1997.

Both companies charge depreciation on the straight line basis at the following rates:

Land and buildings  : 2% per annum on cost (the land is leasehold and had 50 years
remaining at 1 October 1993

Equipment : 10% per annum

Motor vehicles : 25% per annum

3. The fair values of TA’'s assets and liabilities on 1 October 1995 were the same as book
values.

4. Sales, purchases and expenses occur evenly over the year. In TA, debtors represent
4 months’ sales; creditors represent 3 months’ purchases; stock represents 6 months’
purchases. At 30 September 1998, TA owed KC Tsh.288 million, whilst KC’s books
showed that TA owed Ksh.24 million.

-
< 5. KC has not yet accounted for the dividend receivable from TA. The interim dividend was
L paid when the exchange rate was Ksh. 1 = Tsh. 11.2.
|_
> 6. Relevant rates of exchange are:
)
- 1 October 1993 Ksh.1 = Tsh.6 30 September 1997 Ksh.2 = Tsh.10
; 1 October 1995 Ksh.1 = Tsh.7 31 March 1998 Ksh.1 = Tsh.11
31 March 1997 Ksh.1 = Tsh.9.3 30 June 1998 Ksh.1 = Tsh.11.7
30 June 1997 Ksh.1 = Tsh.9.6 30 September 1998 Ksh.1 = Tsh.12

Average for the year to 30 September 1998 Ksh.1 = Tsh.11.

The directors of KC Limited have directed you to prepare the consolidated income statement for
the year ended

Required:

The directors of KC Limited have directed you to prepare the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 September 1998 and the consolidated balance sheet as at 30 September
1998.

Using the following methods:
(i) Presentation method (assuming goodwill was not impaired and it is an asset of the
subsidiary)

(i) Functional currency method (goodwill is impaired at the rate of 20% per annum and it
is an asset of the holding company).



1. Presentation Method

ACCOUNTING FOR GROUPS

Consolidated income statement Ksh
Revenue 1,033.00
Cost of sales (783.00)
Gross profit 250.00
Operating expenses (63.00)
Profit before tax 187.00
Income tax expense (55.00)
Profit for the period 132.00
Attributable to Holding company 121.00
Attributable to Minority interest 11.00
132.00
Statement of changes in equity extract
Ksh
Retained profit b/f KC(less UPQI) 155.00
Share in TA (31.04)
123.96
Profit for the period 121.00
244.96
Less dividends Interim paid (20.00)
Final proposed (40.00)
Retained profit c/f 184.96
Share of retained profits b/f in TA Ksh
Opening net assets in TA (Ksh) 251.20
Net assets on acquisition (ksh) 290.00
Reduction in net assets ( Loss) (38.80)
Share of the holding Co@80% (31.04)
Consolidated balance sheet Ksh
Non Current assets
Property plant and equipment 321.00
Goodwill 137.00
458.00
Current assets
Inventory 107.50
A/C receivable 191.00
Cash at bank 53.00 351.50
Total assets 809.50
Ordinary share capital 400.00
Foreign exchange reserve 20.44
Retained profit 184.96
605.40
Minority
interest 43.10

648.50
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ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

Current
!&abilities
ccounts
payable 100.00
Current tax 18.00
Proposed dividends 47.00 165.00
813.50
Balance sheet TA Exchange TA
Tsh rate Ksh
PPE 1,908.00 112 159.00
Current assets
Inventory 702.00 112 58.50
A/C receivable 660.00 112 55.00
Bank 264.00 112 22.00
1,626.00 135.50
Current liabilities
A/C payables 396.00 112 33.00
Current tax 132.00 112 11.00
Proposed divs 420.00 112 35.00
948.00 79.00
Net current assets 678.00 56.50
Net assets __ 2,586.00 215.50
Ordinary shares 1,400.00 1/7 200.00
Retained profits Pre acquisition 630.00 1/7 90.00
Post acquisition 556.00 bal fig (74.50)
2,586.00 215.50
Income statement
Sales 2,211.00 1/11 201.00
Opening stock 537.00
Purchases 1,353.00
1,890.00
Closing stock (702.00)
Cost of sales 1,188.00 111 108.00
Gross profit 1,023.00 93.00
Expenses (99.00) 1/11 (9.00)
Depreciation (76.00) 1/11 (7.00)
(175.00) (16.00)
O ti fit 848.00 77.00
neome tax
expense (242.00) 111 (22.00)
Profit after tax 606.00 55.00
Dividends: Interim dividends (112.00) 1/11.2 (10.00)
Final proposed (420.00) 112 (35.00)
Retained profit 74.00 10.00
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CoC

Ksh Ksh
Invin S 312.00 | OSC (80%x200) 160.00
P&L(80%x90) 72.00
Goodwill 80.00
312.00 312.00
Goodwill restated (80X12/7) 137.00
Goodwill based on historical rate (80.00)
Gain on exchange to Foreign exchange reserve 57.00

Sainl orei I lati

Ksh
Net closing assets of TAin KSh 215.50
Net opening assets of TA in KSh(2586-74)/10 251.20
(35.70) o
Less increase in retained profits ( P&L in KSh) 10.00 x
Foreign exchange loss (45.70) L|'_J
>
Group P & L =)
Ksh Ksh =
Coc 72.00 | KC 184.00 ;
MI 1224 | TA 15.50
Dividends receivable 28.00
UPCI 8.00 | Forex Loss 45.70
Balance c/d 180.96
273.20 273.20
Foreign Exchange reserve
Ksh Ksh
Group P & L 45.70 | MI (20%x45.7) 9.14
Goodwill 57.00
Balance c/d 20.44
66.14 66.14
MI balance sheet
Ordinary share capital in TA 40.00
Share of profit 12.24
52.24
Less share of forex loss (9.14)

43.10
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2. Functional Method

KC Ltc & Its Subsidiary
Consolidated Income Statement for Year Ended 30.9.95

KC TA  Adjustments Group Ksh.
Ksh.
Ksh.
Sales 930 201 930 +201-98 1033
Cost of Sales (775) (117) 775+ 117-98 -6+ 8 796
Gross Profit 155 84 237
Expenses (Introducing
D iation) 29 + 18 47 19 47 + 19
Goodwiﬁp,&erﬁlgrtli%é ( ) ( 2 See Cost of Control 2983
See Step 3 on
h - - tati
Bieranis bosh 108 65 ComPuiaten )
Investment Income - Ignore Investment
— Dividend - -
Profit before tax 18 65 oM 152
Taxation (33) 22 33+22 (85)
Profit after tax 83 43 2 97
Minority Interest - - 20% x (43-3)
Profit attributable to KC 8
8 8
[ Dividends; Interim paid (20% (1‘8 Only for KC (HC) (20%
X (40) (33) (40)
Final |
= Retainad Profits for the 23 @ 29
year
>- - -
a Statement of Retained Profits
> B/fwd Year Clfwd
= KC 123 33 56
n TA 37.6 (4) 33.6
Group 160.6 29 189.6
KC and its subsidiary
Consolidated balance sheet as at 30.9.98
Non-Current Assets Ksh.M Ksh.M
PPE 432
Intangible Goodwiill 32
Current Assets 464
Inventory 113
Receivables 191
Bank 53 357
Total Assets 821
Ordinary Share Capital 400
Retained Profits 189.6
Shareholders funds 589.6
Minority interest workings 66.4

Current Liabilities

Payables 100
Taxation 18
Proposed Dividends 47 165
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Workings
Step 1 Translate income statement of subsidiary co. TA
TA Exchange Rate TA
Ksh.M Ksh.M
201
Sales 2211 Average 1
11
58
Opening Inventory 537 1 (Date stock
9.3 was acquired
31/3/98)
Purchases 1353 Average 1.
11 123
1890 181
Closing Inventory 702 1 (Date stock was (64)
11 acquired 31/3/98)
Cost of Sales 1188 nz
Gross Profit 1023 84 —
X
Expenses 99 1 Average L
11 9 =
>
Depreciation: Land & 39.2 1 Rateon 1¢ o
buildings 7 October 95 5.6 2
|_
»n
Equipment 16.8 1 Rateon 1¢
7 October 95 2.4
1 Rateon 30
Motor Vehicles 20 10 September 97 2
Total Expenses
175 19
Operating Profit 848 65
Taxation 242 1 Average 22
11
Profits after tax 606 43
Dividends; interim paid (112) _1 (Rate on date of (10)

11.2 payment)

Final proposed (420) 1 Closing rate
12 (Rate at b/s date) (35)

\LR"

Retained profit for the
year
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Step 2 Translation of subsidiary’s Balance Sheet

Non-current Assets
Land and Buildings

Equipment

Motor Vehicles

Current Assets

Inventory

Receivables

Bank

Current Liabilities

Payables

Taxation

Proposed Dividends

Net Current Assets

Net Assets

Ordinary Shares

P & L - Pre-acquisition

Post acquisition

1186 - 630

TA

Ksh.
1764

84

60

1908

702

660

132

Exchange Rate

1 Rate on 1.10.95
7

[N

Rate on 1.10.95

=

Rate on 1.10.95

1 Rate stock was acquired

1 Rate on b/sheet

1 Rate on b/sheet

1 Rate on b/sheet

1 Rate on b/sheet

1 Rate on b/sheet

1 Rate of acquisition
7 of sub

1 Rate of acquisition
7 of sub

Balancing Figure

TA

Ksh.
252

12

270

64

55

22

141

33

90

ls
N

S
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Cost of Control

Ksh. Ksh.
Investment of TA 312 | OSC 80% x 200 160
P & L atacq 80% x 90 72
Goodwill Amortized b/f 32
Amortized for year 16
Bal c/d Amortized — B/ 32
Sheet
312 312
Step 3 Computation of Exchange Difference
Ksh.
Closing Net assets of subsidiary (translator) as at 30.9.98 332
Opening net assets of subsidiary as at 30.9.97 3371
Decrease in Net Assets (5.1) —
X
L
Less loss as per translated income statement of subsidiary co. @ =
3.4 >
@)
)
Workings for opening Net assets ;
Non-Monetary TAM Exchange Kshs.
Assets Rate
Land & Buildings 1803.2 1 257.6
7
Equipment 100.8 1 14.4
7
Motor Vehicles 80 8
1
10
Stock 537 e 58
93
Net  Monetary Balancing figure 9) (0.9)
ltems
2512 3371
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Workings for retained profits

KC B/fwd Year C/fwd
As per the accounts 161 23 184
Less Goodwill amortised (32) (16) (48)
UPCS (6) 6 -
UPCS - (8) (8)

Dividends receivable

80% x 35 - 28 28
123 33 156
A — Share of post acquired profits
As per the accounts 47 (2) 45
Less exchange loss - 3) 3)
Adjusted past acq. profits 47 (5) 42
HC — HC’s share of 80% 37.6 4) 33.6
L ) )
< Workings for B/Sheet Continued KC TA
I PRE; Land and Buildings 90
= Equipment 60
> Motor Vehicle 12
o 162 270
-}
- Minority Interest a/c
n Sh.M Sh.M
OSC 20% X 200 40
Bal c/d 66.4| P & L 20%(90 26.4
+42)
66.4 66.4
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1.7 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (IFRS 5)

IFRS 5 replaced IAS 35 Discontinuing Operations. The definition of discontinued operations
is very much the same as the definition of discontinuing operations in IAS 35. However the
timing of the classification now depends on when the discontinued operation satisfies the criteria
to be classified as held for sale. The same requirement applies to non-current asset held for
sale. Further, IFRS 5 requires the results of discontinued operations to be presented as a single
amount on the face of the income statement

1.7.1 Non Current asset held for sale ]

In general, the following conditions must be met for an asset (or ‘disposal group’) to be classified
as held for sale:

(i) management is committed to a plan to sell
(i) the asset is available for immediate sale
(iii) an active programme to locate a buyer is initiated

(iv) the sale is highly probable, within 12 months of classification as held for sale (subject to
limited exceptions)
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(v) the assetis being actively marketed for sale at a sales price reasonable in relation to its
fair value

(vi) Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that plan will be
significantly changed or withdrawn.

The assets need to be disposed of through sale. Therefore, operations that are expected to be
wound down or abandoned would not meet the definition (but may be classified as discontinued
once abandoned).

The following rules apply in measuring and presenting non current assets held for sale:

(i) Atthetime of classification as held for sale. Immediately before the initial classification
of the asset as held for sale, the carrying amount of the asset will be measured in
accordance with applicable IFRSs. Resulting adjustments are also recognised in
accordance with applicable IFRSs.

(ii) After classification as held for sale. Non-current assets that are classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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(iii) Impairment. Impairment must be considered both at the time of classification as held
for sale and subsequently:

o Atthe time of classification as held for sale. Immediately prior to classifying an asset
as held for sale, measure and recognise impairment in accordance with the applicable
IFRSs (generally IAS 16, IAS 36, IAS 38, and IAS 39). Any impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss unless the asset had been measured at revalued amount under IAS 16
or IAS 38, in which case the impairment is treated as a revaluation decrease.

o After classification as held for sale. Calculate any impairment loss based on the
difference between the adjusted carrying amounts of the asset and fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment loss that arises by using the measurement principles in IFRS
5 must be recognised in profit or loss, even for assets previously carried at revalued
amounts.

(iv) Assets carried at fair value prior to initial classification. For such assets, the
requirement to deduct costs to sell from fair value will result in an immediate charge to
profit or loss.

(v) Subsequent increases in fair value. A gain for any subsequent increase in fair value
less costs to sell of an asset can be recognised in the profit or loss to the extent that it is
not in excess of the cumulative impairment loss that has been recognised in accordance
with IFRS 5 or previously in accordance with IAS 36.

(vi) Non-depreciation. Non-current assets that are classified as held for sale shall not be
depreciated.

(vii) Balance sheet presentation. Assets classified as held for sale, and the assets and

liabilities included within a disposal group classified as held for sale, must be presented
separately on the face of the balance sheet.

B Disclosures:

Non-current assets classified as held for sale must be disclosed separately from other assets in
the balance sheet.

There are also several other additional disclosures including a description of the nature of assets
held and the facts and circumstances surrounding the sale.

B Disposal of a subsidiary

Before we look at the detail requirements of IFRS 5 it is important to remember that the holding
company can dispose partly, the investment held in subsidiary company. Therefore we shall look
at partial disposals and full disposal (which requires consideration of IFRS 5)
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[] Partial disposals

H (i) From subsidiary to subsidiary:

This means that the holding company will reduce the level of control but still at the subsidiary level
for example from 80% shareholding to 60% shareholding. The subsidiary will still be consolidated
only that in the income statement, care should be taken in computing minority interest. If the
disposal takes place partly during the year then the results of the subsidiary should be split into
two for the purpose of allocating the minority interest share of the profit after tax in subsidiary
company. The respective minority interest percentage share in the subsidiary for each period
will apply. In the consolidated balance sheet only the final minority interest percentage share will
apply. The group will also report a profit or loss on the sale of the partial investment.

The profit or loss is computed as follows:

(i) Method one

Sh Sh o
Cash proceeds on disposal X <
Less: Share of net assets on disposal (X) L|I_J
Add Unimpaired goodwill to date X (X) >
Profit/ (loss) on Disposal X/ (X) g
—
(i) Method two -

Sh Sh

Profit on disposal reported by the holding company X

Less: Group share of post acquisition P&L in Sub X
Less Goodwill impaired to date (X) (X)
X

Profit/ (loss) on disposal

M (ii) From subsidiary to a jointly controlled entity:

The holding company reduces its control in the subsidiary to 50% and thus becoming a jointly
controlled entity. Care should be taken especially if the disposal takes place during the year. The
consolidate income statement requires careful approach because, the subsidiaries results will be
split into the respective periods and full consolidation will apply the normal way according to the
requirements of IAS 27 for the period before disposal. In the period after disposal we will use the
requirements of IAS 31 i.e either the partial consolidation or equity method. In the consolidated
balance sheet we shall use the requirements of IAS 31. The group will also report a profit or loss
on the sale of the partial investment.
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M (iii) From subsidiary to Associate companies

The holding company reduces its control in the subsidiary to a percentage that is less than 50%
but more than 20%. Care should also be taken especially if the disposal takes place during the
year. The consolidate income statement requires careful approach because, the subsidiaries
results will be split into the respective periods and full consolidation will apply the normal way
according to the requirements of IAS 27 for the period before disposal. In the period after disposal
we will use the requirements of IAS 28 i.e. the equity method. In the consolidated balance sheet
we shall use the requirements of IAS 28. The group will also report a profit or loss on the sale of
the partial investment.

M (iv) From subsidiary to an investment

The holding company reduces its control substantially to less than 20%. This means that the
remaining shareholding will be accounted for according to the requirements of IAS 32 and 39:
Financial instruments which we shall see later.

If the disposal takes place during the financial period then the results of the subsidiary should
be split into the two periods and full consolidation will take place in relation to the period before
disposal as far the consolidated income statement is concerned. In the remaining period and the
balance sheet the requirement of IAS 32 and 39 will apply.

W (v) Full disposal (IFRS 5)

STUDY TEXT

We shall now move on to the requirements of IFRS 5 with reference to disposal of subsidiaries
or other major components of the business.

A ‘disposal group’ is a group of assets, possibly with some associated liabilities, which an entity
intends to dispose of in a single transaction. The measurement basis required for non-current
assets classified as held for sale is applied to the group as a whole, and any resulting impairment
loss reduces the carrying amount of the non-current assets in the disposal group in the order of
allocation required by IAS 36.

The following rules also apply in measurement and presenting discontinued operations:

(i) After classification as held for sale. Disposal groups that are classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. [I[FRS
5.15]

(i) Impairment. Impairment must be considered both at the time of classification as held for
sale and subsequently:

o Atthe time of classification as held for sale. Immediately prior to classifying a disposal
group as held for sale, measure and recognise impairment in accordance with the
applicable IFRSs (generally IAS 16, IAS 36, IAS 38, and IAS 39). Any impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset had been measured at revalued amount
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under IAS 16 or IAS 38, in which case the impairment is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

o  After classification as held for sale. Calculate any impairment loss based on the
difference between the adjusted carrying amounts of the disposal group and fair value
less costs to sell. Any impairment loss that arises by using the measurement principles
in IFRS 5 must be recognised in profit or loss, even for assets previously carried at
revalued amounts. This is supported by IFRS 5 BC.47 and BC.48, which indicate the
inconsistency with IAS 36.

Non-depreciation

Disposal groups that are classified as held for sale shall not be depreciated.

Balance sheet presentation

Assets classified as held for sale, and the assets and liabilities included within a disposal group

Disclosures

The assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale must be disclosed separately from other
assets in the balance sheet.

The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale must also be disclosed separately
from other liabilities in the balance sheet.

[] Additional rules and matters regarding disposal of subsidiaries

Definition

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of or is
classified as held for sale, and:

Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a
single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate maijor line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Income statement presentation

The sum of the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and the post-tax gain or
loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less cost to sell or fair value adjustments on
the disposal of subsidiary should be presented as a single amount on the face of the income
statement. Detailed disclosure of revenue, expenses, pre-tax profit or loss, and related income
taxes is required either in the notes or on the face of the income statement in a section distinct
from continuing operations. Such detailed disclosures must cover both the current and all prior
periods presented in the financial statements.
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Cash flow statement presentation

The net cash flows attributable to the operating, investing, and financing activities of a discontinued
operation shall be separately presented on the face of the cash flow statement or disclosed in
the notes.

No retroactive classification

IFRS 5 prohibits the retroactive classification as a discontinued operation, when the discontinued
criteria are met after the balance sheet date.

Disclosures

In addition to the income statement and cash flow statement presentations noted above, the
following disclosures are required:

(i) Adjustments made in the current period to amounts disclosed as a discontinued
operation in prior periods must be separately disclosed.

(i) Ifanentity ceases to classify a component as held for sale, the results of that component
previously presented in discontinued operations must be reclassified and included in
income from continuing operations for all periods presented.

—
X
:J_J The formats of the income statements showing the disposal of a group (subsidiaries) is given as
follows:
Z Continuing Discontinued Enterprise as
) Operations Operations a whole
; Shm Shm Shm
Revenue X X X
Cost of Sales (X) (X) (X)
Gross Profit X X X
Other Incomes X X X
X X X
Distribution Costs (X) (X) (X)
Administration Costs (X) (X) (X)
Other Expense (X) (X) (X)
Finance costs (X) (X) (X)
Profit before tax X X X
Income tax Expense (X) (X) (X)
Profit for the period X X X
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Alternatively a firm can present the results as follows and the detail break down given by way of
notes to the accounts:

Shm
Revenue X
Cost of Sales (X)
Gross Profit X
Other Incomes X
X
Distribution Costs (X)
Administration Costs (X)
Other Expense (X)
Finance costs (X)
Profit before tax X
Income tax Expense X)
Profit for the period from continuing operations X
Profit for the period from discontinued X

operations

Ml >>> Example

Udi Supermarket Limited (USL) is a company quoted on the Nairobi Stock Exchange. In the early
1990’s it diversified its operations by purchasing 100% of the shares of United Autos Limited
(UAL) on 1 November 1990, 80% of the shares of Utility Chemicals Limited (UCL) on 31 October
1991 and 70% of the shares in Uday Drycleaners Limited (UDL) on 30 April 1992. Each company
operates in different business segment. In the year ended 31 October 1999, USL decided to sell
its entire 100% shareholding in UAL, and half of its shareholding in UCL. The sale of shares in
UAL took place in a single transaction on 30 June 1999 for Sh.162 million and the sale of shares
in UCL took place in a single transaction on 31 July 1999 for Sh. 169 million. In both cases
proceeds were credited into the account for the investment in the books of USL. The financial
statements of the four companies for the year ended 31 October 1999 were as follows.
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Profit and loss accounts for the year ended 31 October 1999
USL

Sh UAL UCL UDL
million Sh. million Sh. million Sh. million
Revenue 1,430 840 600 480
Cost of sales (1.350) (630) (400) (200)
Gross profit 450 _210 200 280
Distribution costs (100) (120) (60) (70)
Administration expense (150) (120) (40) (50)
(250) (240) 100 120
Profit from operations 200 (30) 100 160
Dividends received 44 - - -
Finance costs (50) _ - _ - _ -
Profit before tax 194 (30) 100 160
Income tax expense (54) _- (20) (50)
Profit/ (loss) after tax 140 (30) 80 110
Dividends:
Interim paid 31 May (50) - (20) (40)
Final proposed (50) _- (40) (40)
100 _ - 60 80
Retained profit/ (loss) 40 (30) 20 30
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Balance sheet as at 31 October 1999
USL

Sh. UAL UCL UDL
million Sh. million Sh. million Sh. million
Property, plant and equipment 640 220 180 400
Investments:
UAL 6
UCL 39
UDL 270
Current assets 300 140 150 130
Current liabilities 210 (60) (70) (80)
Net current assets 90 _ 80 80 _ 50
1,045 _300 _ 260 _450
Ordinary share capital 500 50 100 200
Profit and loss account 545 250 160 250
1,045 _300 _ 260 _ 450

Additional information:

1. USLhad purchased its shareholding in UAL, UCL and UDL when the balance on the profit
and loss accounts were Sh.38 million.,Sh.110 million and Sh.100 million respectively.
On these dates, the fair values of the identifiable net assets of the companies concerned
were equal to their fair values.

2. USL impairs goodwill that arises on the acquisition of subsidiary or an associate at the
rate of 20% per annum.

3. USL intends to retain its remaining shareholding in UCL; at 31 October 1999, two of
UCL’s five directors were directors of USL.

STUDY TEXT

4. There is no tax charge or allowance on the profit or loss on the disposal of shares.
Required:

Prepare the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 October 1999 and the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 October 1999 in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
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Solution

USL and its subsidiaries
Consolidated income statement for the year ended 315t Oct 1999

Continuing Discontinuing Enterprise as

a whole.

Sales ShiMilliens ShiMilligps ~ Sh- Milliggs
Cost of sales (1850) (420) (2270)
Gross profit 880 140 1020
Other incomes(profit on disp) 57 57
Share of PBT in Associate 10 10
Distribution costs (215) (80) (295)
Administration costs (230) (80)_ (310)
Other expenses (loss on disp) 0 (148) (91)
Finance cost (50) 0 (50)
Profit before tax 452 (168) 274
Income tax Expense (121) - (121)
Profit for the period 331 (168) 284

USL Itd and its subsidiaries

-
=
Consolidated balance sheet as at 315t October 1999 L
Property, plant and equipment 1,040 5
Investment in associates 104 >
=)
Current assets 446 |:_’
1,590 0
Financed by 500
Share capital 693
Profit and loss A/C 135

Minority interest

Share holders’ funds 1328
Current liabilities 262
1590
Workings
(i) Structures.
(a) Before disposal
USL
100% (30.4.
(1.1190)
AL UDL

UCL
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(b) After disposal

(ii)

(31.7.99)
40%

ucC

Gain / Loss on disposal

(a) Sale of shares either cum-dir or ex-dir.

Dividends received from UCL
40% x 20% =

Dividend earned
60% x 9/12 x 40%

Dividend earned but sold

(b)

Proceeds
Dividends foregone

Less Net assets sold
Share capital

Profit and loss Account B/f
Profit for the period

UAL (30 X 8/12)
UCL (20 X 9/12)

UAL 100% x 310
UCL 40% x 255
Gain (loss on disposal)

USL

70%

UAL
Sh/Millions

162

162

50
280

UcL
Sh/Millions

169
(10)

159



Goodwill arising on acquisition

Cost of investment
Net Assets acquired
Share capital

Profit and loss
Account

UAL 100%

UCL 80%

UDL 70%
Goodwill

Proceeds
Dividends sold

Cost of investment
Gain/loss as per Holding compa
Goodwill amortised
Increase in value of net assets
UAL (260 — 38)
UCL 40% (155 — 110)

Minority interest
UCL: 20% x 80 x 9/12
UDL: 30% x 110

Profit attributable to members of

group
Dividend: - Interim paid
Proposed
Retained earnings for
the yr

Retained earnings B/forward
(545 - 40)
Goodwill amortised

UAL = 250 + 30 — 38
UCL = 80% (160 — 20 — 110)
UDL = 70% (250 — 30 — 100

Retained earnings for year

ACCOUNTING FOR GROUPS

UDL

Sh. Milligns

200
100
300

210

=

UCL

ShIMiIIioga

(10)
159

(104)

Sh. Millions

505

OR
UAL UCL
ShIMiIIiggg ShIMiIIisng
50 100
38 110
88 210
(88) -
- (168)
_ 80 _ 40
UAL
Sh/MiIIioES
162
(168)
ny (6)
80
(222)
(148)
12
(45)
................................... 18
UAL (80)
ucL (40)
UDL (60)

(180)
325

242
24
_84_
675
18_
693
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Workings:
Consolidated P &L A/C
Loss on sale of shares in UAL 6| USL 545
Premium Amortised 20 | Dividend sold 10
COC 70% x 100 70 | Gain on sale of shares UCL 55
Minority Interest 30% x 250 75 | Dividend receivable:
Goodwill amortised 60 UCL: 40% x 40 16
CBs 693 UDL: 70% x 40 28
Investment in:
Associates 20
UDL éQEE
_ 924 |
Minority Interest
Share capital: 30% x 200 60
CBS W%g P& LA/C Igg
Investment in Associates A/C
Balance B/f 104 | Premium Amortised 20
Post — acquisition retained earnings:
40% (160 — 110) %EE CBS ;IQZAt
Current Assets
USL 300 | Intra group trading 28
UDL 130
Dividend from: UCL 16
UDL 2% CBS 142
Current Liabilities A/C
Intra-group trading 28 | USL 210
CBS ﬁ% UDL 38
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|
- CHAPTER SUMMARY

Consolidated financial statements: The financial statements of a group presented as those of
a single economic entity.

Subsidiary: An entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership that is controlled
by another entity (known as the parent).

Parent: An entity that has one or more subsidiaries.
Group structure: The relationship between the holding company and the subsidiaries.

Associate: An enterprise in which an investor has significant influence but not control or joint
control.

Significant influence: Power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions but
not control them.

Equity method: A method of accounting by which an equity investment is initially recorded
at cost and subsequently adjusted to reflect the investor’s share of the net profit or loss of the
associate (investee).

Joint venture: A contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic
activity that is subject to joint control.

Venturer: A party to a joint venture and has joint control over that joint venture.

Investor in a joint venture: A party to a joint venture and does not have joint control over that
joint venture.

Control: The power to govern the financial and operating policies of an activity so as to obtain
benefits from it.
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Joint control: The contractually agreed sharing of control over an economic activity such that no
individual contracting party has control.

Functional currency: The currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates.

Exchange difference: The difference resulting from translating a given number of units of one
currency into another currency at different exchange rates.

Foreign operation: A subsidiary, associate, joint venture, or branch whose activities are based
in a country other than that of the reporting enterprise.

|
- CHAPTER QUIZ

What is a subsidiary?

What is a joint venture?

What are the three types of joint ventures dealt with in IAS 317?
What is a foreign operation?

A\
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|
- ANSWERS TO THE CHAPTER QUIZ

1. Subsidiary is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership that is
controlled by another entity (known as the parent).

2. AlJoint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an
economic activity that is subject to joint control.

3. 1AS 31 deals with three types of joint Ventures
(i) Jointly Controlled operations,
(i) Jointly Controlled assets,
(iii) Jointly Controlled Assets

4. Foreign operation is a subsidiary, associate, joint venture, or branch whose activities
are based in a country other than that of the reporting enterprise.

|
- PAST PAPER ANALYSIS

Group structures was tested in the following examinations:
12/07
06/07
12/'06
06/'06
06/05
12704
05/02
12/'00
07/00

STUDY TEXT

Foreign subsidiaries were tested in the following examinations:
12/'05
06/'04
12/'02
12/'01
06/01
Disposal of subsidiaries (IFRS 5) was tested in the following examinations:
06/07
06/'03

Merger Vs Acquisition was tested in: 12/'03
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EXAM QUESTIONS

QUESTION ONE

M. Ltd. started operating several years ago. As a strategy to expand its operations, its management
has in the recent past purchased shares from other companies, whose trial balances are given
below:

Trial balance as at 31 December 2001

M. Ltd H. Ltd C.Ltd A Ltd.
Sﬁé’ ‘000’ S& ‘000’ Sgb. ‘000’ Slb. ‘000’

Property and equipment 0,000 0,000 0,000 6,000

7,500,000 ordinary shares of Sh. 10 each in H 165,000 - - -

Ltd

6,000,000 7% non-cumulative preference 60,000 - - -

shares 5,000 - - -

Of Sh. 10 each in H Ltd 26,100 - - -

6% debentures in H Ltd - 102,000 - -

1,800,000 ordinary shares of Sh. 10 each in A 145,500 143,400 120,000 50,000

Ltd 651,600 465,400 320,000 146,000 =

6,400,000 equity shares in C Ltd and Sh. 10 <

each 300,000 100,000 80,000 60,000 w

Current assets - 80,000 - - =
50,000 40,000 40,000 6,000 >
98,500 44,400 100,000 30,000 a

Ordinary shares of Sh. 10 each 60,000 130,000 40,000 20,000 5

7% non-cumulative preference shares of Sh. 10 - 20,000 - - —

each 30,000 10,000 - 10,000 »

General reserve - 5,600 - -

Profit and loss account - 1,200 - -

Provision for depreciation 113.100 34.200 60,000 20,000

6% debentures 651,600 465,400 320,000 146,000

Proposed dividend: Ordinary

Preference

Accrued debenture interest
Trade payable

Additional information:

1.  The general reserve of all the companies was the same as they were one year ago.
The profit and loss account balances of C. Ltd. and A. Ltd were Sh.16 million and Sh.21
million respectively at the time their shares were purchased, one year previous to the
preparation of the balance sheets provided.

2. M Ltd. acquired the shares of H Ltd cum-dividend on 1 January 2001. The balance on
the profit and loss account of H Ltd. consisted of the following:

Sh. ‘000’
Profit and loss account balance on 31 December 20X0 28,000

Net profit for the period ended 31 December 2001 32.000

60,000
Less proposed dividend (15.600)
Profit and loss account balance on 31 December 2001

:
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3. The balances on the profit and loss account of H Ltd. at the acquisition date is after
providing for preference dividend of Sh.5.6 million and a proposed ordinary dividend of
Sh.5 million, both of which were subsequently paid and credited to the profit and loss
account of M Ltd.

4. No entries have been made in the books of M Ltd. in respect of debenture interest due

from, or proposed dividends from two of its investments, except that dividends due from

A Ltd. were credited to M Ltd.’s profit and loss account and the corresponding entry

made in its debtor.

The debentures of H Ltd. were purchased at par.

6. The stock in trade of H Ltd. on 31 December 2001 includes Sh.6 million in respect of
goods purchased from M Ltd. These goods had been sold by M Ltd. at such a price that
M Ltd. earned a profit of 20% on the invoice price.

7. The group policy is to account for any associate company using the equity method.

Goodwill arising on consolidation is amortized using the straight-line method over

a useful life of five years, (assuming a zero residual value) a proportionate charge

being made for any period of control of less than a full year. All unrealised profit on

closing stock is removed from the accounts of the company that realized it, giving a

proportionate charge to the minority interest is appropriate.

Dividends to minority interest shareholders are shown as part of minority interest.

9. H Ltd. sold a fixed asset on 31 December 2001 to M Ltd. for Sh.20 million, making a
20% profit on the invoice price. H Ltd. depreciates its assets at 20% using the straight-
line method. H Ltd’s accountant erroneously used the selling price for depreciation
purposes, however, the cost of assets reflected the correct amounts.

5

©

Required:

A consolidated balance sheet of M Ltd. and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2001. (25 marks)

—
x
L
—
>
(@]
o
-
2}

QUESTION TWO

The draft balance sheet of Aberdare Limited, Batian Limited and Elgon Limited as at 31 March
1999 are as follows:

Balance sheet as at 31 March 1999

A Ltd. B Ltd. E Ltd.
Sh. million Sh. million Sh. million
PPE 1,280 920 700
Investments in subsidiaries (cost) 840 750 _ -
2,120 1.670 700
Current assets
Inventories 420 410 210
Trade receivables 680 540 390
Cash 80 90 _70
1.180 1.040 700
Current liabilities
Trade payables 390 380 210
Taxation 40 20 10
Proposed dividends 300 250 200
730 650 420
Net current assets 450 390 280
2,570 2.060 980
Issued share capital
Ordinary shares of Sh.10 600 500 500
Revaluation reserve - 260 -
Retained earnings 1.970 1,300 480
2,570 2,060 980
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Additional information:

—

All the shares in all the companies rank equally for voting purposes.

2. ALtd. purchased 30 million ordinary shares in B Ltd. on 1 April 1990, when the balance
of retained earnings in B Ltd. was Sh.800 million. On 1 April 1990, the fair values of the
identifiable net assets of B Ltd. were approximately the same as book values. By 31
March 19989, some of the fixed assets of B Ltd. had depreciated significantly in value:
the directors commissioned Uptown Estate Agents to revalue the fixed assets, which
resulted in the reserve stated in the accounts. The revaluation had been incorporated
in the accounts as at 31 March 1998.

3. B Ltd. acquired 30 million shares in E Ltd. on 30 September 1998. On this date, the fair

value of the fixed assets in E Ltd. was Sh. 60 million in excess of book value and the fair

value of stock was Sh.20 million in excess of book value. In addition, E Ltd. possessed
patent rights of fair value Sh.10 million on 30 September 1998: however, these were
not carried in the books of E Ltd. E Ltd depreciates fixed assets at 10% per annum and

intangible assets at 20% per annum (both figures being reduced proportionately for a

period which is less than a year). 80% of the stock in hand on 30 September 1998 in E

Ltd. had been sold by 31 March 1999. Between 30 September 1998 and 31 March 1999,

E Ltd.’s sales to A Ltd. and B Ltd. were Sh.240 million and Sh.160 million respectively.

All these goods had been resold by the two companies but at 31 March 1999, A Ltd. and

B Ltd. owed E Ltd. Sh. 36 million and Sh.32 million respectively. E Ltd.’s net profit for

the year, after tax but before dividends, was Sh.240 million; this profit accrued evenly

over the year.

4. Neither A Ltd. nor B Ltd. Has accounted for dividends receivable.

5. The group accounting policy in relation to goodwill is to recognise it as an intangible
asset and impair it a rate of 33.333% per year, with a proportionate charge for a period
of less than one year. Minority interest is recorded as its proportion of the fair values
of the net assets of the subsidiary: dividends due to minority interest are carried within
current liabilities.

Required:

The consolidated balance sheet of Aberdare Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 1999 in
accordance with the International Accounting Standard 1 — presentation of financial statements
(Revised 2004)

|
- CASE STUDY

In the world of growing economy and globalization, major companies on both domestic and
international markets struggle to achieve the optimum market share possible. Every day business
people from top to lower management work to achieve a common goal — being the best at what
you do, and getting there as fast as possible. As companies work hard to beat their competitors
they assume various tactics to do so. Some of their tactics may include competing in the market
of their core competence, thus, insuring that they have the optimal knowledge and experience to
have a fighting chance against their rivals in the same business; hostile takeovers; or the most
popular way to achieve growth and dominance — mergers and acquisitions.
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Mergers and acquisitions are the most frequently used methods of growth for companies in the twenty first
century.

Mergers and acquisitions present a company with a potentially larger market share and open it up to a
more diversified market. At times, a merger or an acquisition simply makes a company larger, expands its
staff and production, and gives it more financial and other resources to be a stronger competitor on the
market.

Source: www.google.co.ke- case studies on mergers and acquisition
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CHAPTER TWO

ACCOUNTING FOR ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(PART A)

» OBJECTIVES

After this chapter, the student will know how to account for:

© Leases (IAS 17)

® Impairment of assets (IAS 36)

© Assets that are used in exploring Mineral Resources (IFRS 6)
® Financial Instruments (IAS 32, 39 and IFRS 7)

» INTRODUCTION

Leasing is a unique form of intermediate term financing. It is also a major form of ‘off balance
sheet’ financing, though disclosure of leased assets and corresponding obligations in financial
statements are now increasingly required internationally.

IAS 36 applies to all tangible, intangible and financial assets except inventories, assets arising
from construction contracts, deferred tax assets, assets arising under IAS 19, employee
benefits and financial assets within the scope of IAS 32, Financial instruments, disclosures and
presentation.

» DEFINITION OF KEY TERMS

Lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee, in return for rent, the right to
use an asset for an agreed period of time.

Impairment: a fall in the value of an asset so that its recoverable amount is now less than its
carrying value in the balance sheet.

Financial instrument: A contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

» EXAM CONTEXT

In past examinations, the examiner has tested the students’ knowledge on the following topics:

* Leases
* Impairment of Assets

Students should therefore understand these topics.
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» INDUSTRY CONTEXT

This chapter shows organisations how to classify leases and account for them.

Organizations learn how to account for impairment of assets and to properly account for financial
instruments and make adequate disclosures in the financial statements.

|
- 2.1 LEASES (IAS 17)

FAST FORWARD: Leasing is a major form of ‘off balance sheet’ financing, though disclosure

of leased assets and corresponding obligations in financial statements are now increasingly
required internationally.

[[] Introduction

Leasing is a unique form of intermediate term financing.

Lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee, in return for rent, the right
to use an asset for an agreed period of time. The lessor remains the owner but lessee has a
right to use the equipment for agreed rentals to be paid over a period. Though the lessee has
an unrestricted right of use of the lease equipment but does not become the owner. The lease
contract will cover lease period, the amount and timing of payments to be made by the lessee,
provision of payment of taxes, insurance, maintenance expenses and provision for renewal of
the lease or purchase of asset at the expiration of the lease period.

STUDY TEXT

[] Terms used in leasing

Lessor: This is the person, who under an agreement conveys to another person (the lessee) the
right to use in return for rent, an asset for an agreed period of time.

Lessee: this is a person, who under an agreement obtains from another person (the lessor) the
right to use, in return for rent, an asset for an agreed period of time.

Non-cancellable lease: A lease that is cancellable only:

. Upon the occurrence of some remote contingency

. With the permission of the lessor

. If the lessee enters into a new lease for the same or any equivalent asset with the same
lessor, or

. Upon payment by the lessee of an additional amount such that at inception continuation
of lease is reasonably certain
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Inception of the lease: the earlier of the date of the lease agreement or of a commitment by the
parties to the principal provision of the lease. Thus it is the date that the principal provisions of
the lease are committed to in writing by the parties.

Lease term: the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has contracted to take on lease
the asset together with any further periods for which the lessee has the option to continue the
lease of the asset, with or without further payment which option at the inception of the lease it is
reasonably certain that the lessee will exercise. Thus, the period, which the lessee is required or
expected to make, lease payments include:

. Non-cancellable term of the lease

. Any period for which failure to renew the lease results in a penalty to the lease in an
amount, at the inception of the lease

. Any period subject to a bargain renewal option or proceeding the date that a bargain
purchase option becomes exercisable and

*  Any period during which the lease may be renewed or extended at the option of the
lessor

Minimum lease payments: the payments over the lease term that the lessee is or can be
required to make (excluding costs for services and taxes to be paid by and be reimbursable to
the lessor) together with the residual value. Thus, it includes the sum of the payments that the
lessee is required or expected to make during the lease term other than amounts representing
taxes, insurance maintenance etc together with:

In case of lessee, any amount generated by him or by a party related to him with any penalty that
the lessee must pay for failure to renew or extend the lease beyond the lease term

In the case of lessor any guarantee by a third party of the residual value or rental payment
beyond the lease terms.

Fair value: the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between a knowledgeable, willing
buyer and a knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm’s length transaction.

Useful life: In the case of an operating lease either the period over which a fixed asset is
expected to be used by the enterprise; or the number of production (or similar) units expected
to be obtained from the asset by the enterprise. In case of a finance lease, the useful life of the
asset is the lease term.

Interest rate implicit in the lease: the discount rate that, at the inception of the lease, cause
the aggregate present value of the minimum lease payments, from the standpoint of the lessor,
to be equal to the fair value of the leased asset, net of any grants or tax credits received by the
lessor. In other words, it is the discount rate that equates the present value of the minimum lease
payments plus the unguaranteed residual value to the fair value of the leased property at the
inception of the lease less any investment tax credit retained and expected to be realised by the
lessor.

Gross investment in the lease: the aggregate of the minimum lease payments under a finance
lease from the standpoint of the lessor.
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Unearned finance income: the difference between the lessor’s gross investment in the lease
and its present value.

Net investment in the lease: the gross investment in the lease less unearned finance income.

Bargain option: it is an option that can be exercised by lessee to renew the lease or purchase
the leased property for an amount which is sufficiently below the expected future market value.
Such an option appears at the inception of the lease.

Estimated economic life of the leased property: the expected remaining period during which
the property is expected to be economically usable for the purpose for which it was intended at
the inception of the lease.

Unguaranteed residual value: The expected fair value of the leasehold property at the end of
the term (excluding the amount of nay guarantee) included in the minimum lease payments.

[ ] Classification of leases

In general lease means allowing a person to use a property on payment of a certain amount
of money in installment as agreed between the lessor and lessee. A contract of lease may be
classified into three types:

Operating lease
Finance lease
Leveraged lease

STUDY TEXT

B Operating or (cancellable lease)

Alease is classified as an operating lease if it does not secure for the lessor the recovery of his
capital outlay plus a return on the funds invested during the lease term. Therefore, the asset
should be treated by the lessor as a fixed asset and rentals receivable should be included in
income over the lease term.

Costs, including depreciation, incurred in earning the rental income should be charged to income.
Initial direct costs incurred by lessor in negotiating and arranging the lease should be expensed
in the year in which they are incurred.

Lease rentals in the books of the lessee should be accounted for on accrual basis over the lease
term so as to recognise an appropriate charge in this respect in the profit and loss account with
a separate disclosure thereof. The excess of lease rentals paid over the amounts accrued in
respect thereof should be treated as prepaid lease rental and vice versa.
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Accounting entries in the books of lessee

When rent is paid on the leased property

Dr: RentAlc
Cr:  CashAlc

The entry will be repeated in subsequent years till the lease expires.

Accounting entries in the books of lessor

When rent is received under the lease contract

Dr: Cash Alc

Cr: Rental income

When depreciation is to be charged

Dr: Depreciation A/c

Cr: Accumulated depreciation A/c ;
L
When insurance/maintenance/taxes are paid =
>
Dr: Insurance/maintenance/taxes Alc g
Cr: cash Alc =
(7))

H Finance (or capital) lease

A lease under which the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the
lease exceeds or is equal to substantially the whole of the fair value of the leased asset. This
method of financing the asset is similar to that of borrowing for acquisition of an asset. The asset
is acquired immediately without making any payment for it. Contract made under this type of
lease is irrevocable or non-cancellable. The lessor will try to recover his original investment of
equipment plus a reasonable return on such investment during the lease term.

Accounting entries in the books of the lessor

When the equipment is purchased on lease

Dr: Equipment A/c
Cr: Cash Alc
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When the contract is signed and property leased out to the lessee

Dr: Rent receivable A/c

Cr: Equipment a/c

When first installment on lease is received

Dr: Cash Alc

Cr: Rent receivable Alc

At end of first year

When interest becomes receivable

Dr: Interest receivable a/c
Cr: Interest a/c
—
E When the amount is received in respect of interest and rent
—
> Dr: Cash alc
g Cr: Rent receivable a/c
I;) Cr: Interest receivable a/c

These entries are repeated in subsequent years

At the end of last year

When the equipment is sold and lease is terminated

Dr: Cash a/c

Cr: Income on sale of equipment a/c

At the end of last year

When the equipment is purchased and lease is terminated

Dr: Equipment a/c
Cr: Cash alc
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When accumulated depreciation is transferred to equipment a/c at the time of termination
of the lease and purchase of the asset

Dr: Accumulated depreciation a/c

Cr: Equipment a/c

Accounting entries in the books of the lessee

When contract is signed and property acquired and the liability is assumed

Dr: Equipment a/c

Cr: Rent obligation a/c

When first installment payment of rental obligation is made

Dr: Rental obligation a/c
Cr: Cash alc

-
X
At the end of first year w
|_
When interest becomes payable .
@)
Dr: Interest a/c o
|_
Cr: Interest payable a/c )

When the payment is made for rental and interest

Dr: Rental obligation a/c
Interest payable a/c
Cr Cash alc

When depreciation at the end of the year is charged

Dr: Depreciation a/c

Cr: Accumulated depreciation a/c

When insurance, maintenance, taxes are paid

Dr: Insurance/maintenance/taxes a/c
Cr: Cash al/c

The above entries are repeated in each of the subsequent years.
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Distinction between an operating lease and a finance lease

Alease is classified as a finance lease if it secures for the lessor the recovery of his capital outlay
plus a return on the funds invested during the lease term. On the other hand a lease is classified
as an operating lease if it does not secure for the lessor the recovery of his capital outlay plus a
return on the funds invested during the lease term.

Operating lease

Finance lease

It is usually for a shorter duration and bears
no relation to the useful life of the asset.

It is usually related to the useful life of the
asset

It is a non-revocable contract

It is a revocable contract

The cost of maintenance, repairs, taxes and
insurance etc. are borne by the lessor

These expenses are borne by the lessee
unless there is a contract to the contrary

The lessee is protected against the risk of
obsolescence

The risk of obsolescence has to be taken by
the lessee

The rentals are not sufficient to fully
amortise the cost of the asset

The rentals would cover the lessor’s original
investment cost plus a reasonable return on
investment

There is no option to review or buy the
lease

It will provide for an option to review the
lease or to buy the asset at a nominal price
at the expiration of the lease period.

B Leveraged lease

STUDY TEXT

A leveraged lease is a finance lease and has all the following characteristics:

o It involves at least three parties; a lessee, a lessor and one or more long term
creditors

o The creditor’s recourse to the lessor in the event of default is restricted to the proceeds
from the disposal of the leased asset and any unremitted rentals relating thereto; and

. The lessor’s investment in the lease declines in the early years of the lease and rises in
later years before its final elimination.

This is used in those cases where huge capital outlays are required for acquiring assets. In
this type also, the lessee makes contract for periodical payments over the lease period and in
turn is entitled to use the asset over the period of time. Legal ownership of the leased asset
remains with the lessor who is, therefore, entitled to tax deductions such as depreciation and
other allowances.

It is appropriate therefore, that the method of finance income recognition on leveraged lease
should take account of the cash flows resulting from the tax benefits. It is proposed to define
leveraged leases and require that finance income from such leases should be recognised using
the net cash investment method.
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Bl Net cash investment method

The net cash investment in the lease is the balance of the cash outflows and inflows in respect
of the lease, excluding flows relating to insurance, maintenance and similar costs rechargeable
to the lessee. The cash outflow includes payments made to acquire that asset, tax payments,
interest and principal on third party financing. Inflows include rentals receipts, receipts from
residual values and grants, tax credits and other savings or repayments arising from the lease.

Under the net cash investment, a lessor recognizes finance income based on a pattern reflecting
a constant periodic return on its net cash investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease.
Lease rentals relating to the accounting period, excluding costs for services, are applied against
gross investment in the lease to reduce the principal and the unearned finance income. Hence,
this method usually involves using a net-of-tax basis for the allocation of income.

The net cash investment method is often considered to be the most appropriate method of
accounting for finance income from lease that have been entered into largely on the basis of the
tax benefits that are expected to flow from the lease.

Bl Net investment method

The net investment in the lease is the gross investment in the lease less any unearned finance
income. Remaining unearned income is allocated to revenue over the lease term so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the lease. The use of the net investment
method is usually supported on the basis that the lessor earns income for lending money to the
lessee, which at any particular time is the amount of the outstanding net investment in a lease.
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M Sale and leaseback

A sale and leaseback transaction involves the sale of an asset by the vendor and the leasing of
the same asset back to the vendor. The rentals and the sale price are usually interdependent as
they are negotiated as a package and may not represent fair values.

If in the case of leaseback, the rentals and the sale price are established at fair value, there has in
effect been a normal sale transaction and any profit or loss is normally recognised immediately.
If the sale price is below fair value, any profit or loss is recognised immediately, except that, if
the loss is compensated by future rentals at below market price, it is deferred and amortised in
proportion to the rental payments over the useful life of the asset. If the sale price is above fair
value, the excess over fair value is deferred and amortised over the useful life of the asset.
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[ ] Presentation of financial statements

Financial Accounting Standards Board and International Accounting Standards Committee have
issued a number of guidelines in this regard. The following are the factors to be disclosed in the
financial statements under operating lease by the lessee:

. Future minimum rental payment required as on date on the presentation of the balance
sheet, both as aggregate and year wise for the succeeding 5 years

o The total minimum rental from lease to be received in future on sub-leases and

. Rental expenses for the period to which the income statement relates, classifying the
amount into minimum rental, consignment rental and sub lease rentals

For finance lease, the gross amount of assets as on the date of balance sheet distinguishing
according to nature and functions disclosed. The amount of accumulated amortisation expenses
should be disclosed in full. Again the total amount of future lease payments due in aggregate and
for each year for the succeeding five years is to be stated.

Following factors are to be disclosed by the lessor under operating lease in financial
statements:

. The cost of property on lease

. The minimum rental receipt from such leases in aggregate and separately for the
succeeding five years

o In the income statement, the contingent rentals included in the income for the period

. The total cost of the property on lease must also be shown major category wise together
with the depreciation so far accumulated

In the case of finance lease, the financial statements should include:

. The gross investment in the lease depicted by the sum of the minimum lease payments
and the estimated residual value

. The difference between the gross investment and its present value as unearned income
to be recognised as earned over the life of the lease

o The sale price will be shown at the present value of the minimum lease payments
deducting from the same, the cost of sale comprising of the cost of the leased property
and other initial direct cost incidental to the same less the present value of the
residual.
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[ ] Disclosures in the financial statements of lessees

Disclosures should be made of the amount of the assets that are subject of finance leases at
each balance sheet date. Liabilities, differentiating between the current and long-term portions.

Commitments for minimum lease payments under finance leases and under non-cancellable
operating lease with a term of more than one year should be disclosed in summary form giving
the amounts and periods in which the payments will become due.

Disclosures should be made of significant financing restrictions, renewal or purchase options,
contingent rentals and other contingencies arising from leases.

Disclosures should be made of the basis used for allocating income so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of return, indicating whether the return relates to the net investment outstanding
or the net cash investment outstanding in the lease. If more than one basis is used, the bases
should be disclosed.

When a significant part of the lessor’s business comprises operating leases, the lessor should
disclose the mount of assets by each major class of asset together with the related depreciation
at each balance sheet date.

Apart from the disclosures recommended above the lessor should disclose the accounting
policies followed with regard to accounting for income under finance lease, valuation of assets
given on the lease and charge for depreciation.

>>> Example 1

(a) Manufacturing Limited, a company that manufactures a broad range of industrial products
is in a serious cash flow position. Its overseas shareholders have not been paid dividends for
three years; suppliers have threatened to stop supplies and there is a tax bill to pay at the end of
September.

After consultation with the parent company a decision was made to:

Sub-divide the company’s large 2 acre plot in the industrial area into two and sell the vacant half
for Sh.3 million.

Sell the other half, the factory and all its contents to a Kenyan investor at the professional valuation
of Shs. 80 million less a discount of 25%. As a condition for sale, the company will enter into a
five-year lease of the factory and the assets in it for Shs.5 million a year.

The land has a book value of Shs.20 million while the plant and machinery are carried at Sh.79
million. Your discussions with the valuer indicates that annual rents for fully equipped factories
in the same industry approximate 10% of the market value at the time the lease agreement is
entered into.
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Required

Calculate the effect of the profit and loss account of Manufacturing Limited of the above
transactions for each of the five years.

Solution 1

(@)

Sale of vacant half of the land

Shs ‘000’
Sale proceeds 3,000
Carrying value (1.000)
Gain on disposal 2.000

Sale of the other half, the factory and its contents

Tutorial note: The lease of the factory and the assets may be classified as an operating lease
since there is no indication that it is a finance lease. This is a sale and lease back transaction.
Since the lease is an operating lease an actual sale has occurred.

As per IAS 17, paragraph 7

If a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating lease, and it is clear that the transaction
is established at fair value, any profit or loss should be recognised immediately. If a sale price
is below fair value, any profit or loss should be recognised immediately except that, if the loss
is compensated by future lease payments at below market price, it should be deferred and
amortised in proportion to the lease payments over the period for which the asset is expected to
be used. If the sale price is above fair value, the excess over fair value should be deferred and
amortised over the period for which the asset is expected to be used.

In this case the sale price is below fair value. The fair value as per the professional valuation is
sh.80 million yet the selling price is Sh.60 million (Shs. 80 million less 25%). The lease payments
at market value should be 10% X 80 million which is Sh. 8 million. The company will enter into
a five year lease for Sh. 5 million a year. Any loss will be deferred and amortised since the loss
would be compensated by future lease payments.

‘000’

Selling price 60,000
Carrying value

Land (1,000)

Plant and machinery (79.000)

Loss on sale (20,000)




Effect on the profit and loss account
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1 2 3 4 5
‘000’ ‘000’ ‘000’ ‘000’ ‘000’
Gain on disposal 2,000 - - - -
Lease rental (5,000) (5,000) (5,000) (5,000) (5,000)
Deferred loss (4,000) (4.000) (4,000) (4,000) (4.000)
(7.000) (7.000) (7,000) (7,000) (7,000)

H
- 2.2 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (lAS 36)

FAST FORWARD: There is an established principle that assets should not be carried at above

their recoverable amount.

[[] Introduction
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An enterprise should write down the carrying value of an asset to its recoverable amount if the
carrying value of an asset is not recoverable in full. IAS 36 was published in 1998 and puts
in place a detailed methodology for carrying out impairment reviews and related accounting
treatments and disclosures.

IAS 36 applies to all tangible, intangible and financial assets exceptinventories, assets arising from
construction contracts, deferred tax assets, assets arising under IAS 19, employee benefits and
financial assets within the scope of IAS 32, Financial instruments, disclosures and presentation.
This is because those IASs already have rules for recognising and measuring impairment.

Impairment: a fall in the value of an asset so that its recoverable amount is now less than its
carrying value in the balance sheet.

Carrying amount: is the net value at which the asset is included in the balance sheet (i.e. after
deducting accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses).

The basic principle underlying IAS 36b is relatively straightforward. If an asset’s value in the
accounts is higher than its realistic value, measured as its ‘recoverable amount’, the asset is
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judged to have suffered an impairment loss. It should therefore be reduced in value, by the
amount of the impairment loss. The amount of the impairment loss should be written off against
profit immediately.

The main accounting issues to consider are therefore as follows:

(@) How is it possible to identify when an impairment loss may have occurred?
(b) How should the recoverable amount of the asset be measured?
(c) How should an ‘impairment loss’ be reported in the accounts?

[] Identifying a potentially impaired asset

An enterprise should carry out a review of its assets at each balance sheet date, to assess
whether there are any indications of impairment to any assets. The concept of materiality applies,
and only material impairment needs to be identified.

If there are indications of possible impairment, the enterprise is required to make a formal estimate
of the recoverable amount of the assets concerned.

IAS 36 suggests how indications of a possible impairment of assets might be recognised. The
suggestions are based largely on common sense.

(a) External sources of information:
Afallin the asset’'s market value that is more significant than would normally be expected
from passage of time over normal use; or
A significant change in the technological market, legal or economic environment of the
business in which the assets are employed; or
An increase in market interest rates or market rates of return on investments likely to
affect the discount rate used in calculating value in use; or
The carrying amount of the enterprise’s net assets being more than its market
capitalisation

(b) Internal sources of information: evidence of obsolescence or physical damage, adverse
changes in the use to which the asset is put, or the asset’s economic performance.

B Measuring the recoverable amount of the asset

The recoverable amount of an asset should be measured as the higher value of:

(@) The asset’s net selling price, and

(b) Its value in use

The net selling price of an asset is the amount net of selling costs that could be obtained from the
sale of the asset. Selling costs include sales transaction costs such as legal expenses.

(a) If there is an active market in the asset, the net selling price should be based on the
market value, or on the price of recent transactions in similar assets.



ACCOUNTING FOR ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (PART A)

(b) If there is no active market in the asset it might be possible to estimate a net selling
price using best estimates of what ‘knowledgeable, willing parties’ might pay in an arm’s
length transaction.

Net selling price cannot be reduced, however, by including within selling costs any restructuring
or reorganisation expenses, or any costs that have already been recognised in the accounts as
liabilities.

The value in use of an asset is measured as the present value of estimated future cash flows

(inflows minus outflows) generated by the asset including its estimated net disposal value (if any)
at the end of its expected useful life.

The cash flows used in the calculation should be pre-tax cash flows and a pre-tax discount rate
should be applied to calculate the present value. Calculating a value in use therefore calls for
estimates of future cash flows and the possibility exists that an enterprise might come up with
over optimistic estimates of cash flows. The proposed IAS therefore states the following:

(a) Cash flow projections should be based on ‘reasonable and supportable’ assumptions

(b) Projections of cash flows, normally up to a maximum period of five years, should be
based on the most recent budget or financial forecasts.

(c) Cash flow projections beyond this period should be obtained by extrapolating short-
term projections, using either a steady or declining growth rate for each subsequent
year (unless a rising growth rate can be justified). The long-term growth rate applied
should not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the product, market, industry
or country, unless a higher growth rate can be justified.

Composition of estimates of future cash flows

These should include:

(a) Projections of cash inflows from continuing use of the asset.

(b) Projections of cash outflows necessarily incurred to generate the cash inflows from
continuing use of the asset

(c) Net cash flows received/paid on disposal of the asset at the end of its useful life.
There is an underlying principle that future cash flows should be estimated for the asset in its
current condition. Future cash flows relating to restructurings to which the enterprise is not

yet committed, or to capital expenditure that will improve the asset beyond the standard of
performance originally assessed, are excluded.

Estimates of future cash flows should exclude:

(a) Cash inflows/outflows from financing activities

(b) Income tax receipts/payments
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The amount of net cash inflow/outflow on disposal of an asset should assume an arm’s length
transaction.

Foreign currency future cash flows should be forecast in the currency in which they will arise and
will be discounted using a rule appropriate for that currency. The resulting figure should then be
translated into the reporting currency at the spot rate at the balance sheet date.

The discount rate should be a current pre-tax rate (or a rate) that reflects the current assessment
of the time value of money and the risks specific to that asset. The discount should not include
weighting if the underlying cash flows have already been adjusted for risk.

B Recognition and measurement of an impairment loss

The rule for assets at historical cost is: if the recoverable amount of an asset is lower than the
carrying amount, the carrying amount should be reduced by the difference (i.e. the impairment
loss), which should be charged as an expense in the income statement.

The rule for assets held at a revalued amount (such as property revalued under the IAS
16) is:

- To the extent that there is a revaluation surplus held in respect of the asset, the
impairment loss should be charged to revaluation surplus.

- Any excess should be charged to the income statement.

The IAS goes into quite a large amount of detail about the important concept of cash generating
units. As a basic rule, the recoverable amount of an asset should be calculated for the asset
individually. However, there will be occasions when it is not possible to estimate such a value for
an individual asset, particularly in the calculation of value in use. This is because cash inflows
cannot be attributed to the individual asset.

STUDY TEXT

If it is not possible to calculate the recoverable amount for an individual asset, the recoverable
amount of the asset’s cash generating unit should be measured instead.

A cash generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets for which independent cash
flows can be identified and measured.

If active market exists for the output produced by the asset or a group of assets, this asset or
group should be identified as a cash generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used
internally.

Cash generating units should be identified consistently from period to period for the same type of
asset unless change is justified.

The group of net assets less liabilities that are considered for impairment should be the same as
those considered in the calculation of the recoverable amount.

[ ] Goodwill and impairment of assets

In some cases, there may be a carrying amount for goodwill in the balance sheet. The goodwill
will relate to a cash-generating unit. To carry out an exercise to determine whether the value of a
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cash-generating unit has been impaired, an enterprise should do a ‘bottom-up’ test and then, in
some cases, a ‘top-down’ test:

(a) Bottom-up test: identify the amount of the goodwill in the balance sheet that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to the cash-generating unit. Measure the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit. Impairment has occurred if the recoverable amount
is less than the carrying amount of the assets in the cash generating unit plus the
allocated goodwill.

(b) Top-down test: if there is no reasonable basis for allocating a carrying amount of
goodwill to the cash generating unit, the enterprise should do a top-down test. Identify
the smallest cash generating unit to which the asset belongs and to which a share of
the unallocated goodwill can be apportioned on a reasonable basis. Apportion a share
of the unallocated goodwill to the cash generating unit. Then measure the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit. Impairment has occurred if the recoverable amount
is less than the carrying amount of the assets in the cash generating unit plus the
allocated goodwill.

W Corporate assets

Corporate assets are group or divisional assets such as a head office building, EDP equipment
or a research centre. Essentially corporate assets are assets that do not generate cash inflows
independently from other assets; hence their carrying amount cannot be fully attributed to the
cash generating unit under review. In testing a cash generating unit for impairment, an enterprise
should identify all the corporate assets that relate to the cash generating unit. Then the same test
is applied to each corporate asset for goodwill, that is bottom up or failing that top-down.
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[] Accounting treatment for an impairment loss

If, and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount in the
balance sheet, is an impairment loss deemed to have occurred. This loss should be recognised
immediately.

(@) The asset’s carrying amount should be reduced to its recoverable amount in the balance
sheet.

(b) The impairment loss should be recognised immediately in the income statement.

After reducing an asset to its recoverable amount, the depreciation charge on the asset should
then be based on its new carrying amount, its estimated residual value (if any) and its estimated
useful life.

An impairment loss should be recognised for a cash generating unit if (and only if) the recoverable
amount for the cash generating unit is less than the carrying amount in the balance sheet for all
the assets in the unit. When an impairment loss is recognised for a cash generating unit, the loss
should be allocated between the assets in the unit in the following order.
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(a) First, to the goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit

(b) Then to all other assets in the cash generating unit, on a pro-rata basis.

In allocating an impairment loss, the carrying amount of an asset should not be reduced below
the highest of:

(a) Its net selling price (if determined)
(b) Its value in use (if determined)

(c) Zero

Any remaining amount of an impairment loss should be recognised as a liability if required by
other IASs.

>>> Example 1

A company that extracts natural gas and oil has a drilling platform in the Caspian Sea. It is
required by legislation of the country concerned to remove and dismantle the platform at the end
of its useful life. Accordingly, the company has included an amount in its accounts for removal
and dismantling costs, and is depreciating this amount over the platform’s expected life.

The company is carrying out an exercise to establish whether there has been an impairment of
the platform.

(a) Its carrying amount in the balance sheet is Kshs.3m
(b) The company has received an offer of Kshs.2.8m for the platform from another oil
company. The bidder would take over the responsibility (and costs) for dismantling and

removing the platform at the end of its life.

(c) The present value of the estimated cash flows from the platform’s continued use is
Kshs.3.3m

(d) The carrying amount in the balance sheet for the provision for dismantling and removal
is currently Kshs.0.6m

What should be the value of the drilling platform in the balance sheet, and what if anything is the
impairment loss?

Solution 1

Net sales price = Kshs.2.8m

Value in use = PV of cash flows from use less the carrying amount of the
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Provision/liability = Kshs.3.3m - Kshs.0.6m = Kshs.2.7m
Recoverable amount = Higher of these two amounts, i.e. Kshs.2.8m
Carrying value = Kshs.3m

Impairment loss = Kshs.0.2m

The carrying value should be reduced to Kshs.2.8m

[] Reversal of an impairment loss

The annual review of assets to determine whether there may have been some impairment should
be applied to all assets, including assets that have already been impaired in the past.

In some cases, the recoverable amount of an asset that has previously been impaired might turn
out to be higher than the asset’s current carrying value. In other words, there might have been a
reversal of some of the previous impairment loss. In such cases:

(a) The reversal of the impairment loss should be recognised immediately as income in the
income statement; and
(b) The carrying amount of the asset should be increased to its new recoverable amount

Rule: An impairment loss recognised for an asset in the prior years should be recovered if
and only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

The asset cannot be revalued to a carrying amount that is higher than its value would have
been if the asset had not been impaired originally, i.e. its depreciated carrying value had the
impairment not taken place. Depreciation of the asset should now be based on its new revalued
amount, its estimated residual value (if any) and its estimated remaining useful life.

An exception to the above rule is for goodwill. An impairment loss for goodwill should not be
reversed in a subsequent period unless:

(@) The impairment loss was caused by a specific external event of an exceptional nature
not expected to recur; and

(b) Subsequent external events have occurred that reverse the effect of that event.

>>> Example 2

A cash generating unit comprising a factory, plant and equipment etc and associated purchased
goodwill becomes impaired because the product it makes is overtaken by a technologically more
advanced model produced by a competitor. The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit
falls to Kshs.60m, resulting in an impairment loss of Kshs.80m, allocated as follows overleaf:
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Carrying amounts Carrying amounts
Before impairment after impairment
Kshs.m Kshs.m

Goodwill 40 -

Patent (with no market value)20 -
Tangible long-term assets 80
Total 140

2 13
o o

After three years, the entity makes a technological breakthrough of its own, and the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit decreases to Kshs.90m. the carrying amount of the tangible
long term assets had the impairment not occurred would have been Kshs.70m.

Required

Calculate the reversal of the impairment loss.

Solution 2

The reversal of the impairment loss is recognised to the extent that it increases the carrying
amount of the tangible long-term assets to what it would have been had the impairment not taken
place, i.e. a reversal of the impairment loss of Kshs.10m is recognised and the tangible long-term
assets written back to Kshs.70m. Reversal of the impairment is not recognised in relation to the
goodwill and patent because the effect of the external event that caused the original impairment
has not reversed — the original product is still overtaken by a more advanced model.

STUDY TEXT

B Disclosure

IAS 36 calls for substantial disclosure about impairment of assets. The information to be disclosed
include the following:

(a) For each class of assets, the amount of impairment losses recognised and the amount
of any impairment losses recovered (i.e. reversals of impairment losses).

(b) For each individual asset or cash generating unit that has suffered a significant
impairment loss, details of the nature of the asset, the amount of the loss, the events
that led to recognition of the loss, whether recoverable amount is net selling price or
value in use, and if the recoverable amount is value in use, the basis on which this value
was estimated (e.g. discount rate applied).

Property, plant and equipment — compensation for the impairment or
loss of items

An enterprise may receive monetary or non-monetary compensation from third parties for the
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impairment or loss of items of property, plant and equipment. The compensation may be used to
restore the asset. Examples include:

- Reimbursement by insurance companies after an impairment of items of plant and
equipment.

- Physical replacement of an impaired or lost asset

The accounting treatment is as follows:

(a) Impairment of items of property, plant and equipment should be recognised under IAS
36; disposals should be recognised under IAS 16

(b) Monetary or non-monetary compensation from third parties for items of property etc
that were impaired, lost or given up, should be included in the income statement

(c) The cost of assets restored, purchased, constructed as a replacement or received as
compensation should be determined and presented under IAS 16.

2.3 EXPLORATION FOR AND EVALUATION OF MINERAL

RESOURCES (IFRS 6)

The main objective of IFRS 6 is to recommends the accounting treatment of assets that are
used in exploring mineral resources as they have slight different purpose as compared with
other property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. However an entity can still apply the
requirements of IAS 16 or 38.

IFRS 6 permits an entity to develop an accounting policy for exploration and evaluation assets
without specifically considering the requirements of paragraphs 11 and 12 of IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. Thus, an entity adopting IFRS 6 may
continue to use the accounting policies applied immediately before adopting the IFRS. This
includes continuing to use recognition and measurement practices that are part of those
accounting policies.

IFRS 6 requires entities recognising exploration and evaluation assets to perform an impairment
test on those assets when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of the
assets may exceed their recoverable amount.

IFRS 6 varies the recognition ofimpairment from that in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets but measures
the impairment in accordance with that Standard once the impairment is identified.

IFRS 6 requires disclosure of information that identifies and explains the amounts recognised
in its financial statements arising from the exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources,
including

i. Its accounting policies for exploration and evaluation expenditures including the
recognition of exploration and evaluation assets.
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i. The amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense and operating and investing
cash flows arising from the exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources.

|
2.4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
|

Financial Instruments has become a very important area in accounting especially because of the
developments in financial markets as far new derivatives and other financial instruments. Many
companies had ignored the recording and accounting for such instruments and this has been
disastrous as big companies like Enron collapsed. There has been an issue with IAS 32 which
deals with Presentation, IAS 39 which deals with recognition and measurement and IFRS 7
which deals with Disclosure. IFRS 7 applies to periods commencing from 2007 and supersedes
the presentation part of IAS 32.

The main objectives of the three standards are to ensure that financial instruments are properly
accounted for and adequate disclosure is made by the companies. The three standards are very
comprehensive especially IAS 39 which includes detailed illustration on how to teat the financial
instruments in the accounts.

[ ] IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and Disclosure

Please note that the disclosure part of the standards has been superseded by IFRS 7 whose
summary we shall look at later.

STUDY TEXT

The stated objective of IAS 32 is to enhance financial statement users’ understanding of the
significance of financial instruments to an entity’s financial position, performance, and cash
flows.

IAS 32 addresses this in a number of ways:

- Clarifying the classification of a financial instrument issued by an enterprise as a liability
or as equity.

- Prescribing the accounting for treasury shares (a company’s own repurchased
shares).

- Prescribing strict conditions under which assets and liabilities may be offset in the
balance sheet.

- Requiring a broad range of disclosures about financial instruments, including information
as to their fair values.
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W Scope

IAS 32 applies in presenting and disclosing information about all types of financial instruments
with the following exceptions:

- Interests in subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures that are accounted for under IAS
27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, |IAS 28 Investments in Associates,
or IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. However, |IAS 32 applies to all derivatives on
interests in subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

- Employers’ rights and obligations under employee benefit plans [see |AS 19].

- Rights and obligations arising under insurance contracts (this is the subject of a current
IASB project). However, IAS 32 applies to a financial instrument that takes the form of an
insurance (or reinsurance) contract but that principally involves the transfer of financial
risks. Also, IAS 32 applies to derivatives that are embedded in insurance contracts.

- Contracts for contingent consideration in a business combination [see IFRS 3].

- Contracts that require a payment based on climatic, geological or other physical
variables (weather derivatives) [see IAS 39].

IAS 32 applies to those contracts for buying or selling a non-financial item that can be settled net
in cash or another financial instrument, except for contracts that were entered into and continue
to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in accordance with the
entity’s expected purchase, sale, or usage requirements.
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B Important definitions

Financial instrument

It is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial asset:
Any asset that is:

(i) Cash;
(i)  An equity instrument of another entity;
(iii) A contractual right:
- toreceive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity; or
- acontract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:
- anon-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable
number of the entity’s own equity instruments; or
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- a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments.
For this purpose an entity’s own equity instruments does not include instruments that
are themselves contracts for the future receipt or delivery of the entity’s own equity
instruments.
Financial liability:
Any liability that is a contractual obligation:

o to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

o to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavourable to the entity; or

o  acontract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments

Equity instrument:

It as any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities.

Fair value:

The amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled, between knowledgeabile,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

The definition of financial instrument used in IAS 32 is the same as that in IAS 39.

STUDY TEXT

B Classification as Liability or Equity

The fundamental principle of IAS 32 is that a financial instrument should be classified as either a
financial liability or an equity instrument according to the substance of the contract, not its legal
form.

How should a financial liability be distinguished from an equity instrument?

The critical featured of a liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefit. Therefore a financial
instrument is a financial liability if it is an obligation to transfer economic benefit. A financial
instrument is a financial liability if there is a contractual obligation on the issuer either to deliver
cash or another financial asset to the holder or to exchange another financial instrument with the
holder under potentially unfavourable conditions to the issuer.

The financial liability exists regardless of the way in which the contractual obligation will be settled.
The issuer’s ability to satisfy an obligation may be restricted, eg. By lack of access to foreign
currency, but this is irrevant as it does not remove the issuer’s obligation or the holder’s right
under the instrument. Where the above critical feature is not met, then the financial instrument
is an equity instrument. IAS 32 explains that although the holder of an equity instrument may
be entitled to a pro rata share of any distributions out of equity, the issuer does not have a
contractual obligation to make such a distribution.
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Although substance and legal form are often consistent with each other, this is not always the
case. In particular, a financial instrument may have a legal form of equity, but in substance it is
infact a liability. Other instruments may combine features of both equity instruments and financial
liabilities.

For example, many entities issue preferred shares which must be redeemed by the issuer for a
fixed (or determinable) amount at a fixed (or determinable) future date. Alternatively, the holder
may have the right to require the issuer to redeem the shares at or after a certain date for a fixed
amount. In such cases, the issuer has an obligation. Therefore the instrument is a financial
liability and should be classified as such.

The classification of the financial instrumentis made whenitis firstrecognised and this classification
will continue until the financial instrument is removed from the entity’s balance sheet.

[ ] Contingent settlement provisions

An entity may issue a financial instrument where the way in which it is settled depends on:
(i)  The occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future events, or
(i) The outcome of uncertain circumstances that are beyond the control of both the holder
and the issuer of the instrument. For example, an entity might have to deliver cash

instead of issuing equity shares. In this situation it is not immediately clear whether the
entity has an equity instrument or a financial liability.

Such financial instruments should be classified as financial liabilities unless the possibility of
settlement is remote.

[] Settlement options

When a derivative financial instrument gives one party a choice over how it is settled (e.g. the
issuer can choose whether to settle in cash or by issuing shares) the instrument is a financial
asset or a financial liability unless all the alternative choices would result in it being an equity
instrument.

[] Compound financial instruments

Some financial instruments contain both a liability and an equity element. In such cases, IAS
32 requires the component parts of the instrument to be classified separately, according to the
substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

One of the most common types of compound instrument is convertible debt. This creates a
primary financial liability of the issuer and grants an option to the holder of the instrument to
convert it into an equity instrument (usually ordinary shares)of the issuer. This is the economic
equivalent of the issue of conventional debt plus a warrant to acquire shares in the future.
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Although in theory there are several possible ways of calculating the split, IAS 32 requires the
following method:

a) Calculate the value for the liability component

b) Deduct this from the instrument as a whole to leave a residual value for the equity
component.

The reasoning behind this approach is that an entity’s equity is its residual interest in its assets
amount after deducting all its liabilities.

The reasoning behind this approach is that an entity’s equity is its residual value for the equity
component after deducting all its liabilities.

The sum of the carrying amounts assigned to liability and equity will always be equal to the
carrying amount that would be ascribed to the instrument as a whole.

>>> Example: Valuation of compound instruments

Rathbone Co. issues 2,000 convertible bonds at the start of 20 x 2. The bonds have a three
year term, and are issued at par with a face value of KSh.1,000 per bond, giving total proceeds
of KSh.2,000,000.interest is payable annually in arrears at a nominal annual interest rate of 6%.
Each bond is convertible at any timeup to maturity into 250 common shares.

When the bonds are issued, the prevailing market interest rate for similar debt without conversion
options is 9%. Atthe issue date, the market price of one common shares is KSh.3. The dividends
expected over the three year term of the bonds amount to 14c¢ per share at the end of each year.
The risk-free annual interest rate for a three year term is 5%.

Required

What is the value of the equity component in the bond?

Solution

The liability component is valued first, and the difference between the proceeds of the bond
issue and the fair value of the liability is assigned to the equity component. The present value of
liability the liability component is calculated using a discount rate of 9%, the market interest rate
for similar bonds having no conversion rights, as shown.

KSh.
Present value of the principal: KSh.2,000,000 payable at the end of three years

(KSh2mx _ 1 )* (1.09)3
1,544,367
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Present value of the interest: KSh.120,000 payable annually in arrears for three years.
(KSh.120,000 x (1-1/(1.09)%)/0.09* 303,755

Total liability component

1,848,122
Equity component (balancing figure)
151.878
Proceeds of the bond issue
2,000,000

*These figures can be obtained from discount and annuity tables.

The split between the liability and equity components remains the same throughout the term of
the instrument, even if there are changes in the likelihood of the option being exercised. This
is because it is not always possible to predict how a holder will behave. The issuer continues to
have an obligation to make future payments until conversion, maturity of the instrument or some
other relevant transaction takes place.

[] Treasury shares

If an entity reacquires its own equity instruments, those instruments (‘treasury shares’) shall
be deducted from equity. No gain or loss shall be recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of an entity’s own equity instruments. Consideration paid or received
shall be recognised directly in equity.

[] Interest, dividends, losses and gains

As well as looking at balance sheet presentation, IAS 32 considers how financial instruments
affect the income statement (and movements in equity). The treatment varies according to
whether interest, dividends, losses or gains relate to a financial liability or an equity instrument.

- Interest, dividends, losses and gains relating to a financial instrument (or component
part) classified as a financial liability should be recognised as income or expense in
profit or loss.

- Distributions to holders of a financial instrument classified as an equity instrument
should be debited directly to equity by the issuer.

- Transaction costs of an equity transaction shall be accounted for as a deduction
from equity. (unless they are directly attributable to the acquisition of a business, in
which case they are accounted for under IFRS 3).

[
>
L
—
>
(@]
o
[
n
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You should look at the requirements of IAS 1 presentation of financial statements for further
details of disclosure, and IAS 12 income taxes for disclosure of tax effects.

[] Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and financial liability should only be offset, with the net amount reported in the
balance sheet, when an entity:

a) Has alegally enforceable right of set off, and

b) Intends to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously, i.e. at the same moment.

This will reflect the expected future cash flows of the entity in these specific circumstances. In
all other cases, financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately.

[] Section summary

a) Financial instruments must be classified as liabilities or equity
b) The substance of the financial instrument is more important than its legal form

c) The critical feature of a financial liability is the contractual obligation to deliver cash
or another financial instrument.

d) Compound instruments are split into equity and liability parts and presented
accordingly

e) Interest, dividends, losses and gains are treated according to whether they relate to
a financial asset or a financial liability.

DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(SUPERSEDED BY IFRS 7)

One of the main purposes of IAS 32 is to provide full and useful disclosures relating to financial
instruments.

‘The purpose of the disclosures required by this standard is to provide information to enhance
understanding of the significant of financial instruments to an entity’s financial position,
performance and cash flows and assist in assessing the amounts, timing and certainly of future
cash flows associated with those instruments.’(IAS 32)
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As well as specific monetary disclosures, narrative commentary by issuers is encouraged by
the standard. This will enable users to understand management’s attitude to risk, whatever the
current transactions involving financial instruments are at the period end.

Different aspects of risk

In undertaking transactions in financial instruments, an entity may assume or transfer to another
party one or more of different types of financial risk as defined below. The disclosures required
by the standard show the extent to which an entity is exposed to these different types of risk,
relating to both recognised and unrecognised financial instruments.

Key terms

Market risk. There are three types of market risk: current risk, interest rate risk and
price risk.

a) Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in foreign exchange rates.

b) Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates.

c) Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all securities
traded in the market.
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The term ‘market risk’ embodies not only the potential for loss but also the potential
for gain.

Credit risk. The risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

Liquid risk (or funding risk). The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising
funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may
result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.

Cash flow interest rate risk. The risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. In the case of a floating
rate debt instrument, for example, such fluctuations result in a change in the effective
interest rate of the financial instrument, usually without a corresponding change in its
fair value. (IAS 32)

The standard does not prescribe the format or location for disclosure ofinformation. Acombination
of narrative descriptions and specific quantified data should be given, as appropriate.
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The level of detail required is a matter of judgment. Where a large number of very similar
financial instrument transactions are undertaken, these may be grouped together. Conversely, a
single significant transaction may require full disclosure.

Classes of instruments will be grouped together by management in a manner appropriate to
the information to be disclosed.

[ ] Risk management

An entity shall describe its financial risk management objective and policies, including its
policy for hedging each main type of forecast transaction for which hedge accounting is used.

The following information should be disclosed separately for each type of designed hedge
(these are described later in this chapter): a description of the hedge; a description of the
financial instruments designated as hedging instruments and their fair values at the balance
sheet date; the nature of the risks being hedged; and for cash flow hedges, the periods in which
the cash flows are expected to occur and when they are expected to enter into the determination
of profit or loss.

The following information should be disclosed where a gain or loss on a hedging instrument
has been recognised directly in equity: the amount recognised during the period; and the
amount transferred from equity to profit or loss during the period.

B Terms, conditions and accounting policies

The following information should be disclosed for each class of financial asset, financial liability
and equity instrument, both recognised and unrecognised.

STUDY TEXT

a) Information about the extent and nature of the financial instruments, including
significant terms and conditions that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of
future cash flows.

b) Accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition and
the basis of measurement applied.

M Interest rate risk

The following information should be disclosed for each class of financial asset and financial
liability, both recognised and unrecognised, about an entity’s exposure to interest rate risk.

a) Contractual repricing or maturity dates, whichever are earlier

b) Effective interest rates, where applicable
In other words, this information shows what interest rate is in force at the moment
and how long it is likely to be before these changes, allowing a full appreciation of
interest rate risk.
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B Credit risk

The following should be disclosed by an entity for each class of financial asset, both recognised
and unrecognised, about its exposure to credit risk.

a) The amount that best represents its maximum credit risk exposure at the balance
sheet date, without taking account of the fair value of any collateral, in the event other
parties fail to perform their obligations under financial instruments.

b) Significant concentrations of credit risk

This information allows users of the financial statements to assess the extent to which failures
by counterparties to discharge their obligations could reduce future cash inflows from financial
assets on hand at the balance sheet date. However, an assessment of the probability of such
losses occurring (which would be recognised in the income statement) is not required.

B Fair value

Information about fair value should be disclosed for each class of financial asset and financial
liability, in a way that permits it to be compared with the corresponding carrying amount in
the balance sheet.

Fair value information is very important as it is widely used for business purposes in determining an
entity’s overall financial position and in making decisions about individual financial instruments.
It reflects the judgment of the market as to the present value of expected future cash flows
related to the instrument. It permits comparisons of financial instruments having substantially
the same economic characteristics and it also provides a basis for assessing management’s
stewardship by indicating the effects of its decisions to buy, sell or hold financial assets.
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Where investments in unquoted equity instruments are measured at cost under IAS 39 because
their fair value cannot be measured reliably, that fact should be stated together with a description
of the financial instruments: their carrying amount, an explanation of why fair value cannot be
measured reliably and, if possible, the range of estimates within which value is highly likely to
lie.

In addition, the following information should be disclosed.

a) For each significant class of instruments, the methods and significant assumptions
applied in determining fair value

b)  Whether fair values are determined directly by reference to published price quotations
in an active market or are estimated using a valuation technique

c) The total amount of the change in fair value estimated using a valuation technique that
was recognised in profit and loss during the period.
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B Other disclosures

IAS 32 requires various other disclosures which are intended to enhance financial statements
users’ understanding of financial instruments. These include material items of income, expense
and gains and losses resulting from financial assets and financial liabilities.

IAS 39 RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

IAS 39 financial instruments: Recognition and measurement establishes principles for recognising
and measuring financial assets and financial liabilities.

B Scope

IAS 39 applies to all entities and all types of financial instruments except those specifically
excluded, as listed below.

a) Investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures covered by IASs 27, 28
and 31, unless:

i. These investments are held exclusively with a view to their subsequent disposal in
the near future; or

STUDY TEXT

ii. They are subsidiaries excluded from consolidation.
b) Leases coveredin IAS 17
c) Employee benefit plans covered in IAS 19
d) Insurance contracts
e) Equity instruments issued by the entity e.g options and warrants#
f)  Financial guarantee contracts

g) Contracts for contingent consideration in a business combination, covered in IAS
22

h) Contracts requiring payment based on climatic, geological or other physical
variables

i) Loan commitments that cannot be settled net in cash or another financial instrument

j)  Financial instruments, contracts and obligations under share-based payment
transactions covered in IFRS 2
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Initial recognition

Financial instruments should be recognised in the balance sheet when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Point to note: an important consequence of this is that all derivatives should be on the balance
sheet.

Notice that this is different from the recognition criteria in the framework and in most other
standards. Items are normally recognised when there is a probable inflow or outflow of resources
and the item has a cost or value that can be measured reliably.

>>> Example: Initial recognition
An entity has entered into two separate contracts.

a) Afirm commitment (an order) to buy a specific quantity of iron
b) A forward contract to buy a specific quantity of iron at a specified date
Contract (a) is a normal trading contract. The entity does not recognise a liability for the iron

until the goods have actually been delivered. (Note that this contract is not a financial instrument
because it involves a physical asset, rather than a financial asset).

Contract (b) is a financial instrument. Under IAS 39, the entity recognises a financial liability
(an obligation to deliver cash) on the commitment date, rather than waiting for the closing date
in which the exchange takes place.

Note that planned future transactions, no matter how likely, are not assets and liabilities of an
entity — the entity has not yet become a party to the contract.

[[] Transition and initial recognition

In December 2004 the IASB issued an amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: recognition
and measurement introducing an additional transitional relief that applies on adoption of one
aspect of the revised version of this standard issued in December 2003. Under the standard,
the fair value of a financial instrument at the date of its acquisition is taken to be the transaction
price unless a different value is available based on observable market prices — so in absence of
such prices, no immediate profit (‘day one profit’) can arise. The new amendment means that
no restatement of earlier transactions is required on first applying this prohibition on recognising
day one profits; the date from which transactions are restated can be either 1 January 2004, or
25 October 2002 (the effective date of similar requirements in US GAAP, thus allowing entities
who also report under US GAAP to adopt the new requirements consistently).
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[] Derecognition

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial instrument from an entity’s
balance sheet.

An entity should derecognise a financial asset when:

a) The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire; or

b) It transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset to another party.

Question
Can you think of an example of a situation in which:

. An entity has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,

. An entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,

Answer
IAS 39 includes the following examples:

a) i) anunconditional sale of a financial asset
i) a sale of a financial asset together with an option to repurchase the financial asset
at its fair value at the time of repurchase.

b) i) a sale and repurchase transaction where the repurchase price is a fixed price or
the sale price plus a lender’s return

ii) a sale of a financial asset together with a total return swap that transfers the
market risk exposure back to the entity

The principle here is that of substance over form.

An entity should derecognise a financial liability when it is extinguished — i.e. when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

It is possible for only part of a financial asset or liability to be derecognised. This is allowed if
the part comprises:
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a) only specifically identified cash flows; or
b) only a fully proportionate (pro rata) share of the total cash flows

for example, if an entity holds a bond it has the right to two separate sets of cash inflows: those
relating to the principal and those relating to the interest. It could sell the right to receive the
interest to another party while retaining the right to receive the principal.

On derecognition, the amount to be included in net profit or loss for the period is calculated as
follows:

Formula to learn

KSh. KSh.
Carrying amount of asset/liability (or the portion of asset/liability) transferred
Less: proceeds received/paid X
Any cumulative gain or loss reported in equity X

< X

Difference to net profit/loss

Where only part of a financial asset is derecognised, the carrying amount of the asset should be
allocated between the parts retained and the part transferred based on their relative fair values
on the date of transfer. A gain or loss should be recognised based on the proceeds for the portion
transferred.
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B Section summary

a) All financial assets and liabilities should be recognised on the balance sheet,
including derivatives.

b) Financial assets should be derecognised when the rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire or where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are

transferred to another party.

c) Financial liabilities should be derecognised when they are extinguished.
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IAS 39 MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

[] Initial measurement

Financial instruments are initially measured at the fair value of the consideration given or
received (i.e. cost) plus (in most cases) transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial instrument.

The exception to this rule is where a financial instrument is designated as at fair value through
profit or loss (this term is explained below). In this case, transaction costs are not added to
fair value at initial recognition.

The fair value of the consideration is normally the transaction price or market prices. If market
prices are not reliable, the fair value may be estimated using a valuation technique (for example,
by discounting cash flows).

[] Subsequent measurement

For the purposes of measuring a financial asset held subsequent to initial recognition, IAS 39
classifies financial assets into four categories defined here.

STUDY TEXT
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A financial asset or liability at fair value through profit or loss meets either of the following
conditions:

a) ltis classified as held for trading. A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if
it is:

a. Acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term.

b. Part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.

c. Aderivative (unless it is a designated and effective hedging instrument).

b)  Upon initial recognition it is designated by the entity as at fair value through profit or loss.
Any financial instrument may be so designated when it is initially recognised except for
investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Held — to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity that an entity has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity
other than:

a) Those that the entity upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or
loss.

b) Those that the entity designates as available for sale

c) Those that meet the definition of loans and receivables

Key terms
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market, other than:

a) Those that the entity intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which should be
classified as held for trading and those that the entity upon initial recognition designates
as at far value through profit or loss.

b) Those that the entity upon initial recognition designates as available —for-sale

c) Those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of the initial investment, other
than because of credit deterioration, which shall be classified as available for sale.
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An interest acquired in a pool of assets that are not loans or receivables (for example, an
interest in a mutual fund or a similar fund) is not a loan or a receivable.

Available-for-sale-financial assets are those financial assets that are not:
1) Loans and receivables originated by the entity

2) Held-to-maturity investments
3) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(IAS 39)

After initial recognition, all financial assets should be measured to fair value, without any
deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on sale of other disposal, except for:

1. Loans and receivables
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2. Held to maturity investments
3. Investment in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliable measured and derivatives that is

linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments.

Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments should be measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Key term

Amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus
the cumulative amortisation of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, and minus any write-down (directly or through the use of an allowance account) for
impairment or uncollectability.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
instrument and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period.

The effective interest method is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument.  (IAS 39)

Hl >>> Example: Amortised cost
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On 1 January 20 x 1 Biashara Co purchases a debt instrument for its value of KSh.1,000. The
debt instrument is due to mature on 31 December 20 x 5. The instrument has a principal amount
of KSh.1,250 and the instrument carries fixed interest at 4.72% that is paid annually.

How should Biashara Co. account for the debt instrument over its five year term?

Solution

Biashara Co will receive interest of KSh.59 (1,250 x 4.72%) each year and KSh.1,250 when the
instrument matures.

Biashara must allocate the discount of KSh.250 and the interest receivable over the five year
term at a constant rate on the carrying amount of the debt. To do this, it must apply the effective
interest rate of 10%.
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The following table shows the allocation over the years:

income statement interest received

Amortised cost at

Year interest income for (cash flow) amortised cost

Beginning of year | during year (@10%) at end of year
KSh. KSh. KSh. KSh.
20 x 1 1,000 100 (59) 1,041
20x 2 1,041 104 (59) 1,086
20x 3 1,086 109 (59) 1,136
20 x 4 1,136 113 (59) 1,190
(1,250 + i

20x5 1,190 119 59)

Each year the carrying amount of the financial asset is increased by the interest income for the
year and reduced by the interest actually received during the year.

Investments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured should be measured at cost.

[[] Classification

There is a certain amount of flexibility in that any financial instrument can be designated at fair
value through profit or loss. However, this is a once and for all choice and has to be made
on initial recognition. Once a financial instrument has been classified in this way it cannot be
reclassified, even if it would otherwise be possible to measure it at cost or amortised cost.
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In contrast, it is quite difficult for an entity not to remeasure financial instruments to fair value.

Notice that derivates must be remeasured to fair value. This is because it would be misleading
to measure them at cost.

For a financial instrument to be held to maturity it must meet several extremely narrow criteria.
The entity must have a positive intent and demonstrated ability to hold the investment to
maturity. These conditions are not met if:

a) The entity intends to hold the financial asset for an undefined period

b) The entity stands ready to sell the financial asset in response to changes in interest
rates or risks, liquidity needs and similar factors (unless these situations could not
possibly have been reasonably anticipated).

c) The issuer has the right to settle the financial asset at an amount significantly below its
amortised cost (because this right will almost certainly be exercised)
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d) It does not have the financial resources available to continue to finance the investment
until maturity.

e) ltis subject to an existing legal or other constraint that could frustrate its intention to
hold the financial asset to maturity.

In addition, an equity instruments is unlikely to meet the criteria for classification as held to
maturity.

There is a penalty for selling or reclassifying a ‘held-to-maturity’ investment other than in certain
very tightly defined circumstances. If this has occurred during the current financial year or during
the two preceding financial years no financial asset can be classified as held-to-maturity.

If an entity can no longer hold an investment to maturity, it is no longer appropriate to use amortised
cost and the asset must be re-measured to fair value. All remaining held-to-maturity investments
must also be re-measured to fair value and classified as available-for-sale (see above).

B Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

After initial recognition, all financial liabilities should be measured at amortised cost, with the
exception of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (including most derivatives).
These should be measured at fair value, but where the fair value is not capable of reliable
measurement, they should be measured at cost.

Question: Measurement

Hatari Co issues a bond for KSh.503,778 on 1 January 20 x 2. No interest is payable on the
bond, but it will be held to maturity and redeemed on 31 December 20 x 4 for KSh.600,000. The
bond has not been designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

STUDY TEXT

Required

Calculated the change to the income statement of Hatari Co for the year ended 31 December 20x
2 and the balance outstanding at 31 December 20 x 2.

Answer

The bond is a ‘deep discount’ bond and is a financial liability of Hatari Co. It is measured at
amortised cost. Although there is no interest as such, the difference between the initial cost of
the bond and the price at which it will be redeemed is a finance cost. This must be allocated over
the term of the bond at a constant rate on the carrying amount.

To calculate amortised cost we need to calculate the effective interest rate of the bond:
600.000 = 1.191
503,778
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From tables, the interest rate is 6%.
The charge to the income statement is KSh.30,226 (503,778 x 6%)
The balance outstanding at 31 December 20 x 2 is KSh.534,004 (503,778 + 30,226)

B Gains and losses

Instruments at fair value through profit or loss: gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss (i.e. in the income statement).

Available for sale financial assets: gains and losses are recognised directly in equity through
the statement of changes in equity. When the asset is derecognised the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity should be recognised in profit and loss.

Financial instruments carried at amortised cost: gains and losses are recognised in profit and
loss as a result of the amortisation process and when the asset is derecognised.

Financial assets and financial assets that are hedged items: special rules apply (discussed later
in this chapter).

Question: Types of investment

Hiza Ltd. entered into the following transactions during the year ended 31 December 20 x 3:

a) Entered into a speculative interest rate option costing KSh.10,000 on 1 January 20 x 3
to borrow KSh.6,000,000 from AB bank commencing 31 March 20 x 5 for 6 months at
4%. The value of the option at 31 December 20 x 3 was KSh.15,250.

b) Purchased 6% debenturesin FG Coon 1January 20 x 1 (theirissue date) for KSh.150,000
as an investment. Ellesmere Co intends to hold the debentures until their redemption
at a premium in 5 year’s time. The effective rate of interest of the bond is 8.0%.

c) Purchased 50,000 sharesin ST Co on 1 July 20 x 3 for KSh.3.50 each as an investment.
The share price on 31 December 20 x 3 was KSh.3.75.
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Required

Show the accounting treatment and relevant extracts from the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 20 x 3, Hiza Ltd only designates financial assets as at fair value through
profit or loss where this is unavoidable.

Solution

BALANCE SHEET EXTRACTS

KSh.
Financial assets: 15,250
Interest rate option (W1) 15,250
4% debentures in MT Co. (W2) 153,000
Shares in EG Co (W3) 187,500
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INCOME STATEMENT EXTRACTS

KSh.
Financial income:
Gain on interest rate option (W1) 5,250
Effective interest on 6% debentures (W2) 12,000

Workings

a) interest rate option
This is a derivative and so it must be treated as at fair value through profit or loss
Initial measurement (at cost)
DEBIT Financial asset KSh.10,000
CREDIT Cash KSh.10,000
At 31.12.20 x 3 (re-measured to fair value)
DEBIT Financial asset KSh.5,250
CREDIT Income statement KSh.5,250

b) Debentures

On the basis of the information provided, this can be treated as a held-to-maturity
investment.

STUDY TEXT

Initial measurement (at cost)

DEBIT Financial asset KSh.150,000
CREDIT Cash KSh.150,000

At 31.12.20 x 3 (amortised cost):

DEBIT Financial asset (150,000 x 8%) KSh.12,000

CREDIT Finance income KSh.12,000
DEBIT Cash (150,000 x 6%) KSh.9,000
CREDIT Financial asset KSh.9,000

Amortised cost at 31.12.20 x 3
(150,000 + 12,000 — 9,000) KSh.153,000
c) Shares

these are treated as an available for sale financial asset (shares cannot normally be
held to maturity and they are clearly not loans or receivables).
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Initial measurement (at cost):

DEBIT Financial asset (50,000 x KSh.3.50) KSh.175,000
CREDIT Cash KSh.175,000

At 31.12. 20 x 3 (re-measured to fair value)

DEBIT Financial asset ((50,000 x KSh.3.75) - KSh.175,000)) KSh.12,500
CREDIT Equity KSh.12,500

B Impairment and uncollectability of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, an entity should assess whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of assets is impaired.

QUESTION: Impairment

Give examples of indications that a financial asset or group of assets may be impaired.

Answer

IAS 39 lists the following:

d Significant financial difficulty of the issuer
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. A breach of contract, such as a default in interest or principal payments

. The lender granting a concession to the borrowers that the lender would not otherwise
consider, for reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty

. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

. The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the entity should determine the amount of any
impairment loss.

B Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The impairment loss is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and its recoverable
amount. The asset’s recoverable amount is the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial instrument’s original effective interest rate.



ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

B Financial assets carried at cost

Unquoted equity instruments are carried at cost if their fair value cannot be reliably measured.
The impairment loss is the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial instrument. Such impairment losses cannot be reversed.

B Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are carried at fair value and gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity. Any impairment loss on an available for sale financial asset should be removed
from equity and recognised in net profit or loss for the period even though the financial
asset has not been derecognised.

The impairment loss is the difference between its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value (for equity instruments) or recoverable amount (for debt
instruments), less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses relating to equity instruments cannot be reversed, impairment losses relating
to debt instruments may be reversed if, in a later period, the fair value of the instrument increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the loss was recognised.

B >>> Example: Impairment

Broadfield Co purchased 5% debentures in X co at 1 January 20 x 3 (their issue date) for
KSh.100,000. The term of the debentures was 5 years and the maturity value is KSh.130,525.
The effective rate of interest on the debentures is 10% and the company has classified them as
held-to-maturity financial asset.

STUDY TEXT

At the end of 20 x 4 x Co went into liquidation. All interest had been until the date. On 31
December 20 x 4 the liquidator of X Co announced that no further interest would be paid and only
80% of the maturity value would be repaid, on the original repayment date.

The market interest rate on similar bonds is 8% on that date.

Required

a) What value should the debentures have been stated at just before the impairment
became apparent?

b) At what value should the debentures be stated at 31 December 20 x 4, after the
impairment?

¢) How will the impairment be reported in the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 20 x 47?
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Solution

6  The debenture are classified a held —to-maturity financial asset and so they would have
been stated at amortised cost:

KSh.
Initial cost 100,000
Interest at 10% 10,000
Cash at 5% (5.000)
At 31 December 20 x 3 105,000
Interest at 10% 10,500
Cash at 5% (5.000)
At 31 December 20 x 4 110,500

7  After the impairment, the debentures are stated at their recoverable amount (using the
original effective interest rate of 10%):
80% x KSh.130,525 x 0.751 = KSh.78,419

8 The impairment of KSh.32,081 (KSh.110,500 - KSh.78,419) should be recorded:
Dr Income statement KSh.32,081
Cr Financial asset KSh.32,081
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B Section summary

a) Initial recognition, financial instruments are measured at cost.

b) Subsequent measurement depends on how a financial asset is classified.

c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value; gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

d) Available for sale assets are measured at fair value; gains and losses are taken to
equity.

e) Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments are measured at amortised
cost; gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

f)  Financial liabilities are normally measured at amortised cost, unless they have been
classified as at fair value through profit and loss.
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[l Hedging

IAS 39 requires hedge accounting where there is a designated hedging relationship between
a hedging instrument and a hedged item. It is prohibited otherwise.

Key term

Hedging, for accounting purposes, means designating one or more hedging instruments so
that their change in fair value is an offset, in whole or in part, by the change in fair value or
cash flows of a hedged item.

A hedged item is an asset, liability, firm commitment, or forecasted future transaction that:

a) Exposes the entity to risk of changes in fair value or changes in future cash flows, and
that

b) Is designated as being hedged.

A hedging instrument is a designated derivative or (in limited circumstances) another
financial asset or liability whose fair value or cash flows are expected to offset changes in the
value or cash flows of a designated hedged item. (A non-derivative financial asset or liability
may be designated as a hedging instrument for hedge accounting purposes only if it hedges
the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates).

Hedge effectiveness is the degree to which changes in the fair value or cash flows of the
hedged item attributable to a hedged risk are offset by changes in the fair value or cash flows
of the hedging instrument. (IAS 39)

In simple terms, entities hedge to reduce their exposure to risk and uncertainty, such as changes
in prices, interest rates of foreign exchange rates. Hedge accounting recognises hedging
relationships by allowing (for example) losses on a hedged item to be offset against gains on a
hedging instrument.

Generally only assets, liabilities etc that involve external parties can be designated as hedged
items. The foreign currency risk of an intragroup monetary item (eg payable/receivable between
two subsidiaries) may qualify as a hedged item in the group financial statements if it results in an
exposure to foreign exchange rate gains or losses that are not fully eliminated on consolidation.
This can happen (per IAS 21) when the transaction is between entities with different functional
currencies.

In addition the foreign currency risk of a highly probable group transaction may qualify as a
hedged item if it is in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity and the foreign
currency risk will affect profit or loss.
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H >>> Example: Hedging

A company owns inventories of 20,000 gallons of oil which cost KSh.400,000 on 1 December 20
x 3.

In order to hedge the fluctuation in the market value of the oil the company signs a futures contact
to deliver 20,000 gallons of oil on 31 March 20 x 4 at the futures price of KSh.22 per gallon.

The market price of oil on 31 December 20 x 3 is KSh.23 per gallon and the futures price for
delivery on 31 March 20 x 4 is KSh. 24 per gallon.
Required

Explain the impact of the transactions on the financial statements of the company:

a) Without hedge accounting
b)  With hedge accounting

Solution

The futures contract was intended to protect the company from a fall in oil prices (which would
have reduced the profit when the oil was eventually sold). However, oil prices have actually
risen, so that the company has made a loss on the contract.

B Without hedge accounting:
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The futures contract is a derivative and therefore must be remeasured to fair value under IAS 39.
The loss on the futures contract is recognised in the income statement:

DEBIT Income statement (20,000 x 24 — 22) KSh.40,000
CREDIT Financial liability KSh.40,000

With hedge accounting

The loss on the futures contract is recognised in the income statement as before.

The inventories are revalued to fair value:

KSh.
Fair value at 31 December 20 x 4 (20,000 x 23) 460,000
Cost (400.000)

Gain 5_0_»0_0_0
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The gain is also recognised in the income statement
DEBIT Inventory KSh.60,000
CREDIT Income statement KSh.60,000

The net effect on the income statement is a gain of KSh.20,000 compared with a loss of
KSh.40,000 without hedging.

B The standard identifies three types of hedging relationship

Key terms

Fair value hedge: a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset
or liability, or an identified portion of such an asset or liability, that is attributable to a particular
risk and could affect profit or loss.

Cash flow hedge: a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that
a) Is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability (such as
all or some future interest payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable forecast

transaction (such as an anticipated purchase or sale), and that

b) Could affect profit or loss.

STUDY TEXT

Hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation: AS 21 defines a net investment in a
foreign operation as the amount of the reporting entity’s interest in the net assets of that
operation. (IAS 39)

The hedge in the example above is a fair value hedge (it hedges exposure to changes in the fair
value of a recognised asset: the oil).

B Conditions for hedge accounting

Before a hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting, all of the following conditions
must be met.

. The hedging relationship must be designated at its inception as a hedge based on
the entity’s risk management objective and strategy. The must be formal documentation
(including identification of the hedged item, the hedging instrument, the nature of
the risk that is to be hedged and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument’s
effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s value or cash
flows attributable to the hedged risk).

. The hedge is expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value
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or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. (Note: the hedge need not necessarily be
fully effective).

. For cash flow hedges, a forecast transaction that is the subject of the hedge must be
highly probable and must present an exposure to variations in cash flows that could
ultimately affect profit and loss.

. The effectiveness of the hedge can be measured reliably.

. The hedge is assessed on an ongoing basis (annually) and has been effective during

the reporting period.

[[]  Accounting treatment

MW Fair value hedges

The gain or loss resulting from re-measuring the hedging instrument at fair value is recognised
in profit or loss.

The gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk should adjust the carrying
amount of the hedged item and be recognised in profit or loss.

H Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to be an effective
hedge shall be recognised directly in equity through the statement of changes in equity.

The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instruments should be recognised
in profit or loss.

When a hedging transaction results in the recognition of an asset or liability, changes in the value
of the hedging instrument recognised in equity either:

. Are adjusted against the carrying of the asset or liability, or

. Affect the income statement at the same time as the hedged item (for example, through
depreciation or sale).

H Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly
in equity through the statement of changes in equity.
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. The ineffective portion is recognised in profit and loss.
On disposal of the foreign operation, gains and losses on the hedging instrument that have been
taken to equity are ‘recycled’ and recognised in profit or loss.

>>> Example: Cash flow hedge

Alpha Co signs a contract on 1 November 20 x 1 to purchase an asset on 1 November 20 x 2
for £60,000,000. Bets reports in US $ and hedges this transactions by entering into a forward
contract to by £60,000,000 on 1 November 20 x 2 at US$1: £1.5.

Spot and forward exchange rates at the following dates are:

Spot Forward (for delivery on 1.11.x 2)
1.11 x 1 US$1: £1.45 US$1:£1.5
31.12. x1 US$1: £1.20 US$1:£1.24
1.11. X2 US$1: £1.0 US$1:£1.0 (actual)

Required

Show the double entries relating to these transactions at 1 November 20 x 1, 31 December 20 x
1 and 1 November 20 x 2.

Solution

Entries at 1 November 20 x 1

The value of the forward contract at inception is zero so no entries recorded (other than any
transaction costs), but risk disclosures will be made.

The contractual commitment to buy the asset would be disclosed if material (IAS 16).

Entries at 31 December 20 x 1

Gain on forward contract:

$
Value of contract at 31.12. x 1 (£60,000,000/1.24) 48,387,097
Value of contract at 1.11.x 1 (£60,000,000/1.5) 40,000,000

Gain on contract 8,387,097
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Compare to movement in value of asset (unrecognised):

Increase in $cost of asset
(£60,000,000/1.20 - £60,000,000/1.45) $8,620,690

As this is higher, the hedge is deemed fully effective at this point:

DEBIT Financial asset (forward a/c) $8,387,097
CREDIT Equity $8,387,097

Entries at 1 November 20 x 2

Additional gain on forward contract

$
Value of contract at 1.11.x2 (£60,000,000/1.0) 60,000,000
Value of contract at 31.12.x1 (£60,000,000/1.24) 48.387.097
Gain on contract 11,612

Compare to movement in value of asset (unrecognised):

Increase in $cost of asset
(£60,000,000/1.0 - £60,000,000/1.2

Therefore, the hedge is not fully effective during this period, but is still highly effective (and hence
hedge accounting can be used):

$10,000/ $11,612,903 = 86% which is within the 80% - 125% bandings

DEBIT Financial asset (forward a/c) $11,612,903
CREDIT Equity $10,000,000
CREDIT Income statement $1,612,903

Purchase of asset at market price

DEBIT asset (£60,000,000/1.0) $60,000,000
CREDIT Cash $60,000,000

Settlement of forward contract

DEBIT Cash $20,000,000
CREDIT financial asset (forward a/c) $20,000,000
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Realisation of gain on hedging instrument

The cumulative gain of $18,387,097 recognised in equity:

(i) Istransferred to the income statements as the asset is used, i.e. over the asset’s useful
life: or

(i)  Adjusts the initial cost of the asset (reducing future depreciation).

B Section Summary

. Hedge accounting means designating one or more instruments so that their change in
fair value is offset by the change in fair value or cash flows of another item.
relationship is clearly defined, measurable and actually effective.

. There are three types of hedge; fair value hedge; cash flow hedge; hedge of a net
investment in a foreign operation.

. The accounting treatment of a hedge depends on its type.

Please refer to the appendix in IAS 39 for further illustrations on financial instruments.

STUDY TEXT

IFRS 7 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: DISCLOSURES

[] Overview of IFRS 7

® Adds certain new disclosures about financial instruments to those currently required by
IAS 32;

® Replaces the disclosures now required by IAS 30; and
® Puts all of those financial instruments disclosures together in a new standard on

Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The remaining parts of IAS 32 deal only with
financial instruments presentation matters.

[[] Disclosure Requirements of IFRS 7:

® An entity must group its financial instruments into classes of similar instruments and,
when disclosures are required, make disclosures by class.
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B The two main categories of disclosures required by IFRS 7 are:

1.

2.

Information about the significance of financial instruments.

Information about the nature and extent of risks arising from financial insturments.

H Information about the significance of financial instruments

Balance Sheet

O]

Disclosure of the significance of financial instruments for an entity’s financial position
and performance. This includes disclosures for each of the following categories:

o Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss, showing
separately those held for trading and those designated at initial recognition.
Held-to-maturity investments.

Loans and receivables.

Available-for-sale assets.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss, showing separately those
held for trading and those designated at initial recognition.

o Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

O O O O

Special disclosures about financial assets and financial liabilities designated to be
measured at fair value through profit and loss, including disclosures about credit risk
and market risk and changes in fair values

Reclassifications of financial instruments from fair value to amortised cost or vice
versa

Disclosures about derecognitions, including transfers of financial assets for which
derecogntion accounting is not permitted by IAS 39

Information about financial assets pledged as collateral and about financial or non-
financial assets held as collaters|

Reconciliation of the allowance account for credit losses (bad debts).

Information about compound financial instruments with multiple embedded
derivatives.

Breaches of terms of loan agreements.
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Income Statement and Equity

® Items of income, expense, gains, and losses, with separate disclosure of gains and
losses from:

o Financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss, showing
separately those held for trading and those designated at initial recognition.
Held-to-maturity investments.

Loans and receivables.

Available-for-sale assets.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss, showing
separately those held for trading and those designated at initial recognition.
o Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

o O O O

® Interest income and interest expense for those financial instruments that are not
measured at fair value through profit and loss

® Fee income and expense
® Amount of impairment losses on financial assets

® Interest income on impaired financial assets

Other Disclosures

®  Accounting policies for financial instruments

STUDY TEXT

® Information about hedge accounting, including:

o Description of each hedge, hedging instrument, and fair values of those
instruments, and nature of risks being hedged.

o For cash flow hedges, the periods in which the cash flows are expected to occur,
when they are expected to enter into the determination of profit or loss, and a
description of any forecast transaction for which hedge accounting had previously
been used but which is no longer expected to occur.

o Ifagain or loss on a hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge has been
recognised directly in equity, an entity should disclose the following:

® The amount that was so recognised in equity during the period.
® The amount that was removed from equity and included in profit or loss for the period.

® The amount that was removed from equity during the period and included in the initial
measurement of the acquisition cost or other carrying amount of a non-financial asset
or non- financial liability in a hedged highly probable forecast transaction.

o For fair value hedges, information about the fair value changes of the hedging
instrument and the hedged item.

o Hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit and loss (separately for cash flow
hedges and hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation).
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® Information about the fair values of each class of financial asset and financial liability,
along with:
o Comparable carrying amounts.
o Description of how fair value was determined.
o Detailed information if fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Note that disclosure of fair values is not required when the carrying amount is a reasonable
¢ approximation of fair value, such as short-term trade receivables and payables, or for instruments
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably.

I:I Nature and extent of exposure to risks arising from financial
instruments

H Qualitative disclosures

® The qualitative disclosures describe:
o Risk exposures for each type of financial instrument.
o Management’s objectives, policies, and processes for managing those risks.
o Changes from the prior period.

B Quantitative disclosures

STUDY TEXT

® The quantitative disclosures provide information about the extent to which the entity is
exposed to risk, based on information provided internally to the entity’s key management
personnel. These disclosures include:
o Summary quantitative data about exposure to each risk at the reporting date.
o Disclosures about credit risk, liquidity risk, and market risk as further described
below.
o Concentrations of risk.

H Credit Risk

© Disclosures about credit risk include:

o Maximum amount of exposure (before deducting the value of collateral),
description of collateral, information about credit quality of financial assets that are
neither past due nor impaired, and information about credit quality of financial
assets whose terms have been renegotiated.

o For financial assets that are past due or impaired, analytical disclosures are
required.

o Information about collateral or other credit enhancements obtained or called.
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W Liquidity Risk

® Disclosures about liquidity risk include:
o A maturity analysis of financial liabilities.
o Description of approach to risk management.

B Market Risk

® Market risk is the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market prices. Market risk reflects interest rate risk, currency
risk, and other price risks.

® Disclosures about market risk include:

o A sensitivity analysis of each type of market risk to which the entity is exposed.

o IFRS 7 provides that if an entity prepares a sensitivity analysis for management
purposes that reflects interdependencies of more than one component of market
risk (for instance, interest risk and foreign currency risk combined), it may disclose
that analysis instead of a separate sensitivity analysis for each type of market risk.

[] Application Guidance

An appendix of mandatory application guidance is part of the standard.

There is also an appendix of non-mandatory implementation guidance that describes how an
entity might provide the disclosures required by IFRS 7.

STUDY TEXT

B Effective Date

IFRS 7 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007, with earlier
application encouraged. Early appliers are given some relief with respect to comparative prior
period disclosures.

B Withdrawn and Amended Pronouncements

IFRS 7 supersedes:

® IAS 30 Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar Financial
Institutions

The disclosure requirements of IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and Disclosure.
However the presentation requirements of IAS 32 remain unchanged
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[
- CHAPTER SUMMARY

Lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee, in return for rent, the right to
use an asset for an agreed period of time.

Lessor: This is the person, who under an agreement conveys to another person (the lessee) the
right to use in return for rent, an asset for an agreed period of time.

Lessee: this is a person, who under an agreement obtains from another person (the lessor) the
right to use, in return for rent, an asset for an agreed period of time.

Lease term: the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has contracted to take on lease
the asset together with any further periods for which the lessee has the option to continue the
lease of the asset, with or without further payment which option at the inception of the lease it is
reasonably certain that the lessee will exercise.

Minimum lease payments: the payments over the lease term that the lessee is or can be
required to make (excluding costs for services and taxes to be paid by and be reimbursable to
the lessor) together with the residual value.

Gross investment in the lease: the aggregate of the minimum lease payments under a finance
lease from the standpoint of the lessor.
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Unearned finance income: the difference between the lessor’s gross investment in the lease
and its present value.

Net investment in the lease: the gross investment in the lease less unearned finance income.

Impairment: a fall in the value of an asset so that its recoverable amount is now less than its
carrying value in the balance sheet.

Carrying amount: is the net value at which the asset is included in the balance sheet (i.e. after
deducting accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses).

Financial instrument: A contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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Equity instrument: Any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Currency risk: is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates.

Interest rate risk: is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates.

Price risk: is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument
or its issuer or factors affecting all securities traded in the market.

Credit risk: The risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

Liquid risk (or funding risk): The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial instruments.

Cash flow interest rate risk: The risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.
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[
- CHAPTER QUIZ

1. What is a non-cancelable lease?
2. Distinguish between a financial asset and financial liability.

3. Give examples of indications that a financial asset or group of assets may be
impaired.
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|
. ANSWERS TO THE CHAPTER QUIZ

1. Non-cancelable lease is a lease that is cancelable only:

. Upon the occurrence of some remote contingency

. With the permission of the lessor

. If the lessee enters into a new lease for the same or any equivalent asset with the same
lessor, or

. Upon payment by the lessee of an additional amount such that at inception continuation
of lease is reasonably certain

2. a)Financial asset is any asset that is:

(i) cash;
(i) an equity instrument of another entity;
(iii) a contractual right:

to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially favourable to the entity; or

a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:

a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable number
of the entity’s own equity instruments; or

a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments.
For this purpose the entity’s own equity instruments do not include instruments that
are themselves contracts for the future receipt or delivery of the entity’s own equity
instruments.

© 060 6006

STUDY TEXT

b) Financial liability is any liability that is:

(i) a contractual obligation:

o to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

o to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions
that are potentially unfavourable to the entity; or

(iii) a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments
3. 1AS 39 lists the following:

® Significant financial difficulty of the issuer

® Abreach of contract, such as a default in interest or principal payments

® The lender granting a concession to the borrowers that the lender would not otherwise
consider, for reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty

® It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy

® The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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[
. PAST PAPER ANALYSIS

Leases were tested in the following examinations:
1207
12/'04

Impairment of Assets was tested in the following examinations:
12/04
05/'02
12/'00

|
- EXAM QUESTIONS

QUESTION ONE
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(@) Inthe context of IAS 17 (Leases), briefly explain the meaning of the following terms:

(i) Finance lease. (2 marks)
(ii) Guaranteed residual value. (2 marks)
(iif) Contingent rent. (2 marks)

(b) Silversands Manufacturing Company Ltd. has entered into an agreement with a finance
company, to lease a machine for a four year period. Under the terms of the agreement,
the machine is to be made available to Silversands Manufacturing Company Ltd. on 1
January 2005, when an immediate payment of Sh. 2,550,000 will be made, followed by
seven semi-annual payments of an equivalent amount.

The fair market price of the machine on 1 January 2005 is expected to be Sh. 16,320,000.
The estimated life of this type of machine is four years. The implicit rate of interest in
the transaction is 6.94% payable semi-annually and the corporate tax rate is 30%.
Silversands Manufacturing Company Ltd. has a policy of depreciating machines of this
type over a four year period on the straight line basis.

Assume the lease is to be capitalised.
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Required:

(i) Show how the above transactions will be reflected in the profit and loss account of
Silversands Manufacturing Company Ltd. for each of the four years ending 31 December
2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008. (8 marks)

(i) Balance sheet extracts of Silversands Manufacturing Company Ltd. as at 31 December
2005 and 2006. (6 marks)
(use the actuarial method to allocate the interest charge)
(Total: 20 marks)

(CPA DEC 2004)

QUESTION TWO (ACCA)

(@) IAS 36 Impairment of assets was issued in June 1998 and subsequently amended in
March 2004. Its main objective is to prescribe the procedures that should ensure that
an entity’s assets are included in its balance sheet at no more than their recoverable
amounts. Where an asset is carried at an amount in excess of its recoverable amount,
it is said to be impaired and IAS 36 requires an impairment loss to be recognised.

Required:

(i) Define an impairment loss explaining the relevance of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use; and state how frequently assets should be tested for
impairment; (6 marks)

Note: your answer should NOT describe the possible indicators of impairment.
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(ii) Explain how an impairment loss is accounted for after it has been calculated.
(5 marks)

(b) The assistant financial controller of the Wilderness group, a public listed company, has
identified the matters below which she believes may indicate impairment to one or more
assets:

(i) Wilderness owns and operates an item of plant that cost Ksh.640,000 and had
accumulated depreciation of Ksh.400,000 at 1 October 2004. It is being depreciated
at 121/2% on cost. On 1 April 2005 (exactly half way through the year) the plant was
damaged when a factory vehicle collided into it. Due to the unavailability of replacement
parts, itis not possible to repair the plant, but it still operates, albeit at a reduced capacity.
Also it is expected that as a result of the damage the remaining life of the plant from the
date of the damage will be only two years. Based on its reduced capacity, the estimated
present value of the plant in use is Ksh.150,000. The plant has a current disposal value
of Ksh.20,000 (which will be nil in two years’ time), but Wilderness has been offered
a trade-in value of Ksh.180,000 against a replacement machine which has a cost of
Ksh.1 million (there would be no disposal costs for the replaced plant). Wilderness is
reluctant to replace the plant as it is worried about the long-term demand for the product
produced by the plant. The trade-in value is only available if the plant is replaced.
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Required:

(i) Prepare extracts from the balance sheet and income statement of Wilderness in
respect of the plant for the year ended 30 September 2005. Your answer should
explain how you arrived at your figures. (7 marks)

(ii) On 1 April 2004 Wilderness acquired 100% of the share capital of Mossel, whose only
activity is the extraction and sale of spa water. Mossel had been profitable since its
acquisition, but bad publicity resulting from several consumers becoming ill due to a
contamination of the spa water supply in April 2005 has led to unexpected losses in the
last six months. The carrying amounts of Mossel’'s assets at 30 September 2005 are:

Ksh.’000

Brand (Quencher — see below) 7,000
Land containing spa 12,000
Purifying and bottling plant 8,000
Inventories 5,000
32,000

The source of the contamination was found and it has now ceased.

The company originally sold the bottled water under the brand name of ‘Quencher’, but because
of the contamination it has rebranded its bottled water as ‘Phoenix’. After a large advertising
campaign, sales are now starting to recover and are approaching previous levels. The value of the
brand in the balance sheet is the depreciated amount of the original brand name of ‘Quencher’.

The directors have acknowledged that Ksh.1-5 million will have to be spent in the first three
months of the next accounting period to upgrade the purifying and bottling plant.

Inventories contain some old ‘Quencher’ bottled water at a cost of Ksh.2 million; the remaining
inventories are labelled with the new brand ‘Phoenix’. Samples of all the bottled water have been
tested by the health authority and have been passed as fit to sell. The old bottled water will have
to be relabelled at a cost of Ksh.250,000, but is then expected to be sold at the normal selling
price of (normal) cost plus 50%.

Based on the estimated future cash flows, the directors have estimated that the value in use of
Mossel at 30 September 2005, calculated according to the guidance in IAS 36, is Ksh.20 million.
There is no reliable estimate of the fair value less costs to sell of Mossel.

Required:

Calculate the amounts at which the assets of Mossel should appear in the consolidated
balance sheet of Wilderness at 30 September 2005. Your answer should explain how you
arrived at your figures.

(7 marks)
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|
- CASE STUDY

Case Study: An entity has purchased the whole of the share capital of another entity for a
purchase consideration of $20 million. The goodwill arising on the transaction was $5 million.
It was planned at the outset that the information systems would be merged in order to create
significant savings. Additionally the entity was purchased because of its market share in a
particular jurisdiction and because of its research projects. Subsequently the cost savings on
the information systems were made. The government of the jurisdiction introduced a law that
restricted the market share to below that anticipated by the entity, and some research projects
were abandoned because of lack of funding.

The question is; what are potential indicators of the impairment of goodwill in this case?

The entity would have paid for the goodwill in anticipation of future benefits arising there from.
The benefit in terms of the cost savings on the information systems has arisen, but the market
share increase and the successful outcome of the research projects has not occurred.

Therefore, these events may indicate the impairment of goodwill. Goodwill has to be
impairment tested at least annually under IFRS 3.

Source: www.google.co.ke- Case Studies on Impairment of Assets

STUDY TEXT
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CHAPTER THREE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (PART B)

» OBJECTIVES

After this chapter, the student will know how to:

® Calculate and account for Corporation Tax
® Calculate and account for Deferred Tax

® Determine the nature of employee benefits and to account for them

» INTRODUCTION

IAS 12 on Income Taxes deals with two main types of taxes;

. Corporation Tax

. Deferred Tax

The main bulk of the standard is on deferred tax as it has detailed guidelines on the approach to be
used in computing deferred tax, accounting for the deferred tax and disclosure requirements.

IAS 19 Employee benefits:

This is a very difficult area because employee benefit costs are inherently complex and their
accounting is both problematic and controversial.

IAS 19 (revised) Employee benefits has replaced the previous IAS 19 Retirement benefits costs.
Note the increased scope of the new standard, which covers all employee benefit costs, except
share — based payment, not only retirement benefit (pension) costs. Before we look at IAS 19,
we should consider the nature of employee benefit costs and why there is an accounting problem
which must be addressed by a standard.

» DEFINITION OF KEY TERMS

Corporation tax is the tax payable by a company as a result of generating profits from trading.
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Deferred tax is the corporation tax that is likely to be incurred on the activities of a company
during a particular period but, because of differences between the way activities are included in
the accounting profit and taxable income, will be paid in another period.

Temporary differences include differences between the fair values and the tax values of assets
and liabilities acquired and the effect of revaluing assets and liabilities acquired and the effect of
revaluing assets for accounting purposes.

Timing Differences are items reported in the accounts in periods different from those in which
they are reflected in tax computations. These differences originate in one period and reverse in
one or more subsequent periods.

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service
rendered by employees.

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which
fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service.

Post-employment benefits are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides
post employment benefits for one or more employees.

» EXAM CONTEXT
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In past examinations, the examiner has tested the students’ knowledge on:

. Corporation tax
. Deferred tax
. Employee benefits

Students should therefore understand these topics.

» INDUSTRY CONTEXT

Profit making organisations calculate corporation taxes and, therefore, this chapter enables them
to know the various ways to calculate their corporation taxes and also to account for them.

Organisations learn how tocalculate deferred tax which is important in the following ways:

® The figures used to calculate stock market indicators such EPS and P/E ratio require
the computation of profit-after tax.

©® Deferred tax is important in establishing the relationship between shareholder’s funds

and other sources of finance.

It also ensures compliance with the fundamental accounting concept of accruals.

It reports a tax liability which is likely to arise in the future.

It provides the post-tax profits that can be used to assess a suitable dividend

declaration.

(ONONO;
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[
- 3.1 CORPORATION TAX

FAST FORWARD: IAS 12 does not prescribe how this tax should be computed as this is

determined by the various tax rules and regulations of a country.

Corporation tax is the tax payable by a company as a result of generating profits from trading.

Once the tax has been computed the standard gives the specific accounting treatment of the
amount. IAS 12 requires that the tax payable should be shown as a separate item in the income
statement and referred to as income tax expense. If part of the amount is unpaid by the year end
then it should be shown in the balance sheet as a current liability and referred to as current tax.

In practice many firms use an estimate for the corporation tax for the purpose of preparing and
finalizing on the financial statements. In the next or subsequent financial period, when the firm
agrees with the tax authorities the actual tax payable, then there may arise an under or over
provision of previous years tax. IAS 12 requires that this under or over provision to be treated like
a change in accounting estimate as per IAS 8. This means that an under provision of previous
years’ tax will be added to the current years income tax expense while an over provision will be
deducted.

Hl >>> Example

Assume that a company had estimated that during the year ended 2004, the corporation tax
payable was Sh 1000,000 and this amount remained unpaid as at 31 December 2004. On 30
June 2005 the company agrees with the tax authorities on the amount due and this is paid on
the same date. Meanwhile during the year ended 31 December 2005, the firm estimates that the
corporation tax payable for the year as sh. 1,200, 000. The company had made installment tax
payments for year 2005 for sh. 800,000.

STUDY TEXT

Required

Compute the income tax expense and the balance sheet liability for the year 2005 assuming that
the actual tax liability for 2004 agreed with the tax authority was:

1. Sh 1,100,000
2. Sh.900,000

a) There is an under provision for previous years’ tax because the firm had provided for
only Sh.1,100,000 while the amount agreed is Sh.1,100,000. The income tax expense
for 2005 will be given as current years estimate plus the under provision
(Sh.1, 200,000 + 100,000). = 1,300,000.

b) There is an over provision for previous years’ tax because the firm had provided for
Sh.1,100,000 while the amount agreed is only Sh.900,000. The income tax expense for
2005 will be given as current years estimate less the over provision
(Sh.1, 200,000 - 100,000). = 1,100,000
The balance sheet liability in both cases will be the current years’ tax less the installment
taxes for the year 2005 (1,200,000 — 800,000) = Sh.400,000.
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3.1.1 DEFERRED TAX I

This section is concerned with the determination of the amount of the charge against income
in respect of an accounting period and the presentation of such an amount in the financial
statements. We will also discuss accounting for the tax effect of revaluation of assets.

In short, we will explore the accounting principles and practices for deferred taxation.

[ ] Provisions of IAS 12 on income taxes

FAST FORWARD: IAS 12 requires that deferred tax should be provided in full for all temporary

difference using the liability method.

The standard adopts the balance sheet approach under which deferred tax is calculated on all
temporary differences, which are differences between the tax and accounting bases of assets
and liabilities.

Temporary differences include differences between the fair values and the tax values of assets
and liabilities acquired and the effect of revaluing assets and liabilities acquired and the effect of
revaluing assets for accounting purposes.

. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the income statement unless the tax arises
from a business combination that is an acquisition or a transaction or event that is
recognized in equity. The tax consequences which accompany a change in the tax
status of an enterprise or its controlling or significant shareholder should be taken to
income, unless these consequences directly relate to changes in the measured amount
of equity.

STUDY TEXT

Only those tax consequences that directly relate to changes in the measured amount
of equity in the same or different period should be charged or credited to equity and not
taken to the income statement.

. Deferred tax assets and liabilities should be measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date. Discounting of deferred tax assets and liabilities is not permitted.

. The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities should reflect the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the enterprise expects, at the
balance sheet date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
When a non-depreciable asset under IAS 16 (PPE) is re-valued, the deferred tax arising
from that revaluation is determined based on the tax applicable to the recovery of the
carrying amount of that asset through sale.
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. An enterprise should recognise a deferred tax asset for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it s probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. The same principles apply
to recognition of deferred tax assets for unused tax losses carried forward.

. For presentation purposes, current tax assets and liabilities should be offset if and only
if the enterprise has a legally enforceable right to set off and intends to either settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. An enterprise is
able to offset deferred tax assets and liabilities if and only if it is able to offset current tax
balances and the deferred balances relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority.

[] Disclosures

. Tax expense (income) must be shown separately on the face of the income statement,
with separate disclosure made of its major components and any tax expense (income)
relating to extra ordinary items.

. Tax expense (income) relating to the gain or loss on discontinuance for discontinued
operations and to the profit or loss from the ordinary activities of the discontinued
operation for the period must also be disclosed.

. An explanation is required of the relationship between tax expense (or income) and
accounting profit either of numerical reconciliation between the average effective tax
rate and the applicable tax rate. An explanation is required of any changes in the
applicable tax rate(s) compared to the previous period.

. The aggregate amount of temporary differences for which both deferred tax assets
or liabilities have not been recognized (i.e. for unremitted “re-invested” earnings of
subsidiaries should be disclosed. For each type of temporary difference and for unused
tax losses and credits, disclosure is required of the amount of deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognized and the amount of deferred tax income or expense recognized.
The amount of any deferred tax asset and evidence supporting its recognition must
be disclosed when its utilization is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of
the profits arising from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, and the
enterprise has suffered a loss in the current or previous period in the tax jurisdiction
to which the deferred tax asset relates. Separate disclosure is also required of the
aggregate current and deferred tax relating to items that are charged or credited to
equity.

[]  Flow-through method

Supporters of flow-through accounting also argue that it is the most transparent and intuitively
sensible way of communicating an entity’s tax position. The financial statements show the actual
tax charge for the year in the clearest possible manner, and the associated notes (which would
disclose such matters as accumulated timing differences and the items reconciling the actual tax
charge to a standard rate) would be no more detailed and possibly more intelligible than those
resulting from other possible accounting methods.
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Some supporters of flow-through accounting further argue that even if, in principle timing
differences did give rise to tax liabilities, in practice such liabilities could not always be measured
reliably. The future tax consequences of current transactions depend upon complex interaction
of future events, such as the profitability, investment and financing transactions of the entity,
and changes in tax rates and laws. Only those that could be measured reliably typically very
short-term discrete timing differences — should be provided for. Thus they advocate a modified
flow-through approach.

[]  Full provision method

The full provision method is based on the view that every transaction has a tax consequence
and it is possible to make a reasonable estimate of the future tax consequences of transactions
that have occurred by the balance sheet date. Such future tax consequences cannot be avoided:
whatever happens in future, the entity will pay less or more tax as a result of the reversal of a timing
difference that exists at the balance sheet date than it would have done in the absence of that
timing difference. Deferred tax should, therefore, be provided for in full on timing differences.

[] Partial provision method

The partial provision method also starts from the premise that the future reversal of timing
differences gives rise to a tax asset or liability. However, rather than focusing on the individual
components of the tax computation, the partial provision method emphasizes the interaction of
those components in a single net assessment. To the extent that timing differences are expected
to continue in future (i.e. the existing timing differences being replaced by future timing differences
as they reverse), the tax is viewed as being deferred permanently.

Where, for example, fixed asset expenditure attracts tax deductions before the fixed assets are
depreciated, timing differences arise. The timing differences increase with time under conditions
of inflation or expansion, with the result that new timing differences more than replace those that
reverse. In consequence, effective tax rates are reduced. The partial provision method allows
the lower effective tax rates to be reflected in the profit and loss account, to the extent that the
reduction is not expected to reverse in future years.

The attraction of the partial provision method is that it reflects an entity’s ongoing effective tax
rate. It results in tax charges that reflect the amount of tax that it is expected will actually be paid
and excludes amounts that are expected to be deferred ‘permanently’.

[ ] Reasons for rejecting the partial provision method

The partial provision method allowed companies to avoid creating provisions for tax that they
argued they were unlikely to pay. However, by the early 1990s, concerns were being expressed
about the method and the way in which it was being applied. It was noted in particular that:

1. The recognition rules and anticipation of future events were subjective and inconsistent
with the principles underlying other aspects of accounting.
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2. The partial provision method had not been regarded as appropriate for dealing with the
long-term deferred tax assets associated with provisions for post-retirement benefits.
As aresult, SSAP 15 had been amended in 1992 to permit such assets to be accounted
for on a full provision basis. The amendment introduced inconsistencies into SSAP
15.

3. There were variations in the way in which SSAP 15 was applied in practice. Different
entities within the same industry and with similar prospects seemed to take quite
different views on the levels of provisions necessary. There was evidence that some
companies provided for deferred tax in full for simplicity’s sake rather than because
their circumstances required it. The different approaches being taken reduced the
comparability of financial statements.

4. Because of its recognition rules and anticipation of future events, the partial provision
method was increasingly being rejected by standard-setters in other countries. The
US Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) had issued a standard FAS 109
‘Accounting for Income Taxes’ requiring full provision. The International Accounting
Standards Committee(IASC) had published proposals for similar requirements and
other standard —setters had started to move in the same direction.

When rejecting the partial provision method, the FASB and IASC argued in particular
that:

a. Every tax timing difference represented a real liability, since everyone would reverse
and, whatever else happened, an entity would pay more tax in future as a result of the
reversal than it would have done in the absence of the timing difference.

b. It was only the impact of new timing differences arising in future that prevented the
total liability from reducing. It was inappropriate (and inconsistent with other areas of
accounting) to take account of future transactions when measuring an existing liability.

c. The assessment of the liability using the partial provision method relied on management
intentions regarding future events. Standard setters were uncomfortable with this,
having already embodied in a number of other standards the principle that liabilities
should be determined on the basis of obligations rather than management decisions or
intentions.

In view of the criticisms of the partial provision method, the Board decided to review SSAP 15. In
1995 it published a Discussion Paper, ‘Accounting for Tax’. The Discussion Paper proposed that
SSAP 15 should be replaced with an FRS requiring full provision for deferred tax.

Most respondents to the Discussion Paper opposed the move to full provision at that stage,
preferring instead to retain the partial provision method. In the meantime however, IASC had
approved its standard, IAS12 (revised, 1996) 'Income Taxes’, which required use of the full
provision method. The Board reconsidered the arguments and arrived at the view that:

. Whilst it did not agree with all of the criticisms of the partial provision method expressed
internationally and could see the logic for all three methods of accounting for tax, it
shared some of the concerns regarding the subjectivity of the partial provision method
and its reliance on future events; and
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. As more companies adopted international accounting standards, the partial provision
method would become less well understood and accepted, particularly as it was
regarded as less prudent than the internationally accepted method. Hence, the retention
of the partial provision method in the UK could damage the credibility of UK financial
reporting.

For these reasons, the Board took the view that deferred tax was not an area where a good
case could be made for departing from principles that had been widely accepted internationally.
Following informal consultation, it developed a draft FRS, FRED 19 ‘Deferred Tax’, which
proposed requirements based more closely on a full provision method. The FRED was published
for consultation in August 1999.

The responses to FRED 19 indicated that, whilst many amongst the financial community remained
disappointed that there had not been international acceptance of the partial provision method,
most accepted the arguments for greater harmonization with international practice and supported
the proposed move to a full provision method.

[ ] Reasons for rejecting flow-through accounting

For the reasons outlined in paragraphs 5 —7 above, a number of Board members believe that
the clearest and most transparent method of communicating an entity’s tax position is by flow-
through accounting combined with detailed disclosures. The possibility of moving to flow-through
accounting was therefore suggested in the Board’s Discussion Paper.

However, flow-through accounting would not have moved UK accounting more into line with
international practice and received little support from those responding to the Board’s Discussion
Paper. Most respondents agree with the view that taxable profit was, in both form and substance,
an adjusted accounting profit and that it was possible to attribute tax effects to individual
transactions. Further, they regarded tax systems as sufficiently stable to allow reasonable
estimates to be made of the deferred tax consequences of events reported up to he balance
sheet date. They added their concerns that flow-through accounting would make their results
more volatile, could sometimes understate an entity’s liability to tax and that any modification to
it would require arbitrary cut-off points that could be difficult to rationalize.

STUDY TEXT

In view of the lack of support from respondents and the Boards’ commitment to international
harmonization, Board members who would have preferred flow-through accounting accepted
that the FRS should instead require full provision for deferred tax.

3.1.2 THE NEED FOR DEFERRED TAXATION /e

Deferred tax is the corporation tax that is likely to be incurred on the activities of a company
during a particular period but, because of differences between the way activities are included in
the accounting profit and taxable income, will be paid in another period.
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[] The need for deferred taxation arises in a number of ways:

i.  The figures used to calculate stock market indicators such EPS and P/E ratio require
the computation of profit-after tax.

i. Deferred tax is important in establishing the relationship between shareholder’s funds
and other sources of finance.

ii. Italso ensures compliance with the fundamental accounting concept of accruals.
iv. It reports a tax liability which is likely to arise in the future.

v. It provides the post-tax profits that can be used to assess a suitable dividend
declaration.

3.1.3 THE BASIS OF DEFERRED TAXATION L

From the accountant’s viewpoint there are two quite distinct profit figures:

(a) Accounting profit - that is the profit reported to the shareholders. This profit is based on
accounting concepts and principles.

(b) Tax-adjusted profit - that is the profit on which tax is assessed - taxable income (tax
loss). This profit is determined in accordance with the rules laid down in the Income
Tax Act upon which the provision for taxes payable is determined. This profit takes into
account capital allowances, stock relief, and disallowable expenditure and so on.

The reasons why these profits may differ fall into two groups of differences.

(a) Timing Differences - that is items reported in the accounts in periods different from
those in which they are reflected in tax computations. These differences originate in
one period and reverse in one or more subsequent periods.

The timing difference originates in 1983 when the interest is accrued and reversed in 1984 when
the interest is taxed (on a cash basis).

There were no interest accruals in the balance sheet at 31.12.83 and 31.12.84.

The movement on deferred tax account over the two years may be calculated as follows:

Deferred Tax Account

Ksh Ksh
Bal (31.12.83) c/f 10,500 | Balance (1.1.83) -
10,500 | P & L A/c (31.9.83) (35% x 30,000) 10,500
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The effect on the financial statement is

Profit and Loss Account

KShs KShs KShs KShs
Profit on ordinary activities 400,000 430,000
Tax expense
Corporation tax
Deferred tax 11500’550%0 140,000 1:'8288 150,500
Profit before tax (10.500) 260,000 289,500
Deferred tax provision NIL KShs 10,500

Let us have an example relating to accelerated capital allowances.

. A company purchased a fixed asset on 1.1.92 at a cost of KSh 400,000. The residual
value of the asset is assumed to be NIL and it is to be depreciated on a straight line basis
over 4 years. The company claims 100% first year allowance and the corporation tax
rate for each of the four years is assumed to be 35%. Profit after charging depreciation

-
X is KSh 2,000,000 in each of the four years and there are no other timing differences.
L No capital expenditure takes place in 1993, 1994 or 1995.
|_
> Assuming deferred tax is to be provided in full, the calculations are as follows.
)
= Profit before . Taxable (AdeSFed)
[ : i Capital . Taxation
Year deprecation Depreciation Accounting
(7} Allowance Taxable
and taxes Income
Income
KSH KSH KSH KSH
2,000,000 -
1992 2,100,000 100,000 (400,000) 2,000,000 400,000 + 1,700,000
100,000 =
2,000,000 +
1993 2,100,000 100,000 - 2,000,000 100,000 2,100,000
2,000,000 +
1994 2,100,000 100,000 - 2,000,000 100,000 2,100,000
2,000,000 +

1995 2,100,000 100,000 - 2,000,000 100,000 2,100,000



The timing differences can be analysed as follows:

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (PART B)

Taxation o .
Year Al Taxable Taxable Timing Difference Deferred Ta>'< @ 35% x Timing
Income Differece
Income
1992 2,000,000 1,700,000 300,000 105,000
1993 2,000,000 2,100,000 (100,000) (35,000)
1994 2,000,000 2,100,000 (100,000) (35,000)
1995 2,000,000 2,100,000 (100,000) (35,000)

Al = Accounting Income

Note that the timing difference originated in 1992 (300,000) and reversed through 1993 - 1995.

The extracts from financial statements (P & L) will be:

1992 1993 1994 1995

(KSh) (KSh) (KSh) (KSh)

Accounting Profit 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Income Tax Expense

Corporation tax payable 595,000 735,000 735,000 735,000

Deferred Tax 105,000 (35,000) (35,000) (35,000)

Profit after tax 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000

The journal entries to record the income tax expense and related deferred tax liability for 1992

and 1993 are:

1992

Dr. Income tax Expense (2,000,000 x 35%)
Cr. Income tax payable (1,700,000 x 35%)
Cr. Deferred tax liability

1993
Dr. Income tax Expense (2,000,000 x 35%)
Dr. Income tax liability
Cr. Income tax payable (2,100,000 x 35%)

1994
Dr. Income tax Expense (2,000,000 x 35%)
Dr. Deferred tax liability

Cr. Income tax payable (2,100,000 x 35%)

700,000
595,000
105,000

700,000

35,000
735,000

700,000

35,000
735,000
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1995
Dr. Income tax Expense (2,000,000 x 35%) 700,000
Dr. Deferred tax liability 35,000

Cr. Income tax payable (2,100,000 x 35%) 735,000

3.1.4 METHODS OF ACCOUNTING FOR TIMING DIFFERENCES Imm

There is some controversy whether deferred tax should be included in the accounts or just be
ignored. Two schools of thought emerged - leading to two broad methods of accounting for timing
differences.

These are:

(a) Taxes payable method

(b) Deferred Tax Accounting method

[] Taxes Payable Method

. Itignores deferred tax and thus the income tax expense is normally equal to the provision
for tax payable. The extent and potential tax effect of timing differences are sometimes
disclosed in notes to the financial statements.

STUDY TEXT

[] Deferred Tax Accounting Method

. Under this method, income tax is considered to be an expense incurred by the enterprise
in earning income and is accrued in the same periods as the revenue and expenses to
which it relates. The resulting tax effects of timing differences are included in the tax
charge in the income statement and in the deferred tax balances in the balance sheet.

. There are two approaches to the calculation of deferred tax:
*  Full deferral
» Partial deferral

. These approaches are concerned with whether, and to what extent, deferred tax on
timing differences needs to be provided within the accounts, as opposed to simply
being referred to in a memorandum note.

. Full deferral requires that full tax effects of all timing differences are recognised as they
arise. The approach is arithmetically accurate but can lead to the build up of large,
meaningless provisions appearing on the balance sheet.

. Partial deferral requires that the income tax expense excludes the tax effects of certain
timing differences when there is reasonable evidence that those timing differences will
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not reverse for some considerable period (at least 3 years) ahead. It is also necessary
for there to be indication that after this period, these timing differences are likely to
reverse. (Para. 3.16 & 3.17 - KAS 10).

. A further problem is the method used to evaluate the deferred tax account i.e what
corporation tax rate(s) should be applied to the timing differences.

There are two major methods:

(a) Deferral Method

(b) Liability Method

H Deferral Method

FAST FORWARD: Originating timing differences are recorded at the rate of corporation tax

ruling in the period in which the timing difference occurred.

. The deferred tax account in the balance sheet is viewed as deferred revenue
(expenditure) and, therefore, subsequent changes in the rate of tax give no cause for
adjustment. The reversal amount will be exactly matched with the original difference.

. There are two further approaches to deferral method. These are:
i. Average rate
ii. Firstin First out.

The average rate assumes that reversals do come out of the opening balance (when the capital
allowance first appeared). An average rate of tax is therefore calculated by dividing the balance
in the deferred account with the balance in the timing differences.

In FIFO the reversal is assumed to come from the first amount credited to the deferred taxation
account. That is the deferred taxation created by the first year tax rate. So the reversal is
calculated using the first year rate.

M Liability Method

. The deferred tax provision in the balance sheet is assessed at the rate of corporation
tax expected to be applicable when the timing differences are expected to reverse.
Unless the rate of corporation tax is known in advance, the most recent rate would
normally be used.

. Under this method, it is necessary to make adjustments each time the rate changes.
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The two methods are illustrated in the following example:

Assume XYZ Co. made the following capital expenditures:

KShs
20X1 31,500
20X2 42,000
20X3 15,750

20X4 - 20X9 — No capital expenditure expected

Expenditure qualifies for a capital allowance of 25% (reducing balance). Asset life is expected
to be restricted to 3 years, therefore depreciation is charged, on a straight line basis, overtime
period. Assets have no residual value. Corporation tax rates are as follows:

20X1 - 50%

20X2 - 45%

20X3 - 40%

20X4 - 35%

20X5 - 20X9 - 35% (expected)
Required:

Calculate the timing differences using the

(a) Liability Method

(b) Deferral Method Accounting that reversals are accounted for
i. On an average method
ii. On FIFO basis

(c) Show the deferred taxation account using the liability method.

STUDY TEXT

Solution:

With different tax rates applying to the annual capital expenditures it is necessary to analyse the
deferred tax by individual expenditures.

20X1 20X2 20X3 20X4 20X5
20X1 Expenditure (31,500) KSH KSH KSH KSH KSH
Capital allowance 7,875 5906 | 17,719 - -
Depreciation 10,500 10,500 | 10,500 | - -
Timing differences (2,625) (4,594) 7,219
20X2 Expenditure (42,000)
Capital allowance 10,500 7,875 | 23,625
Depreciation 14,000 14,000 | 14,000
Timing differences (3,500) (6,125) 9,625
20X3 Expenditure (15,750)
Capital allowance 3,938 2,953 8,859
Depreciation 5,250 5,250 5,250
Timing differences (1,312) (2,297) 3,609
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The deferred tax account will appear as follows:

20X1 20X2 20X3 20X4  20X5

Total capital ?Ilgwances 7,875 16,406 29532 26,578 8,859
Total Depreciation 10,500 5,250
- . 24,500 29,750 19,250
Timing differences (2,625) 3,609
. . : (8,094) 218 7,328
Cumulative Timing Difference (2,625) -
Tax rate 50% (10,719) 10,937 (3,609) 35%
45% 40% 35%
Timing Cumulative Liability Deferral Deferral
Difference Timing Method Average FIFO
20X1 — origin (Ratgrence ;) 625 1,313 1,313 1,313
(50%)
20X2 — origin (4,594) 2,297 2,297
— 20X1 (3,500) (8.094) 3,642 1,575 1,575
(45%) origin
— 20X2 Tax rate 131
(10,719) 3.511 3.872 3,872
adj. (negative 4,824 5,185 5,185 ;
— 5% x 2,625) 0
7,219 -
Deferred tax bal. (6,125) (3,465) (3,610)
(31.12.X2) (1.312) 2,756 2,756 >
(218) 87 525 525 =
20X3 (40%) =
- Reversal — 20X1 (536) 0
- origin - 20X2 10,937 (449) (184) (329)
- origin - 20X3 4,375 5,001 4,856
Tax rate ad;.
(negative — 5% x 9,625
10,719) (2,297) (4,428) (4,331)
7,338 (2,568) 919 919
Deferred Tax bal.
(31.12.X3) (547)
3,599 (3.115) (3.509) (3.412)
20X4 (35%) 1,492 1,444
- Reversal - 1992 1,260
- origin - 20X3

Tax rate ad;.
(negative — 5% x
10,937)

Deferred Tax bal.
(31.12.X4)
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Notes:
(a) Liability Method
Overall cumulative timing difference for each year is relevant and not the individual
timing differences.
(b) Deferral - Average - 20X3 - average rate was computed as follows:
5.185 x 100 = 48%
10,719
Average - 20X4 =

5.001 x 100 = 46%
10,937

(c) Deferral - FIFO - 20X3
50% X 7,219 = 3,610

The deferred taxation account using the liability method is given below:

— Deferred Taxation Account (Liability Method)
X
0 Kshs Kshs
|_ .
1.313 20 X1 Profit and Loss A/c  1.313
> 31.12.X1  Balc/d 1.1.X2 Balance b/f 1313
o 4824 20 X2 Profit and Loss A/lc  3.511
2 31.12.X1 Bal c/d —’—4 804 4_’_824
@ 20X3 Profit and Loss A/c 449 1.1.X3 Balance b/f 4,824
31.12.X3 Bal c/d 4305
T 4.824 4.824
20X4 P& L Alc ?;;g 1.1.X4 Balance b/f 4,375
31.12.X4 Bal c/d 437 437

3.1.5 TAX LOSSES /"

. A loss for tax purposes which is available to relieve future profits from tax constitutes a
timing difference.

. The existence of a credit amount in the deferred tax balance provides evidence that
there is a tax saving relating to a tax loss carry forward can be realised at least in part.

. This is especially so if the tax relief attributable to the loss can be included in the period
of the loss and the debit is carried forward as a reduction of the deferred tax credit
balance in the balance sheet.

(Read IAS 12 Para. 3.19 - 3.22)
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M >>> Example:

Omwachi Ltd has no originating or reversing timing difference in 20X1 or 20X2 i.e. reported
accounting profits are equal to the profit on which tax is assessed. The balance on deferred tax
account as at 1.1.X1 was KSh 190,000. Trading losses in 20X1 amounted to KSh 160,000. In
20X2 trading profits amounted to KSh 190,000. The movement on deferred tax account over the
two years would be as follows:

Corporation tax rate is 35%

Deferred Tax Account

Expected tax Relief KShs 1.1.X1 Bal. b/f KS8S00
(35% x 160,000) 56,000
31.12.X1 Bal c/d 134.000
190.000 190,000
1.1.X2 Bal. b/f 134,000
Deferred tax reinstated
31.12.X2 Bal c/d 190.000 (35% x 160,000) 56,000
190,000 190,000

[] DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS - IAS 12

i. The income tax relating to an item that is charged or credited to shareholders interest
should be accounted for in the same manner as the relevant item and the amount
should be disclosed.
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ii. The tax charge related to income from the ordinary activities of the enterprise.

iii. The tax charge relating to universal items, to prior period items, and to changes of
accounting policy - IASS8.

iv.  The tax effects, if any, related to assets that have been revalued to amounts in excess
of historical cost or previous revaluation.

v.  The following items in respect to tax losses should be disclosed.

* The amount of the tax saving included in net income for the current period as a
result of the realisation of a tax loss carry forward that had not been accounted for
in the year of the loss.

» the amount and future availability of tax losses for which the related tax effects
have been included in the net income of any period.

vi. The method used to account for the deferred tax should also be disclosed.

vii. The amount of timing differences not accounted for, both current and cumulative should
be disclosed.
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JUNE 20X0
2
(i) Flow-through method

P & L a/c (Extract)

1997 1998 1999 20X0
Sh ‘000’ Sh ‘000’ Sh ‘000’ Sh ‘000’
Taxable Profit (Cap allow) 4,250 4,250 4,250 4,250
Tax @ 33% (1.402.90) | (1.202.50) (1.402.50 (1.402.50)
2,847.50 2,847.50 2,847.50 2,847.50
Deferred Tax NIL NIL NIL NIL
Balance Sheet (Extract)
Provision for liabilities & Charges ~ NIL NIL NIL NIL
(ii) Full Provision Method
P & L a/c (Extract)
1997 1998 1999 20X0
Taxable Profits 4,250 4,250 4,250 4,250
Tax @ 33% (1.402.50) | (1.402.50) | (1.402.50) (1.402.50)
2,847.50 2,847.50 2,847.50 2,847.50
Deferred Tax 528 (132) (264) 660
Balance Sheet (Extract)
Provision for liabilities & Charges 528 396 132 792
(iii)  Partial — Provision Method
(Shs. 396,000 of the T/D will reverse in 1998 and 1999)
P & L (Extract)
1997 1998 1999 20X0
Taxable Profits 4,250 4,250 4,250 4,250
Tax @ 33% (1.402.50) | (1.402.50) | (1.402.50) ~ 40200
2,847.50 2,847.50 2,847.50 | 2,847.50
Deferred Tax 396 i.e (528 — 132) (132) (264) -




Balance sheet (Extract)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (PART B)

Provision for Liabilities & Charges 396 264 NIL NIL
Workings
Deferred tax Calculations
Capital allowances 2,000 400 400 2,800
Depreciation (400) (800) (1.200) (800)
1,600 (400) (800) 2,000
Tax @ 33% 528 (132) (264) 660

3.1.6 SUMMARY OF APPROACHES TO DEFERRED TAX IS

tax payable and is objective

APPROACH ADVANTAGE DISADVANTAGES
Ignores reasoned assessment
of what tax effects of
transactions will be.
(@)  No provision Tax charge in P/L is based on Inconsistent with Companies Act

and IAS 12
Possible understatement of tax
liabilities

(b)

Full provision

Recognises full tax charge in
P/L

Calculations are objective

Possible distortion of tax
liabilities in Balance Sheet
Possible fictitious effects

of transactions for remote
occurring in a period

Ignores reasoned assessment
of what tax effects of
transactions will be.

(c) Partial Provision

Realistic - deferred tax
provision takes account of
circumstances of the company

Calculations may depend
on subjective opinions and
estimates.

Difficult to apply to small
companies.
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|
- 3.2 SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (IFRS 2)

This is a very controversial area and has not been examined before. Itis a recent standards issued
by IASB and deals with the accounting treatment of transactions that have been settled by way
of issuing shares and not for cash or if cash is paid it is tied to the value of the companies share.
This ranges from paying suppliers and employees by way of shares or pegging the payments to
the value of the companies share.

[] IFRS 2 Provisions

A share-based payment is a transaction in which the entity receives or acquires goods or
services either as consideration for its equity instruments or by incurring liabilities for amounts
based on the price of the entity’s shares or other equity instruments of the entity. The accounting
requirements for the share-based payment depend on how the transaction will be settled, that is,
by the issuance of (a) equity, (b) cash, or (c) equity or cash.

[l Scope

The concept of share-based payments is broader than employee share options. IFRS 2
encompasses the issuance of shares, or rights to shares, in return for services and goods.
Examples of items included in the scope of IFRS 2 are share appreciation rights, employee
share purchase plans, employee share ownership plans, share option plans and plans where
the issuance of shares (or rights to shares) may depend on market or non-market related
conditions.

STUDY TEXT

IFRS 2 applies to all entities. There is no exemption for private or smaller entities. Furthermore,
subsidiaries using their parent’s or fellow subsidiary’s equity as consideration for goods or
services are within the scope of the Standard.

There are two exemptions to the general scope principle.

(i) First, the issuance of shares in a business combination should be accounted for under
IFRS 3 Business Combinations. However, care should be taken to distinguish share-
based payments related to the acquisition from those related to employee services.

(i) Second, IFRS 2 does not address share-based payments within the scope of paragraphs
8-10 of IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation, or paragraphs 5-7
of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Therefore, IAS 32 and
39 should be applied for commodity-based derivative contracts that may be settled in
shares or rights to shares.

IFRS 2 does not apply to share-based payment transactions other than for the acquisition of
goods and services. Share dividends, the purchase of treasury shares, and the issuance of
additional shares are, therefore, outside its scope.
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[] Recognition and Measurement

The issuance of shares or rights to shares requires an increase in a component of equity. IFRS
2 requires the offsetting debit entry to be expensed when the payment for goods or services
does not represent an asset. The expense should be recognised as the goods or services are
consumed. For example, the issuance of shares or rights to shares to purchase inventory would
be presented as an increase in inventory and would be expensed only once the inventory is sold
or impaired.

The issuance of fully vested shares, or rights to shares, is presumed to relate to past service,
requiring the full amount of the grant-date fair value to be expensed immediately. The issuance
of shares to employees with, say, a three-year vesting period is considered to relate to services
over the vesting period. Therefore, the fair value of the share-based payment, determined at the
grant date, should be expensed over the vesting period.

As a general principle, the total expense related to equity-settled share-based payments will equal
the multiple of the total instruments that vest and the grant-date fair value of those instruments. In
short, there is truing up to reflect what happens during the vesting period. However, if the equity-
settled share-based payment has a market related performance feature, the expense would still
be recognised if all other vesting features are met. The following example provides an illustration
of a typical equity-settled share-based payment.

lllustration — Recognition of Employee Share Option Grant

Company grants a total of 100 share options to 10 members of its executive management team
(10 options each) on 1 January 20X5. These options vest at the end of a three-year period. The
company has determined that each option has a fair value at the date of grant equal to 15. The
company expects that all 100 options will vest and therefore records the following entry at 30
June 20X5 - the end of its first six-month interim reporting period.

Dr. Share Option Expense 250
Cr. Equity 250
[(100 x 15) / 6 periods] = 250 per period

If all 100 shares vest, the above entry would be made at the end of each 6-month reporting period.
However, if one member of the executive management team leaves during the second half of
20X6, therefore forfeiting the entire amount of 10 options, the following entry at 31 December
20X6 would be made:

Dr. Share Option Expense 150
Cr. Equity 150
[(90 x 15)/ 6 periods = 225 per period. [225 x 4] -[250+250+250] = 150
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[ ] Measurement Guidance

Depending on the type of share-based payment, fair value may be determined by the value of the
shares or rights to shares given up, or by the value of the goods or services received:

1. General fair value measurement principle. In principle, transactions in which goods
or services are received as consideration for equity instruments of the entity should be
measured at the fair value of the goods or services received. Only if the fair value of
the goods or services cannot be measured reliably would the fair value of the equity
instruments granted be used.

2. Measuring employee share options. For transactions with employees and others
providing similar services, the entity is required to measure the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, because it is typically not possible to estimate reliably the fair
value of employee services received.

3.  When to measure fair value - options. For transactions measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments granted (such as transactions with employees), fair value should
be estimated at grant date.

4. When to measure fair value - goods and services. For transactions measured at the
fair value of the goods or services received, fair value should be estimated at the date
of receipt of those goods or services.

5. Measurement guidance. For goods or services measured by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments granted, IFRS 2 specifies that, in general, vesting conditions
are not taken into account when estimating the fair value of the shares or options
at the relevant measurement date (as specified above). Instead, vesting conditions
are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments included in the
measurement of the transaction amount so that, ultimately, the amount recognised for
goods or services received as consideration for the equity instruments granted is based
on the number of equity instruments that eventually vest.

STUDY TEXT

6. More measurement guidance. IFRS 2 requires the fair value of equity instruments
granted to be based on market prices, if available, and to take into account the terms
and conditions upon which those equity instruments were granted. In the absence of
market prices, fair value is estimated using a valuation technique to estimate what the
price of those equity instruments would have been on the measurement date in an
arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties. The standard does
not specify which particular model should be used.

7.  If fair value cannot be reliably measured. IFRS 2 requires the share-based payment
transaction to be measured at fair value for both listed and unlisted entities. IFRS 2
permits the use of intrinsic value (that is, fair value of the shares less exercise price) in
those “rare cases” in which the fair value of the equity instruments cannot be reliably
measured. However this is not simply measured at the date of grant. An entity would
have to remeasure intrinsic value at each reporting date until final settlement.
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8. Performance conditions. IFRS 2 makes a distinction between the handling of market
based performance features from non-market features. Market conditions are those
related to the market price of an entity’s equity, such as achieving a specified share
price or a specified target based on a comparison of the entity’s share price with an
index of share prices of other entities. Market based performance features should
be included in the grant-date fair value measurement. However, the fair value of the
equity instruments should not be reduced to take into consideration non-market based
performance features or other vesting features.

[ ] Modifications, Cancellations, and Settlements

The determination of whether a change in terms and conditions has an effect on the amount
recognised depends on whether the fair value of the new instruments is greater than the fair
value of the original instruments (both determined at the modification date).

Modification of the terms on which equity instruments were granted may have an effect on the
expense that will be recorded. IFRS 2 clarifies that the guidance on modifications also applies
to instruments modified after their vesting date. If the fair value of the new instruments is more
than the fair value of the old instruments (e.g. by reduction of the exercise price or issuance of
additional instruments), the incremental amount is recognised over the remaining vesting period
in @ manner similar to the original amount. If the modification occurs after the vesting period, the
incremental amount is recognised immediately. If the fair value of the new instruments is less
than the fair value of the old instruments, the original fair value of the equity instruments granted
should be expensed as if the modification never occurred.

The cancellation or settlement of equity instruments is accounted for as an acceleration of the
vesting period and therefore any amount unrecognised that would otherwise have been charged
should be recognised immediately. Any payments made with the cancellation or settlement (up
to the fair value of the equity instruments) should be accounted for as the repurchase of an equity
interest. Any payment in excess of the fair value of the equity instruments granted is recognised
as an expense.

New equity instruments granted may be identified as a replacement of cancelled equity
instruments. In those cases, the replacement equity instruments should be accounted for as a
modification. The fair value of the replacement equity instruments is determined at grant date,
while the fair value of the cancelled instruments is determined at the date of cancellation, less
any cash payments on cancellation that is accounted for as a deduction from equity.
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[[] Disclosure

Required disclosures include:
The nature and extent of share-based payment arrangements that existed during the period;

How the fair value of the goods or services received, or the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, during the period was determined; and

the effect of share-based payment transactions on the entity’s profit or loss for the period and on
its financial position.

Please see the appendix of the standard for more illustrative examples.
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- 3.3 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

[] Nature of employee benefits

When a company or other entity employs a new worker, that worker will be offered a package of
pay and benefits. Some of these will be short-term and the employee will receive the benefit at
about the same time as he or she earns it, for example basic pay, overtime etc. Other employee
benefits are deferred, however, the main example being retirement benefits (i.e. a pension).

The cost of these deferred employee benefits to the employer can be viewed in various ways. They
could be described as deferred salary to the employee. Alternatively, they are a deduction from
the employee’s true gross salary, used as a tax efficient means of saving. In some countries, tax
efficiency arises on retirement benefit contributions because they are not taxed on the employee,
but they are allowed as a deduction from taxable profits of the employer.

3.3.1 Accounting for employee benefit costs I

Accounting for short-term employee benefit costs tends to be quite straightforward, because they
are simply recognised an expense in the employer’s financial statements of the current period.

STUDY TEXT

Accounting for the cost of deferred employee benefits is much more difficult. This is because of the
large amounts involved, as well as the long time scale, complicated estimates and uncertainties.
In the past, entities accounted for these benefits accounted for these benefits simply by charging
the income statements of the employing entity on the basis of actual payments made. This led to
substantial variations in reported profits of these entities and disclosure of information on these
costs was usually sparse.

[] 1AS 19 Employee benefits

IAS 19 is intended to prescribe the following:

. When the cost of employee benefits should be recognised as a liability or an expense.

. The amount of the liability or expense that should be recognised.

As a basic rule, the standard states the following:

1. Aliability should be recognised when an employee has provided a service in exchange
for benefits to be received by the employee at some time in the future.
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2. An expense should be recognised when the entity enjoys the economic benefits from
a service provided by an employee regardless of when the employee received or will
receive the benefits from providing the service.

The basic problem is therefore fairly straightforward. An entity will often enjoy the economic
benefits from the services provided by its employees in advance of the employees receiving all
the employment benefits from the work they have done, for example they will not receive pension
benefits until after they retire.

3.3.2 Categories of employee benefits L

The standard recognises five categories of employee benefits, and proposals a different
accounting treatment for each. These four categories are as follows:

a) Short-term benefits including:

Wages and salaries

Social security contributions

Paid annual leave

Paid sick leave

Paid maternity/Paternity leave

Profit shares and bonuses paid within 12 months of the year end
Paid jury service

Paid military service

Non-monetary benefits, e.g. medical care, cars, free goods.

“S@ e o0 oo
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b) Post-employment benefits,

E.g. Pensions and post employment medical care
c) Other long-term benefits

e.g. profit shares, bonuses or deferred compensation payable later than 12months after
the year end, sabbatical leave, long-service benefits.

d) Termination benefits
e.g. early retirement payments and redundancy payments.

Benefits may be paid to the employees themselves, to their dependants (spouses,
children, etc) or to third parties.

[] Definitions

IAS 19 has several important definitions. They are grouped together here, but you should refer
back to them where necessary.
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Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service
rendered by employees.

Short —-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which
fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service.

Post-employment benefits are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides
post employment benefits for one or more employees.

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution
plans.

Multi — employer plans are defined contribution plans (other than state plans) or defined benefit
plans (other than state plans) that:

a. Pool the assets contributed by various entities that are not under common control,
and

b. Use those assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one entity, on the basis
that contribution and benefit levels are determined without regard to the identity of the
entity that employs the employees concerned.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post employment
benefits and termination benefits) which do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:

a) Anentity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement
date, or

b) An employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those
benefits.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future
employment.

The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value, without deducting any
plan assets, of expected future payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employee
service in the current and prior periods.
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Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current period.

Interest cost is the increase during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation
which arises because the benefits are one period closer to settlement.

Plan assets comprise:

a) Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund; and
b) Qualifying insurance policies

Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund are assets (other than non-transferable
financial instruments issued by the reporting entity) that:

a) Are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separates from the reporting entity and
exists solely to pay or fund employee benefits; and

b) Are available to be used only to pay or fund employee benefits, are not available to
the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in bankruptcy), and cannot be returned to the
reporting entity, unless either:

i) The remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related employee
benefit obligations of the plan or the reporting entity; or

i) The assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee
benefits already paid
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A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related
policy (as defined in IAS 24) of the reporting entity, if the process of the policy:

a) Can be used only to pay or fund employee benefits under a defined benefit plan: or

b) Are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditor’s (even in bankruptcy) and cannot
be paid to the reporting entity, unless either:

i) The proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet
all the related employee benefit obligations of the plan or the reporting entity; or

i) The assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee
benefits already paid.

The return of plan assets is interest, dividends and other revenue derived from the plan
assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any cost of
administering the plan and loess any tax payable by the plan itself.
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Actuarial gains and losses comprise:

a) Experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has actually occurred), and

b) The effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.

Past service costis the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation foremployee
service in prior periods, resulting from the current periods, resulting in the current period from the
introduction of, or changes to, post-employment benefits or other long-term employee benefits.
Past service cost may be either positive (where benefits are introduced or improved) or negative
(where existing benefits are reduced).

[[] Asset ceiling amendment

The revisions to IAS 19 in May 2002 seek to prevent what the IASB regards as a ‘counter-
intuitive’ result produced by the interaction of two aspects of the existing IAS 19.

a) Permission to defer recognition of actuarial gains and losses.

b) Imposition of an upper limit on the amount that can be recognised as an asset (the
asset ceiling)

The issue affects only those entities that have, at the beginning or end of the accounting period,
a surplus in a defined benefit plan that, based on the current terms of the plan, the entity cannot
fully recover through refunds or deductions in future contributions

The issue is the impact of the wording of the asset ceiling.

® Sometimes a gain is recognised when a pension plan is in surplus only because of the
deferring and amortising of an actuarial loss or added past service cost in the current
period.

® Conversely, a loss may be recognised because of a deferral of actuarial gains.

The revisions to IAS 19 introductions a limited amendment that would prevent gains (losses)
from being recognised solely as a result of past services cost or actuarial losses (gains) arising
in the period. No change is currently proposed to the general approach of allowing deferral of
actuarial gains and losses. During its deliberations on the amendments to IAS 19, the IASB
concluded that there were further conceptual and practical problems with these provisions. The
IASB intends to conduct a comprehensive review of these aspects of IAS 19 as part of its work
on convergence of accounting standards across the world.

There are two key issues or problems to consider.

a) It may be necessary to rely on actuarial assumptions about what the future amount of
benefits payable will be.
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b) If benefits are payable later than 12months after the end of the accounting period, the
future benefits payable should be discounted to a present value.

3.3.3 SHORT TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS .

FAST FORWARD: There are no actuarial assumptions to be made, and there is no requirement
to discount future benefits (because they are all by definition, payable no later than 12 months
after the end of the accounting period).

[] Recognition and measurement

The rules for short term benefits are essentially an application of basic accounting principles and
practice.

Unpaid short-term employee benefits as at the end of an accounting period should be
recognised as an accrued expense. Any short-term benefits paid in advance should be
recognised as a prepayment (to the extent that it will lead to, e.g. a reduction in future payments
or a cash refund).

The cost of short-term employee benefits should be recognised as an expense in the period
when the economic benefits is given, as employment costs (except in so far as employment
costs may be included within the cost of an asset, e.g. property, plant and equipment).

STUDY TEXT

M Short term absences

There may be short-term accumulating compensated absences. These are absences for
which an employee is paid, and if the employee’s entitlement has not been used up at the end of
the period, they are carried forward to the next period. An example is paid holiday leave, where
any unused holidays in one year are carried forward to the next year. The cost of the benefits
of such absences should be charged as an expense as the employees render service that
increases their entitlement to future compensated absences.

There may be short-term non-accumulating compensated absences. These are absences
for which an employee is paid when they occur, but an entitlement to the absences does not
accumulate. The employee can be absent, and be paid, but only if and when the circumstances
arise. Examples are maternity/paternity pay, (in most cases) sick pay, and paid absence for
injury service.
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Il >>> Example: Unused holiday leave

A company gives its employees an annual entitlement to paid holiday leave. If there is any
unused leave at the end of the year, employees are entitled to carry forward the unused leave for
up to 12 months. At the end of 20x9, the company’s employees carried forward in total 50 days
of unused holiday leave. Employees are paid Sh.100per day.

Required

State the required accounting for the unused holiday carried forward.

Solution

The short-term accumulating compensated absences should be recognised as a cost in the year
when the entitlement arises, i.e. in 20 x 9.

Profit sharing or bonus plans

Profit shares or bonuses payable within 12 months after the end of the accounting period should
be recognised as an expected cost when the entity has a present obligation to pay it, i.e. when
the employer has no real option but to pay it. This will usually be when the employer recognises
the profit or other performance achievement to which the profit share or bonus relates.

W >>> Example: Profit sharing plan

STUDY TEXT

Sema co runs a profit sharing plan under which it pays 3% of its net profit for the year to its

L]

Required

Which costs should be recognised by Sema co for the profit share?

Solution

Sema co should recognise a liability and an expense of 2.5% of net profit.

Disclosure

There are no specific disclosure requirements for short-term employee benefit in the
proposed standard.
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3.3.4 POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS |

FAST FORWARD: The post employment benefits are paid out of the income from the plan asset
(dividends interest) or from money from the sale of some plan assets.

Many employers provide-employment benefits for their employees after they have stopped
working .pension schemes are the most obvious examples, but an employer might provide
post-employment death benefits to the dependants of former employees, or post-employment
medical cares

Post-employment benefit schemes are often referred to us ‘plans’. The ‘plan’ receives regular
contributions from the employer (and sometimes from current employees as well) and the money
is invested in asset, such as stocks and shares and other investments.

There are two types or categories of post —employment benefit plan, as given in the definition in
section 1 above.

©® Defined contribution plans. With such plans, the employer (and possibly current
employees too) pay regular contributions into the plan of a given or ‘defined’ amount
each year. The contribution are invested , and the size of the post employment benefits
paid to former employees depends on how well or how badly the plan’s investment
perform. If the investment performs well, the plan will be able to afford higher benefits
than if the investments perform less well.

©® Defined benefit plans. With these plans, the size of the post-employment benefit is
predetermined, i.e. the benefit are defined (and possibly current employees too) pay
contributions into the plan, and the contributions are invested. The size of the investment
is at an amount that is expected to earn enough returns to meet the obligation to pay the
post-employment benefits. If however, it becomes apparent that the assets in the fund
are insufficient, the employer will be required to make additional contributions into the
contributions to make up the expected short fall. On the other hand, if the fund’s asset
appear to be larger than they need to be, and in excess of what is required to pay the
post employment benefits, the employer may be allowed to take a ‘contribution holiday’
(i.e. stop paying in contributions for a while).
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It is important to make clear distinction between the following:

® Funding a defined benefit plan, i.e. paying contributions into the plan.

® Accounting for the cost of funding a defined benefit plan.

Before we examine accounting for both these types of schemed me we need to mention a couple
of other issues addressed by the standard.
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[] Multi-employer plans

FAST FORWARD: IAS 19 requires an entity to classify such a plan as a defined contribution plan
or a defined benefit plan, depending on its terms (including any constructive obligation beyond

those terms).

For a multi-employer plan that is a defined benefit plan. The entity should account for its
proportionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan assets and cost associated with the
plan in the same as for any other defined benefit plan and maker full disclosure.

When there is insufficient information to use defined benefit accounting, then the multi employer
benefit plan should be accounted for as defined contribution plan and additional disclosures made
(that the plan is a defined benefit plan and information about any known surplus or deficit).

[] State plans

This are established by legislation to cover some or all entities and are operated by or its agents.
These plans cannot be controlled or influenced by the entity. State plans should be treated the
same as multi-employer plans by the entity.

[] Insurance benefits

STUDY TEXT

Insurance premiums paid by an employer to fund an employee post-employment benefit plan
should be accounted for as defined contribution to the plan, unless the employer, has legal
or constructive obligation to pay the employee benefits directly when they fall due, or to make
further payments in the event that the insurance company does not pay all the post-employment
benefits (relating to services given in prior years and the current period) for which insurance has
been paid.

Hl >>> Examples: insurance benefits.

a) Forexample, Employer paysinsurance premiums to fund post-employment medical care
forformeremployees. Ithas no obligation beyond paying the annual insurance premiums.
The premium paid each year should be accounted for as defined contribution.

a) Employer similarly pays insurance premiums for the same purpose, but retains the
liability to pay for the medical benefits itself. In the case of employer B, the rights under
the insurance policy should be recognised as an asset, and should account for the
obligation to employees as a liability as if there were no insurance policy.
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[[] Summary

a) There are two categories of post-retirements benefits:
a. Defined contribution schemes
b. Defined benefit scheme.

b) Defined contribution schemes provide benefits commensurate with the fund available
to produce them.

c) Defined benefit schemes provide promised benefits and so contributions are based
on estimates of how the fund will perform.

d) Defined contribution scheme costs are easy to account for and this is covered in the
next section.

The remaining section of the chapter deals with the more difficult question of how defined benefit
scheme costs are accounted for.

[] a)Defined contribution plans

Accounting for payments into defined contribution plans is straightforward.

a. The obligation is determined by the amount paid into the plan in each period.

b. There are no actuarial assumptions to make.

c. If the obligation is settled in the current period (or at least no later than 12 months
after the end of the current period) there is no requirement for discounting.

IAS 19 requires the following

1. Contribution to a defined contribution plan should be recognised as an expense in the
period they are payable (except to the extent that labour costs may be included within
the cost of assets.

2. Any liability for unpaid contributions that are due as at the end of the period should be
recognised as a liability (accrued expense).

3. Any excess contributions paid should be recognised as an asset (prepaid expense),
but only to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, e.g. a reduction in future payments
or a cash refund.

In the (unusual) situation where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due
entirely within 12months after the end of the period in which the employees performed the related
service, then these should be discounted. The discount rate to be used is discussed in the next
paragraphs.
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[ ] b) Defined benefit plans: recognition and measurement

Accounting for defined benefit plans is much more complex. The complexity of accounting for
defined benefit plans stems largely from the following factors.

a) The future benefits (arising from employee service in the current or prior years) cannot
be estimated exactly, but whatever they are, the employer will have to pay them, and
the liability should therefore be recognised now. To estimate these future obligations, it
is necessary to use actuarial assumptions.

b) The obligations payable in future years should be valued, by discounting, on a present
value basis. This is because the obligations may be settled in many years’ time.

c) If actuarial assumptions change, the amount of required contributions to the fund will
change, and there may be actuarial gains or losses. A contribution into a fund in any
period is not necessarily the total for that period, due to actuarial gains or losses.

B Outline of the method

An outline of the method used for an employer to account for the expenses and obligation of a
defined benefit plan is given below. The stages will be explained in more detail later.

Step 1 Actuarial assumptions should be used to make a reliable estimate

of the amount of future benefits employees have earned from service in relation to
the current and prior years. Assumptions include, for example, assumptions about
employee turnover, mortality rates, future increases in salaries (if these will affect the
eventual size of future benefits such as pension payments).

Step 2 These future benefits should be attributed to service performed by
employees in the current period, and in prior periods, using the

Projected Unit Credit Method. This gives a total present value of future benefit
obligations arising from past and current periods of service.

Step 3 The fair value of any plan assets should be established.

Step 4 The size of any actuarial gains or losses should be determined, and the
amount of these that will be recognised.

Step 5 If the benefits payable under the plan have been improved, the extra cost
arising from past service should be determined.

Step 6 If the benefits payable under the plan have been reduced or Cancelled,
the resulting gain should be determined.
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H Constructive obligation

IAS 19 makes it very clear that it is not only its legal obligation under the formal terms of a defined
benefit plan that an entity must account for, but also for any constructive obligation that it may
have. A constructive obligation which will arise from the entity’s informal practices, exist when an
entity has no realistic alternative but to pay employee benefits, for example if any change in the
informal practices would cause unacceptable damage to employee relationships.

B The Projected Unit Credit Method

With this method, it is assumed that each period of service by an employee gives rise to an
additional unit of future benefits.

Hl >>> Example: Projected Unit Credit Method

An employer pays a lump sum to employees when they retire. The lump sum is equal to 1% of
their salary in the final year of service, for every year of service they have given.

a) Anemployee is expected to work for 5 years (actuarial assumption)
b) His salary is expected to rise by 8% pa (actuarial assumption)

¢) Hissalaryin 20 x 1is Sh.10,000

d) The discount rate applied is 10%pa
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Required

Calculate the amounts chargeable to each of years 20 x 1 to 20 x 5 and the closing obligation
each year, assuming no change in actuarial assumptions.

Solution

Since his salary in 20 X 1 is Sh.10,000, his salary in 20 x 5 is expected to be Sh.13,605. His lump
sum entitlement is therefore expected to be Sh.136 for each year’s service, i.e. Sh.680 in total.

Using the Projected Unit Credit Method, and assuming that the actuarial assumptions do not
change over any of 20x1 to 20x5, the calculations are as follows.

Future benefit attributable to:

20x1 20x2 20x3 20x4 20x5
Sh. Sh Sh. Sh Sh
Prior years 0 136 272 408 544
Current year
(1% of final salary) — — — — —
136 272 408 544 680
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The future benefit builds up to Sh.680 over the five years, at the end of which the employee is

expected to leave and the benefit is payable.

These figures, however, are not discounted. The benefit attributable to the current year should

be discounted, in this example at 10%, from the end of 20 x 5.

20x1 20x2 20x3 20x4 20x5

Sh Sh Sh Sh Sh

Opening obligation (note 1) - 93 204 336 494
Interest (note 2) - 9 20 34 50
Current service cost (note 3) 93 102 112 124 136
(Closing obligation (note 4) 93 102 112 124 136
93 204 336 494 680

* There is a rounding error of Sh.1 in the calculations. To make the total add up to Sh.680,
the interest of Sh.49.4 has therefore been rounded up to Sh.50 in compensation.

Notes

1. The opening obligation is the closing obligation of the previous period, brought
forward.

2. Interest is charged on this opening obligation to the current year.

3. The current service cost is the future obligation attributed to the current period (in this
example Sh.136 in each year).

STUDY TEXT

4. The closing obligation is the total of the opening obligation brought forward, the interest
charge on that amount and the current year service cost.

5. The calculations in the example above assume that actuarial forecasts are exactly
correct. If these were to prove incorrect (which is likely in practice), there could be an
adjustment to make, resulting in an actuarial gain or an actuarial loss.

H Interest cost

The interest cost in the income statement is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
as at the start of the year multiplied by the discount rate.

Note that the interest charge is not the opening balance sheet liability multiplied by the discount
rate, because the liability is stated after deducting the market value of the plan assets and after
making certain other adjustments, for example for actuarial gains or losses. Interest is the
obligation multiplied by the discount rate.
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M The balance sheet

In the balance sheet, the amount recognised as a defined benefit liability (which may be a
negative amount, i.e. an asset) should be the total of the following:

a) The present value of the defined obligation at the balance sheet date, plus.

b) Any actuarial gains or minus any actuarial losses that have not yet been recognised,
minus

c) Any past service cost not yet recognised (if any), minus

d) The fair value of the assets of the plan as at the balance sheet date (if there are
any) out of which the future obligations to current and past employees will be directly
settled.

If this total is a negative amount, there is a balance sheet asset and this should be shown in the
balance sheet as the lower of (a) and (b) below.

a) The figure as calculated above.

b) The total of the present values of:
a. Any unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs
b. Any refunds expected from the plan
c. Any reductions in the future contributions to the plan because of the surplus.
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The determination of a discount rate is covered below.

[] The income statement

The expense that should be recognised in the income statement for post-employment benefits
in a defined benefit plan is the total of the following.

The current service cost

. Interest

. The expected return on any plan assets

. The actuarial gains or losses, to the extent that they are recognised
. Past service cost to the extent that is recognised

. The effect of any curtailments or settlements
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[] Attributing benefit to periods of service

Consider a situation where a defined benefit plan provides for annual pension for former
employees retirement. The size of the pension is 2.5% of the employee’s salary in his/her final
year, for each full year of service. The pension is payable from the age of 65.

The post-employment benefit for each employee is an annual pension of 2.5% of his/her final
year’s salary for every full year of service. This annual payment obligation should first be
converted to a present ‘lump sum’ value as at the retirement date, using actuarial assumptions.
Having established an obligation as at the expected retirement date, the current service cost
is calculated as the present value of that obligation, i.e. the present value of monthly pension
payments of 2.5% of final salary, multiplied by the number of years of service up to the balance
sheet date.

For example, if an employee is expected to earn Sh.10,000 in his final year of employment, and
is expected to live for 15 years after retirement, the benefit payable for each year of employment
would be calculated as the discounted value, as at retirement date, of Sh.250 per annum for
15 years. This should then be converted to a present value (as at the balance sheet date) to
determine the current service cost for the year for that employee.

Probabilities should be taken into consideration in the calculations. Suppose that a benefit of
Sh.1,000 for every year of service is payable to employees when they retire at the age of 60,
provided that they remain with the employer until they retire (i.e. that they don’t leave to work for
someone else). Suppose also that an employee joins the firm at the age of 40, with 20 years to
work to retirement.

The benefit attributable to each year of service is Sh.1,000 multiplied by the probability that
the employee will remain with the employer until he/she is 60. Since the benefit is payable at
retirement as a lump sum, it should be discounted to a present value as at the balance sheet date
to determine the current service cost for a given year. The obligation should be calculated as the
present value of Sh.40,000 (40years x Sh.1,000) multiplied by the same probability.

STUDY TEXT

No added obligations arise after all significant post — employment benefits have vested;
in other words, no extra post — benefit obligations arise after an employee has already done
everything necessary to qualify in full for the post-employments benefit. Suppose for example
that employees have an entitlement to a lump sum payment on retirement of Sh.20,000. The
benefit vests after 10 years.

In accounting for this lump sum benefit on retirement, a benefit of Sh.2,000 should be attributed
to each of the first ten years of an employee’s service. The current service costin each of the ten
years should be the present value of Sh.20,000. if an employee has 25years to go to retirement
form the time he/she joins the firm there should be a service cost in each of the first ten years,
and none in the 15years thereafter (other than the interest cost on the obligation).

B Question: Service periods

Under Huduma co. plan, all employees are paid a lump sum retirement benefit of Sh.100,000.
They must be still employed aged 55 after 20years’ service, or still employed at the age of 65, no
matter what their length of service.
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Required

State how this benefit should be attributed to service periods.

Answer

This answer is in three parts.

a) In the case of those employees joining before age 35, service first leads to benefits
under this plan at the age of 35, because an employee could leave at the age of 30
and return at the age of 33, with no effect on the amount/timing of benefits. In addition,
service beyond age 55 will lead to no further benefits. Therefore, for these employees
Huduma Co. Should allocate Sh.100,000 +20 = Sh.5,000 to each year between the
ages of 35 and 55.

b) In the case of employees joining between the ages of 35 and 45, service beyond 20
years will lead to no, further benefit. For these employees, Huduma Co. should allocate

Sh.100,000 + 20 = Sh.5,000 to each of the first 20 years.

c) Employees joining at 55 exactly will receive no further benefit past 65, so Huduma Co
should allocate Sh.100,000 + 10 = Sh.10,000 to each of the first 10 years.

The current service cost and the present value of the obligation for all employees reflect the
probability that the employee may not complete the necessary period of service.

[[] Actuarial assumptions

Actuarial assumptions are needed to estimate the size of the future (post-employment)
benefits that will be payable under a defined benefits scheme. The main categories of actuarial
assumptions are as follows:

. Demographic assumptions are about mortality rates before and after retirement, the
rate of employee turnover, early retirement, claim rates under medical plans for former
employees, and so on.

. Financial assumptions are the discount rate to apply, the expected return on plan
assets, future salary levels (allowing for seniority and promotion as well as inflation)
and the future rate of increase in medical costs (not just inflationary cost rises, but also
cost rises specific to medical treatments and to medical treatments required given the
expectations of longer average life expectancy).

The standard requires actuarial assumptions to be neither too cautions nor too imprudent: they
should be ‘unbiased’. They should also be based on ‘market expectations’ at the balance
sheet date, over the period during which the obligations will be settled.

The discount rate adopted should be determined by reference to market yields (at the balance
sheet date) on high quality fixed-rate corporate bonds. In the absence of a ‘deep’ market in such
bonds, the yields on comparable government bonds should be used as reference instead. The

[
>
L
—
>
(@]
o
[
n




STUDY TEXT

ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

maturity that is consistent with the expected maturity of the post employment benefit obligations,
although a single weighted average discount rate is sufficient.

The guidelines comment that there may be some difficulty in obtaining a reliable yield for long-
term maturities, say 30 or 40 years from now. This should not however be a significant problem:
the present value of obligations payable in many years time will be relatively small and unlikely to
be sensitive to errors in the assumption about the discount rate for long term maturities (beyond
the maturities of long-term corporate or government bonds).

[] Actuarial gains or losses

Actuarial gains or losses arise because of the following:

a) Actual events (e.g. Employee turnover, salary increases) differ from the actuarial
assumptions that were made to estimate the defined benefit obligations.

b) Actuarial assumptions are revised (e.g. a different discount rate is used, or a different
assumption is made about future employee turnover, salary rises, mortality rates, and
SO on).

c) Actual returns on plan assets differ from expected returns

Since actuarial assumptions are rarely going to be exact, some actuarial gains or losses are
inevitable. The proposed standard suggests that, given the inevitability of actuarial gains or
losses, they should not be recognised unless they appear ‘significant’. They are not sufficient
to warrant recognition if they fall within a tolerable range or ‘corridor’.

The standard requires the following:

a) An entity should, as a general rule, recognise actuarial gains and losses as an item
of income or expense (income statement), and as a part of the deferred benefit liability
(balance sheet).

b) However, only a portion of such actuarial gains or losses (as calculated above) should
be recognised if the net cumulative actuarial gains/losses exceed the greater of:

i. 10% of the present value of the defined benefit obligation (i.e. before deducting
plan assets), and
ii. 10% of the fair value of the plan assets.

A separate calculation should be made for each defined benefit plan: two or more plans should
not be aggregated.

The excess calculated under paragraph 5.26(b) should be divided by the expected average
remaining working lives of participating employees and this gives the portion of actuarial
gains and losses to be recognised.
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IAS 19 allows, however, any systematic method to be adopted if it results in faster recognition
of actuarial gains and losses. The same basis must be applied to both gains and losses and
applied consistently between periods.

[[] Immediate recognition — amendment to IAS 19

In December 2004, the IASB issued an amendment to IAS 19. This allows an entity to recognise
actuarial gains and losses immediately in the period in which it arises, outside profit and loss.
These gains and losses need to be presented in the statement of recognised income and
expenses. This statement would be compulsory for entities recognising actuarial gains and
losses in reserves. If the entity adopts this approach, it must do so:

a) Forallits defined benefits plans.

b) For all its actuarial gains and losses
In addition, the amendment requires improved disclosures, including many also required by
FRS 17, and slightly eases the methods whereby the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements have to be allocated to individual group companies for the purposes of their
own reporting under IFRSs.

[] Past service cost

A past service cost arises when an entity either introduces a defined benefits plan or improves
the benefits payable under an existing plan. As a result, the entity has taken on additional
obligations that it has not hitherto provided for. For example, an employer might decide to
introduce a medical benefits scheme for former employees. This will create a new defined
benefit obligation that has not yet been provided for. How should this obligation be accounted
for?

A past service cost may be in respect of either current employees or past employee. IAS 19
has introduced a different accounting treatment for past service cost, according to whether they
relate to current employees or past employees.

a) For current employees, the past service cost should be recognised as part of the
defined benefit liability in the balance sheet. For the income statement, the past service
cost should be amortised on a straight line basis over the average period until the
benefits become vested.

b) For past employees (if the change affects them) the past service cost should be
recognised in full immediately the plan is introduced or improved (i.e. because they are
immediately ‘vested’), as part of the defined benefit liability and as an expense (in full)
to the financial period.
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B Question (past service costs)

Wakili Co operates a pension plan that provides a pension of 2% of final salary for every year
of service and the benefits become vested after five years’ service. On 1 January 20 x 6 Wakili
Co improved the pension to 2.5% of final salary for every year of service starting from 1 January
20x2.

At the date of improvement, the present value of the additional benefits for service from 1 January
20x2 to 1 January 20 x 6 is as follows.

Sh.m
Employees with more than 5 years’ service at 1/11x 6 300
Employees with less than 5 years’ service at 1/11x6
(average period until vesting = 3years 240
540

Required

State the correct accounting treatment for past service costs.

Answer

Wakili Co. should recognise Sh.300m immediately, because these benefits are already vested.
Sh.240m should be recognised on a straight — line basis over three years from 1 January 20 x
6.

STUDY TEXT

[[] Plan assets

The contributions into a plan by the employer (and employees) are invested, and the plan builds
up assets in the form of stocks and shares, etc. The fair value of these plan assets are
deducted from the defined benefits obligation, in calculating the balance sheet liability. This
makes sense, because the employer is not liable to the defined benefits scheme to the extent
that the assets of the fund are sufficient to meet those obligations.

The standard includes the following specific requirements:

a) The fair value of the plan assets should be net of any transaction costs that would be
incurred in selling them.

b) The plan assets should exclude any contributions due from the employer but not yet
paid.
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Bl Return on Plan assets

It is also necessary to recognise the distinction between:

. The expected return on the plan assets, which is an actuarial assumption, and
. The actual return made by the plan assets in a financial period.

The expected return on the plan assets is a component element in the income statement, not
the actual returns. The difference between the expected return and the actual return may
also be included in the income statement, but within the actuarial gains or losses. This difference
will only be reported it the actuarial gains or losses are outside the 10% corridor for these gains
or losses, otherwise they will not be included in the expense item because they are not regarded
as significant.

Hl >>> Example: Plan assets

At 1 January 20 x 2 the fair value of the assets of a defined benefit plan were valued at Sh.1m.
Net cumulative actuarial gains and losses were Sh.76,000.

On 31 December 20x2, the plan received contributions from the employer of Sh.490,000 and ;
paid out benefits of 190,000. w
After these transactions, the fair value of the plan’s assets at 31 December 20 x 2 was Sh.1.5m. =
The present value of the defined benefit obligation was Sh.1,479,200 and actuarial losses on the >
obligation for 20 x 2 were Sh.6,000. o
D

The expected return on the plan assets (net of investment transaction costs) is 8% per annum. -
The reporting entity made the following estimates at 1 January 20 x 2, based on market prices @
at that date.

%
Dividend/interest income (after tax payable by fund) 9.25
Realised and unrealised gains (after tax) on plan assets 2.00
Administration costs (1.00)

10.25
Required

Calculate the expected and actual return on plan assets, calculate any actuarial gain or loss and
state the required accounting.
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Solution

The expected and actual return for 20 x 2 are as follows.

Sh.

Return on Sh.1m held for 12months at 10.25% 102,500
Return on Sh.(490,000 — 190,000) = Sh.300,000 15,000
For 6months at 5% (i.e. 10.25% annually compounded every 6months) 117,500
Sh.

Fair value of plan assets at 31/12/x2 1,500,000
Less fair value of plan assets at 1/1 x 2 1,000,000
Less contributions received (470,000)
Add benefits paid 190,000
Actual return on plan assets 200,000

Actuarial gain = Sh.(200,000 — 117,500) = Sh.82,500.

Therefore cumulative net unrecognised actuarial gains = Sh.(76,000 + 82,500 — 6, 000) =

Sh.152,500.

The limits of the corridor are set at the greater of:

10% x Sh.1,500,000 and
10% x Sh.1,479,920.

In 20 x 3, the entity should recognise an actuarial gain of Sh.(152,500 — 150,000) = Sh.2,500,

divided by the expected average remaining working life of the relevant employees.

For 20 x 3, the expected return on plan assets will be based on market expectations at 1/1 x 3 for

returns over the entire life of the obligation.

The following accounting treatment is required:

o In the income statement, an expected return on fund assets of Sh.117,500 will be
recognised, together with an actuarial gain of Sh.2,500 divided by the expected average

remaining useful life of the employees.
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. In the balance sheet, the defined benefit liability will adjust the defined benefit obligation
as at 31 December 20 x 2. The unrecognised actuarial gain (i.e. the gain within the
10% corridor) should be added, and the market value of the plan assets as at that date
should be subtracted.

B Summary
The recognition and measurement of defined benefit plan costs are complex issues.

. Learn the outline method of accounting
. Learn the calculations for the Projected Unit Credit Method
. Learn the recognition method for the:

® Balance sheet
® Income statement

[ ] Defined benefit plans: Other matters

This section looks at the presentation and disclosure of defined benefit plans, but we begin here
by looking at the special circumstances of curtailment and settlements.

M 1. Curtailments and settlements
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A curtailments occurs when an entity cuts back on the benefits available under a defined benefit
scheme, so that there is either a significant reduction in the number of employees eligible for the
post — employment benefits (e.g. because a large number of staff have been made redundant
due to plant closure), or there is a reduction in the post-employment benefits that will be given for
the future service of current employees.

Asettlement occurs either when an employer pays off its post — employment benefit obligations in
exchange for making a lump sum payment, or when an employer reduces the of post-employment
benefits payable in future in respect of past service.

A curtailment and settlement might happen together, for example when an employer brings
a defined benefit plan to an by settling the obligation with one-of lump sum payment and then
scrapping the plan.

Gains or losses arising from curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan should be
recognised in full in the financial year that they occur. These gains or losses will comprise
the following.

Any change in the present value of the future obligations of the entity as a result of the
curtailment or settlement.

Any change in the fair value of the plan asset as consequence of the curtailment or
settlement.
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Any related actuarial gains/ losses and past service cost that had not previously been
recognised.

An entity should remeasure the obligation (and the related plan assets, if any) using current
actuarial assumptions, before determining the effect of curtailment or settlement.

QUESTION

Hossan Co. discontinued a business segment. Employees of the discontinued segment will
earn no further benefits (i.e. this is a curtailment without a settlement). Using current actuarial
assumptions (including current market interest rates and other current market prices) immediately
before the curtailment, the Hewsan Co. had a defined benefit obligation with a net present value
of Sh.500,000, plan assets with a fair value of Sh.410,000 and net cumulative unrecognised
actuarial gains of Sh.25,000. The entity had first adopted IAS 19 (revised) one year later. This
increased the net liability by Sh.50,000, which the entity chose to recognise over five years (this
is permitted under the transitional provisions: see below).

Required

Show the required treatment for the curtailment

Answer

Of the previously unrecognised actuarial gains and transitional amounts, 10% (Sh.50,000/
Sh.500,000) relates to the part of the obligation that was eliminated through the curtailment.
Therefore, the effect of the curtailment is as follows.

Before Curtailment Curtailment gain After curtailment
Sh.’000 Sh.’000 Sh.’000
Ne’F prgsent value of 500.0 (50.0) 450.0
obligation
Fair value of plan assets (410.0) - (410.0)
90.0 (50.0) 40.0
Un_recognlsed actuarial 25.0 (2.5) 22.5
gains
Unrecognised 36.0
transitional amount 40.0 4.0 :
(Sh.50,000 x 4/5)
Net liability recognised in 750 435 26.5
balance sheet — —
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[ ] Presentation and disclosure

The standard states that an entity should not offset an set relating to one plan against a liability
relating to a different plan, unless the entity has a legally enforceable right of offset and intends
to use it.

The disclosure requirements given below are substantial and you won’t be expected to know
all the details in the exam. Just try to appreciate the reasons for the disclosure and the
general approach.

B Exam focus

Point

Areporting entity should disclosure the following information about post retirement defined benefit
plans.

% Accounting policy for recognising actuarial gains and losses.
% General description of the type of plan

< Reconciliation of the assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet, showing
the following as a minimum.
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o  Present value at the balance sheet date of defined benefit obligations that are wholly
unfunded.

o  Present value (before deducting the fair value of plan assets) at the balance sheet date

of defined benefit obligations that are wholly or partly funded.

Fair value of any plan assets at the balance sheet date.

Net actuarial gains or losses not recognised in the balance sheet.

Past service cost not yet recognised in the balance sheet.

Any amount not recognised as an asset, because of the limit.

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet.

O 0O O O O©O

7/
0.0

Amounts included in the fair value of plan assets for:
o  Each category of the reporting entity’s own financial instruments, and
o  Any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the reporting entity

% Reconciliation showing the movements during the period in the net liability (or asset)
recognised in the balance sheet.

< Total expense recognised in the income statement for each of the following and the



ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

line item(s) of the income statement in which they are included.

Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets
Actuarial gains and losses

Past service cost

Effect of any curtailment or settlement

o O O O O O

% Actual return on plan assets.

% Principal actuarial assumptions used as at the balance sheet date, including, where
applicable:

Discount rates
Expected rates of return on any plan assets for the periods presented in the financial
statements.

o  Expected rates of salary increases (and of changes in an index or other variable specified
in the formal or constructive terms of a plan as the basis for future benefit increases.
Medical cost trend rates
Any other material actuarial assumptions used

Disclose each actuarial assumption in absolute terms (e.g. as an absolute percentage) and not
just as a margin between different percentages or other variables.

It would be useful for you to do one last question on accounting for post employment defined
benefit schemes. Questions on these are most likely in the exam.

STUDY TEXT
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[
- CHAPTER SUMMARY

Corporation tax: is the tax payable by a company as a result of generating profits from trading.

Deferred tax: is the corporation tax that is likely to be incurred on the activities of a company
during a particular period but, because of differences between the way activities are included in
the accounting profit and taxable income, will be paid in another period.

Temporary differences include differences between the fair values and the tax values of assets
and liabilities acquired and the effect of revaluing assets and liabilities acquired and the effect of
revaluing assets for accounting purposes.

The full provision method is based on the view that every transaction has a tax consequence
and it is possible to make a reasonable estimate of the future tax consequences of transactions
that have occurred by the balance sheet date.

Timing Differences: is items reported in the accounts in periods different from those in which
they are reflected in tax computations. These differences originate in one period and reverse in
one or more subsequent periods.

Full deferral: requires that full tax effects of all timing differences are recognised as they arise.
The approach is arithmetically accurate but can lead to the build up of large, meaningless
provisions appearing on the balance sheet.
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Partial deferral: requires that the income tax expense excludes the tax effects of certain timing
differences when there is reasonable evidence that those timing differences will not reverse for
some considerable period (at least 3 years) ahead.

Employee benefits: are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service
rendered by employees.

Short —-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which
fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service.

Post-employment benefits are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides
post employment benefits for one or more employees.
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Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution
plans.

Multi — employer plans are defined contribution plans (other than state plans) or defined benefit
plans (other than state plans) that:

a) Pool the assets contributed by various entities that are not under common control,
and

b) use those assets to provide benefits to employees of more than one entity, on the basis
that contribution and benefit levels are determined without regard to the identity of the
entity that employs the employees concerned.

Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post employment benefits
and termination benefits) which do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:

a) anentity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement
date, or

b) an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future
employment.

The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value, without deducting any
plan assets, of expected future payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employee
service in the current and prior periods.
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[
- CHAPTER QUIZ

1. What should be disclosed in relation to taxes?
2. What were the reasons for rejecting the partial provision method?
3.  What are the categories of employee benefits?

4. Explain the following:
i) Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund
i) A qualifying insurance policy
iii) The return of plan assets
iv) Actuarial gains and losses
v) Past service cost
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|
- ANSWERS TO THE CHAPTER QUIZ

1. Disclosures

i.  Tax expense (income) must be shown separately on the face of the income statement,
with separate disclosure made of its major components and any tax expense (income)
relating to extra ordinary items.

ii. Tax expense (income) relating to the gain or loss on discontinuance for discontinued
operations and to the profit or loss from the ordinary activities of the discontinued
operation for the period must also be disclosed.

ii.  An explanation is required of the relationship between tax expense (or income) and
accounting profit either of numerical reconciliation between the average effective tax
rate and the applicable tax rate. An explanation is required of any changes in the
applicable tax rate(s) compared to the previous period.

iv.  The aggregate amount of temporary differences for which either deferred tax assets
or liabilities have not been recognized (i.e. for unremitted “re-invested” earnings of
subsidiaries should be disclosed. For each type of temporary difference and for unused
tax losses and credits, disclosure is required of the amount of deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognized and the amount of deferred tax income or expense recognized.
The amount of any deferred tax asset and evidence supporting its recognition must
be disclosed when its utilization is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of
the profits arising from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, and the
enterprise has suffered a loss in the current or previous period in the tax jurisdiction
to which the deferred tax asset relates. Separate disclosure is also required of the
aggregate current and deferred tax relating to items that are charged or credited to
equity.

STUDY TEXT

2. Reasons for rejecting the partial provision method.
The partial provision method allowed companies to avoid creating provisions for tax
that they argued they were unlikely to pay. However, by the early 1990s, concerns were
being expressed about the method and the way in which it was being applied. It was
noted in particular that:

i. The recognition rules and anticipation of future events were subjective and inconsistent
with the principles underlying other aspects of accounting.

i.  The partial provision method had not been regarded as appropriate for dealing with the
long-term deferred tax assets associated with provisions for post-retirement benefits.
As aresult, SSAP 15 had been amended in 1992 to permit such assets to be accounted
for on a full provision basis. The amendment introduced inconsistencies into SSAP
15.

iii.  There were variations in the way in which SSAP 15 was applied in practice. Different
entities within the same industry and with similar prospects seemed to take quite
different views on the levels of provisions necessary. There was evidence that some
companies provided for deferred tax in full for simplicity’s sake rather than because
their circumstances required it. The different approaches being taken reduced the
comparability of financial statements.

Because of its recognition rules and anticipation of future events, the partial provision
method was increasingly being rejected by standard-setters in other countries. The
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US Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) had issued a standard FAS 109
‘Accounting for Income Taxes’ requiring full provision. The International Accounting
Standards Committee (IASC) had published proposals for similar requirements and
other standard —setters had started to move in the same direction.

When rejecting the partial provision method, the FASB and IASC argued in particular that:

(i)

(ii)

Every tax timing difference represented a real liability, since everyone would reverse
and, whatever else happened, an entity would pay more tax in future as a result of the
reversal than it would have done in the absence of the timing difference.

It was only the impact of new timing differences arising in future that prevented the
total liability from reducing. It was inappropriate (and inconsistent with other areas of
accounting) to take account of future transactions when measuring an existing liability.

(iii) The assessment of the liability using the partial provision method relied on management

intentions regarding future events. Standard setters were uncomfortable with this,
having already embodied in a number of other standards the principle that liabilities
should be determined on the basis of obligations rather than management decisions or
intentions.

The standard recognises four categories of employee benefits. These are:
Short-term benefits including:

Wages and salaries

Social security contributions

Paid annual leave

Paid sick leave

Paid maternity/Paternity leave

Profit shares and bonuses paid within 12 months of the year end
Paid jury service

Paid military service

Non-monetary benefits, e.g. medical care, cars, free goods.

Post employment benefits e.g. Pensions and post employment medical care

Other long-term benefits e.g. profit shares, bonuses or deferred compensation payable
later than 12months after the year end, sabbatical leave, long-service benefits.

Termination benefits e.g. early retirement payments and redundancy payments.

(i) Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund are assets (other than non-
transferable financial instruments issued by the reporting entity) that:

Are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separates from the reporting entity and
exists solely to pay or fund employee benefits; and

Are available to be used only to pay or fund employee benefits, are not available to
the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in bankruptcy), and cannot be returned to the
reporting entity, unless either:

the remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related employee benefit
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obligations of the plan or the reporting entity; or

i) the assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits
already paid

(ii) A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a
related policy (as defined in IAS 24) of the reporting entity, if the process of the policy:

a) Can be used only to pay or fund employee benefits under a defined benefit plan: or
b) Are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditor’s (even in bankruptcy) and cannot
be paid to the reporting entity, unless either:

i)  The proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the
related employee benefit obligations of the plan or the reporting entity; or

i) The assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits
already paid.

(iii) The return of plan assets is interest, dividends and other revenue derived from the
plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets,
less any cost of administering the plan and loess any tax payable by the plan itself.

(iv) Actuarial gains and losses comprise:

a) Experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial
assumptions and what has actually occurred), and
b) The effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.

(v) Past service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
for employee service in prior periods, resulting the in the current periods, resulting in the
current period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment benefits or other
long-term employee benefits. Past service cost may be either positive (where benefits
are introduced or improved) or negative (where existing benefits are reduced).

|
- PAST PAPER ANALYSIS

Corporation tax was tested in the following examinations:
06/'03

12/01

06/01

Deferred tax was tested in the following examinations:
06/'06

06/'03

12/01

06/01

STUDY TEXT
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Employee benefits was tested in the following examinations:
12/07
06/'06
12/'03

H
. EXAM QUESTIONS

QUESTION ONE

(a) Explain the following terms with reference to International Accounting Standard 19
(Employee Benéefits):

(i) Current service cost (2 marks)
(i) Past service cost (2 marks)
(iii) Vested employee benefits (2 marks)

(b) ABC Ltd. contributes sh.30 million per annum to a pension scheme and treats the
amount as current service cost pension expense.

On 1 July 1998, the actuarial valuation of the scheme showed a deficit of sh.600 million.
The actuary recommended that the deficit be cleared within four years by paying sh.150
million per year in addition to the annual service costs. The average remaining service
life of employees in the scheme on 1 July 1998 was eight years.
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Required:

For each of the remaining eight service years of the employees, calculate the pension expense
and pension expense and pension liability or prepayment. (6 marks)

(c) XYZ Ltd. contributes sh.60 million annually to a pension scheme and treats the amount
as being “equivalent to annual service cost.

On 1 January 1996, the actuarial valuation showed that the scheme had a surplus of
sh.320 million. The actuary recommended non-contribution to the scheme for
three years then a resumption of annual contribution of sh.40 million per annum for
the following seven years before reverting to the standard annual contribution of
sh.60 million.

The average remaining service years of employees, calculate the pension expense and
pension liability or prepayment. (8 marks)
(Total: 20 marks)

(CPA 2006)
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|
- CASE STUDY

Case Study: Abbey
2009-02-01

As a financial institution, Abbey regards financial education as being paramount to the wellbeing
of its 16,000 employees, particularly during the current economic climate.

It is planning to launch a workplace financial education programme to help staff cope with the
credit crunch, following on from an initiative built around its sharesave scheme last year.

Maria Strid, head of reward, says: “We feel it is important to keep investment in financial education
high.” The company’s intranet site is also used for updating staff on perks. “To ensure employees
can easily access all benefits, we have invested in an online benefits communication platform.
This has made it easy for staff to see what Abbey offers that can make a difference to take-home
pay, for example, discounted retail vouchers.”

Source: www.google.com- case studies on employee benefits

STUDY TEXT
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CHAPTER FOUR

PRESENTATION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (PART A)

» OBJECTIVES

After this chapter, the student will be able to:

® Prepare cashflow statements
® Calculate earnings per share

®©  Prepare segmental reports

» INTRODUCTION

A trading and profit account is the usual method of describing what has happened in a business
during the past year, and it incorporates many adjustments in order to show a more true and fair
view of the profit.

EPS is the amount of earnings for a period that is attributable to each ordinary/equity share. As
per IAS 33 ‘Earnings per share’, enterprises whose ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares
are publicly traded and those enterprises that are in the process of issuing ordinary shares or
potential ordinary shares in public securities market should calculate and disclose earnings per
share.

Potential ordinary shares are securities, which are not presently equity shares but, which have
the potential of causing additional equity shares to be issued in the future.

IAS 24 is about companies disclosing requirements about transactions with related companies or
parties. It is one of the shortest standard and therefore not difficult to comprehend.

» DEFINITION OF KEY TERMS

Free Cash flows: Is the Cash from operations less the amount of capital expenditures required
to maintain the firm’s present productive capacity.

Rights issue is regarded as an issue for cash at full market price and partly a bonus issue on the
combined number of original and assumed rights shares.
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Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or to
exercise significant influence or joint control over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services, or obligations between related
parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

» EXAM CONTEXT

In past examinations, the examiner has tested the students’ knowledge on the following topics:

Cashflow statements

Earnings per share

Related parties
. Segmental reports

Students should therefore understand these topics.

» INDUSTRY CONTEXT

STUDY TEXT

This chapter will enable firms to know how to prepare cashflow statements which are necessary
to:

a. Assess the enterprise’s ability to generate positive future cash flows;

b. Assess the enterprise’s ability to meet its obligations, pay dividends and meet its needs
for external reporting;

c. Assess the reasons for differences between net income and related cash receipts and
payments; and

d. Assess the effects on the enterprise’s financial position of both cash and non-cash
investing and financing transactions during the period.

Firms will also be able to calculate their earnings per share and prepare segment reports.



SSENTATION AND ANALY SIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (PART A)

4.1 INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (1AS 34)

4.1.0. Introduction and scope |

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting prescribes the minimum content for an interim financial
report, and the principles for recognition and measurement in complete and condensed financial
statements for an interim period. The Standard has been effective since 1 January 1999, and
was most recently amended as a consequential amendment of IAS 1(2007) Presentation of
Financial Statements, resulting in changes in terminology, and in the titles and layout of certain
of the financial statements to be included in interim financial reports. These amendments are
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments, which supersedes IAS 14 Segment Reporting and is effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, has expanded the segment information to
be disclosed in interim financial reports. In this guide, it is assumed that the interim accounting
period under consideration begins on or after 1 January 2009 — no reference is made to the
requirements of IAS 34 applicable to earlier periods.

4.1.1 Scope of IAS 34 |

IAS 34 applies to interim financial reports that are described as complying with International
Financial Reporting Standards. [IAS 34.3]

Interim financial reports are financial reports containing either a complete set of financial
statements (as described in IAS 1) or a set of condensed financial statements (as described later
in this guide) for an interim period. An interim period is a financial reporting period shorter than
a full financial year. [IAS 34.4]

STUDY TEXT

4.1.2 No requirement to prepare Interim Financial Reports I

IAS 34 does not contain any rules as to which entities should publish interim financial reports, how
frequently, or how soon after the end of an interim period. The Standard notes that governments,
securities regulators, stock exchanges, and accountancy bodies often require entities with
publicly-traded debt or equity to publish interim financial reports, and that those regulations will
generally specify the frequency and timing of such reports. However, IAS 34 encourages publicly-
traded entities:

[IAS 34.1]
. to provide interim financial reports at least as of the end of the first half of their financial
year; and

. to make their interim financial reports available no later than 60 days after the end of the
interim period.
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4.1.3 No requirement for Interim Financial Reports to comply with IAS 34

Each financial report, annual or interim, is evaluated on a stand-alone basis for compliance with
IFRSs. It is important to note that entities that prepare annual financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs are not precluded from preparing interim financial reports that do not comply with
IFRSs, provided that the interim report does not state that it is IFRS-compliant. The fact that an
entity has not published interim financial reports during a financial year, or that it has published
interim financial reports that do not comply with IAS 34, does not prevent the entity’s annual
financial statements from conforming to IFRSs, if they are otherwise IFRS-compliant. [IAS 34.1
& 2]

4.1.4 Preliminary Announcements I

IAS 34 does not address the content of preliminary interim earnings announcements (i.e. those
earnings announcements issued shortly after the end of an interim period that disclose abbreviated
preliminary financial information for the interim period just ended). IAS 34.3 does state, however,
that if an interim financial report is described as complying with IFRSs, it must comply with all of
the requirements of IAS 34.

Therefore, if any reference to IFRSs is made in a preliminary interim earnings announcement,
the following sentences (or something substantively similar) should be included in that earnings
release.

‘While the financial figures included in this preliminary interim earnings announcement
have been computed in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) applicable to interim periods, this announcement does not contain sufficient
information to constitute an interim financial report as that term is defined in IFRSs. The
directors expect to publish an interim financial report that complies with IAS 34 in March
20X2’
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|
- 4.2. CONTENT OF AN INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORT

4.2.1 General principles underlying the preparation of financial

statements

If an entity presents a complete set of financial statements for interim reporting purposes (as
described in IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — see chapter 3 of this guide), it must
apply IAS 1 in full. If an entity presents a condensed set of financial statements for interim
reporting purposes, IAS 1.4 contains the following guidance.

“This Standard does not apply to the structure and content of condensed interim financial
statements prepared in accordance with |IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. However,
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S

paragraphs 15-35 apply to such financial statements.”

Paragraphs 15-35 of IAS 1, which therefore apply when preparing all interim financial reports
(whether condensed or complete), deal with:

. Fair presentation and compliance with ifrss;

. Going concern;

I:| o Accrual basis QI accounting-

. Materiality and aggregation; and

. Offsetting.

4.2.2 Minimum components |

Entities reporting in accordance with IAS 34 are required to include in their interim financial
reports, at a minimum, the following components:

[IAS 34.8]

. a condensed statement of financial position;
. a condensed statement of comprehensive income, presented as either:

. a condensed single statement; or
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. a condensed separate income statement and a condensed statement of comprehensive
income;

. a condensed statement of changes in equity;
. a condensed statement of cash flows; and

. Selected explanatory notes.

If, in its annual financial statements, an entity presents the components of profit or loss in a
separate income statement as described in IAS 1.81, it should also present interim condensed
information in a separate statement. [IAS 34.8A]

Note that the titles of the financial statements listed above have been amended as a consequential
amendment of IAS 1(2007). Entities are permitted to use titles for these statements other than
those set out above. An entity would be expected to use the same titles in its interim financial
report as are used in its annual financial statements.

These amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and entities
should describe their effect on the financial statements in the first interim financial report for that
year.
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4.3.1 Entities that report half-yearly

|
- 4.3 PERIODS REQUIRED TO BE PRESENTED
431 Entities that report halfyearly ____ EESS———

Based on the requirements of IAS 34.20, example 2.3.1 illustrates the statements required to be
presented in the interim financial report of an entity that reports half-yearly, with a 31 December
20X9 year end.

Bl >>> Example 2.3.1

Statements required for entities that report half-yearly

Statement Current Comparative
Statement of financial position at 30 June 20X9 31 December 20X8
; Statement of comprehensive income (and,
:"_J where applicable, separate income statement)
> — 6 months ended 30 June 20X9 30 June 20X8
g Statement of changes in equity
- — 6 months ended 30 June 20X9 30 June 20X8
= Statement of cash flows
— 6 months ended 30 June 20X9 30 June 20X8

Content of an interim financial report 3

4.3.2 Entities that report quarterly

Based on the requirements of IAS 34.20, example 2.3.2 illustrates the statements required to be
presented in the half-yearly interim financial report of an entity that reports quarterly, with a 31
December 20X9 year end.
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M >>> Example 2.3.2

Statements required for entities that report quarterly

Statement

Current Comparative
Statement of financial position at 30 June 20X9 31 December 20X8
Statement of comprehensive income (and, where
applicable, separate income statement)
— 6 months ended 30 June 20X9 30 June 20X8
— 3 months ended 30 June 20X9 30 June 20X8
Statement of changes in equity
— 6 months ended 30 June 20X9 30 June 20X8

Statement of cash flows
— 6 months ended 30 June 20X9 30 June 20X8

4.3.3 Entities with seasonal businesses ]

The requirements of IAS 34.20, as discussed above, specify the minimum periods for which
interim financial statements are to be presented.

However, entities may wish to provide additional information. For example, an entity whose
business is highly seasonal is encouraged to disclose financial information relating to the twelve
months up to the end of the interim period, and comparative information for the equivalent
twelvemonth period in the prior year. [IAS 34.21]

4.3.4 Change of financial year end -

l >>> Example 2.3.4
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Comparative interim period when financial year end changes

Company A’s financial year ends on 31 March. It reports half-yearly. It prepared annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 20X1.

Subsequently, it published a half-yearly report for the six months ended 30 September 20X1.

Company A changes its financial year end to 31 December and prepares ‘annual’ financial
statements for the nine months ended 31 December

20X1. Its half-yearly interim report for 20X2 will be for the six months ended 30 June 20X2. What
comparative period should be used for the

June 20X2 interim financial report?
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IAS 34 does not consider the circumstances where there is a change in the financial year end. IAS
34.20 requires the presentation of comparative information for the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows, for “comparable interim
periods”. In many circumstances, using the period from 1 January 20X1 to 30 June 20X1 as
the comparative period may be preferable to using the amounts previously reported for the
period from 1 April 20X1 to 30 September 20X1, because this would enable users to compare
trends over time, particularly in a seasonal business. However, based on the particular facts and
circumstances, other periods may be appropriate (e.g. where local regulations prescribe the
comparative period(s) to be presented following a change in financial year end).

Content of an interim financial report 5

4.3.5 Comparative financial statements when interim financial reports

are produced for the first time

When an entity is preparing its first interim financial report under IAS 34, unless the report relates
to the first period of operation, it should generally include comparatives as discussed in the
previous sections. In the exceptional circumstances where the entity does not have available

in its accounting records the financial information needed to prepare the comparative interim
financial statements, the entity has no choice but to omit prior period comparative financial
statements.

In the circumstances described, however, the omission of the comparative financial statements
represents a non-compliance with IAS 34.

Therefore, the interim financial report cannot be described as complying with IAS 34 without an
‘except for’ statement regarding the omission of prior period comparative figures. Both the fact
of, and the reason for, the omission should be disclosed.
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|
- 44 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

If the entity’s most recent annual financial statements were consolidated statements, then the
interim financial report should also be prepared on a consolidated basis. If the entity’s annual
financial report included the parent’s separate financial statements in addition to consolidated
financial statements, IAS 34 neither requires nor prohibits the inclusion of the parent’s separate
statements in the entity’s interim report. [IAS 34.14]

Where the entity has disposed of all of its subsidiaries during the interim period, such that it has
no subsidiaries at the end of the interim reporting period, it should prepare its interim financial
report on a consolidated basis because it had subsidiaries at some point during the interim
period. The statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement
of cash flows will include the impact of the subsidiaries up to the date(s) of disposal and the
effects of the disposal.
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|
- 4.5 MATERIALITY

Materiality is defined in IAS 1.7 as follows.

“Omissions or misstatements of items are material ifthey could, individually or collectively;
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
Materiality depends on the size and nature of the omission or misstatement, judged in
the surrounding circumstances. The size or nature of the item, or a combination of both,
could be the determining factor.”

IAS 34.23 requires that, in deciding how to recognise measure, classify, or disclose an item for
interim financial reporting purposes, materiality should be assessed in relation to the interim
period financial data. In making assessments of materiality, it should be recognised that interim
measurements may rely on estimates to a greater extent than measurements of annual financial
data.

While materiality judgments are always subjective, the overriding concern is to ensure that
an interim financial report includes all of the information that is relevant to understanding the
financial position and performance of the entity during the interim period. Therefore, it is generally
inappropriate to base quantitative estimates of materiality on projected annual figures.
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4.6. CONDENSED OR COMPLETE INTERIM FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Where the minimum required information for interim financial statements prescribed by IAS 34.8
(as listed in section 2.2 above) is presented, the resultant financial statements are described
as ‘condensed’. However, entities also have the option of including a complete set of financial
statements in their interim financial reports. Where an entity takes this alternative, the form and
content of the financial statements must conform to the requirements of IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements for a complete set of financial statements, in addition to complying with the
requirements of IAS 34. [IAS 34.7 & 9] Therefore, the measurement and disclosure requirements
of all relevant Standards apply. These include all measurement and disclosure requirements
of IAS 34 and, in particular, the selected explanatory note disclosures listed in IAS 34.16 (see
chapter 4 of this guide).

The requirements of IAS 1 (other than the general principles referred to in section 2.1 above) are
not generally applicable to condensed interim financial statements.
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4.6.1 Iltems to appear on the face of condensed financial statements

IAS 34 requires, for each component (statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows), that each of the headings
and subtotals that were included in the entity’s most recent annual financial statements should be
disclosed. Additional line items are required if their omission would make the condensed interim
financial statements misleading. [IAS 34.10]

In prescribing the minimum content, IAS 34 uses the phrase “each of the headings and
subtotals”, thereby seeming to imply that not all of the line items that were presented in the most
recent annual financial statements are necessarily required. Such an interpretation would do a
disservice, however, to a user of the financial statements who is trying to assess trends in the
interim period in relation to financial years.

Therefore, the phrase should be interpreted, in nearly all cases, to mean the line items that
were included in the entity’s most recent annual financial statements. The line items in most
published financial statements are already highly aggregated and it would be difficult to think of a
line item in the annual statement of comprehensive income, in particular, that would not also be
appropriate in an interim statement of comprehensive income.

For the statement of financial position, a too literal interpretation of “each of the headings and
subtotals” might lead to an interim statement of financial position that presented lines only for
total current assets, total non-current assets, total current liabilities, total non-current liabilities
and total equity, which would generally be insufficient for trend analysis.

For the statement of changes in equity, all material movements in equity occurring in the interim
period should be disclosed separately.

In the case of the statement of cash flows, some aggregation of the lines from the annual
statement may be appropriate, but subtotals for ‘operating’, ‘investing’ and ‘financing’ only are
unlikely to be sufficient.

If a particular category of asset, liability, equity, income, expense or cash flows was so material
as to require separate disclosure in the financial statements in the most recent annual financial
statements, such separate disclosure will generally be appropriate in the interim financial
report.

Further aggregation would only be anticipated where the line items in the annual statements are
unusually detailed.

Under IAS 34.10, additional line items should be included if their omission would make the
condensed interim financial statements misleading.

Therefore, a new category of asset, liability, income, expense, equity or cash flow arising for
the first time in the interim period may require presentation as an additional line item in the
condensed financial statements.

A category of asset, liability, income, expense, equity or cash flow may be significant in the
context of the interim financial statements even though it is not significant enough to warrant
separate presentation in the annual financial statements. In such cases, separate presentation
in the condensed interim financial statements may be required.
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4.6.2 Use of the term ‘condensed’

The requirements discussed in the previous section will result in the presentation of at least
some statements that include all of the line items, headings and subtotals that were presented
in the most recent annual financial statements. The question then arises as to whether such
statements should, in practice, be described as ‘condensed’.

Given that the notes supplementing the interim financial statements are limited, the presentation
package taken together is condensed from what would be reported in a complete set of financial
statements under IAS 1 and other Standards. In such circumstances, the information presented in
the statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows is condensed — even if the appearance of the statements has
not changed. These interim statements should therefore be described as ‘condensed’, because
otherwise a user might infer that they constitute a complete set of financial statements under IAS
1, which they do not. A complete set of financial statements must include a full note presentation
consistent with the annual presentation.

4.7 SELECTED EXPLANATORY NOTES

IAS 34 specifies that an interim financial report should contain selected explanatory notes.
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4.7.1 Required disclosures

The disclosure requirements of IAS 34 are based on the assumption that anyone reading the
interim financial report will have access to the most recent annual financial statements. Therefore,
not all of the supplementary notes in the annual financial statements are required for interim
reporting purposes, because this would result in repetition, or the reporting of relatively insignificant
changes. The explanatory notes included with the interim financial information are intended to
provide an explanation of events and transactions that are significant to an understanding of
the changes in financial position and performance of the entity since the end of the last annual
reporting period. [IAS 34.15]

The list below sets out the minimum explanatory notes required by IAS 34. The information is
generally presented on a financial year-to-date basis.

However, the entity is also required to disclose any events or transactions that are material to an
understanding of the current interim period.

[IAS 34.16]

The following information should be disclosed in the notes to the interim financial statements, if
material to an understanding of the interim period and if not disclosed elsewhere in the interim
financial report: [IAS 34.16]
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(a) Astatement that the same accounting policies and methods of computation are followed
in the interim financial statements as were followed in the most recent annual financial
statements or, if those policies or methods have been changed, a description of the
nature and effect of the change (see chapter 5 of this guide);

(b) Explanatory comments about the seasonality or cyclicality of interim operations;

(c) The nature and amount of items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash
flows, that is unusual because of their size, nature or incidence;

(d) the nature and amount of changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim
periods of the current financial year, or changes in estimates of amounts reported
in prior financial years, if those changes have a material effect in the current interim
period;

(e) Issuances, repurchases and repayments of debt and equity securities;

(f) Dividends paid (aggregate or per share), separately for ordinary shares and other
shares;
(g) The following segment information (see 4.3 below):

(i) Revenues from external customers, if included in the measure of segment profit or
loss reviewed by the chief operating decision maker or otherwise regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker;

(ii) Intersegment revenues, if included in the measure of segment profit or loss
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker or otherwise regularly provided to
the chief operating decision maker;
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(iii) A measure of segment profit or loss;

(iv) Total assets for which there has been a material change from the amount
disclosed in the last annual financial statements;

(v) A description of differences from the last annual financial statements in the basis
of segmentation or in the basis of measurement of segment profit or loss; and

(vi) A reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ measures of profit or
loss to the entity’s profit or loss before tax expense (tax income) and discontinued
operations. However, if an entity allocates to reportable segments items such
as tax expense (tax income), the entity may reconcile the total of the segments’
measures of profit or loss to profit or loss after those items. Material reconciling
items should be separately identified and described in that reconciliation;

(h) Material events subsequent to the end of the interim period that have not been reflected
in the interim financial statements;

(i) The effect of changes in the composition of the entity during the interim period, including
business combinations (see 4.4 below), obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries and
long-term investments, restructurings and discontinued operations; and
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(i) Changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the end of the last reporting
period.

4.8 ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR INTERIM REPORTING

4.8.1 Same accounting policies as annual financial statements I

The accounting policies applied in the interim financial statements should be consistent with those
applied in the most recent annual financial statements, except for accounting policy changes
made after the date of the most recent annual financial statements that are to be reflected in the
next annual financial statements. [IAS 34.28]

Entities are required to disclose in their interim financial reports that this requirement has been
met. [IAS 34.16(a)]

4.8.2 Changes in accounting policies I

Preparers of interim financial reports in compliance with IAS 34 are required to consider any
changes in accounting policies that will be applied for the next annual financial statements,
and to implement the changes for interim reporting purposes. Such changes will generally
encompass:
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. Changes required by an IFRS that will be effective for the annual financial statements;
and

. Changes that are proposed to be adopted for the annual financial statements, in
accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 Accounting

Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, on the basis that they will result in the
financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information.

If there has been any change in accounting policy since the most recent annual financial
statements, the interim financial report is required to include a description of the nature and effect
of the change. [IAS 34.16(a)]

If a new Standard that is effective in the current financial year requires disclosures in annual
financial statements, those disclosures would not ordinarily be required in a condensed interim
financial report, unless specifically required by IAS 34 or by the new Standard. For example,
IFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures would not generally affect an entity’s interim financial report
because disclosures in accordance with IFRS 7 are not required unless their omission would
make the condensed interim financial statements misleading. In contrast, IFRS 8 Operating
Segments resulted in consequential amendments to IAS 34, which require more detailed segment
information in the interim financial report (see section 4.3 above).
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If a new Standard or Interpretation has been published during the first interim period but it is not
effective until after the end of the annual reporting period, an entity may decide in the second
interim period to adopt this Standard or Interpretation early for its annual financial statements.
The fact that the new Standard or Interpretation was not early adopted in its first interim financial
statements does not generally preclude the entity from adopting a new policy in the second interim
period or at the end of the annual reporting period. The requirements for restating previously
reported interim periods are discussed at section 5.3.

4.8.3 Restatement of previously reported interim periods I

A change in accounting policy, other than one for which the transitional provisions are specified
by a new IFRS, should be reflected by:

[IAS 34.43]

* restating the financial statements of prior interim periods of the current financial year,
and the comparable interim periods of prior financial years that will be restated in annual
financial statements in accordance with IAS 8; or

. when itis impracticable to determine the cumulative effect at the beginning of the financial
year of applying a new accounting policy to all prior periods, adjusting the financial
statements of prior interim periods of the current financial year, and comparable interim
periods of prior financial years, to apply the new accounting policy prospectively from
the earliest date practicable.

IAS 8 states that retrospective application of a new accounting policy is impracticable when an
entity cannot apply it after making every reasonable effort to do so.

IAS 34.44 states that an objective of these principles is to ensure that a single accounting policy
is applied to a particular class of transactions throughout an entire financial year. That is not to
say that voluntary changes in accounting policy part-way through the year are prohibited.

Such changes are permitted, provided that the conditions of IAS 8 are met. What IAS 34.44
requires is that, where a change in accounting policy is adopted at some point during the year,
the amounts reported for earlier interim periods should be restated to reflect the new policy.

(Source: www.iasplus.com- IAS 34) -Read the full report
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- 4.9 FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IFRS (IFRS 1)

FAST FORWARD: It is a very important standard as it explains what assets or liabilities should
be recognized or derecognized by adopting IFRSs and what adjustments may be required if this
happens.

This standard is important for entities adopting IFRS for the first time and it was an important
project for IASB as it tried to make the transition from local standards to IFRS for many European
countries smooth.

The standard has provided detailed guidance on the transition by way of illustrative examples.

[] Objective

IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, sets out the procedures
that an entity must follow when it adopts IFRSs for the first time as the basis for preparing its
general purpose financial statements.

[1] Definition of first-time adoption

STUDY TEXT

Afirst-time adopter is an entity that, for the first time, makes an explicit and unreserved statement
that its general purpose financial statements comply with IFRSs.

An entity may be afirst-time adopter if, in the preceding year, it prepared IFRS financial statements
for internal management use, as long as those IFRS financial statements were not and given to
owners or external parties such as investors or creditors. If a set of IFRS financial statements
was, for any reason, given to an external party in the preceding year, then the entity will already
be considered to be on IFRSs, and IFRS 1 does not apply.

An entity can also be a first-time adopter if, in the preceding year, its published financial statements
asserted:

. Compliance with some but not all IFRSs.

. Included only a reconciliation of selected figures from previous GAAP to IFRSs.
(Previous GAAP means the GAAP that an entity followed immediately before adopting
to IFRSs.)

However, an entity is not a first-time adopter if, in the preceding year, its published
financial statements asserted:

. Compliance with IFRSs even if the auditor's report contained a qualification with respect
to conformity with IFRSs.

. Compliance with both previous GAAP and IFRSs.
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[] Effective date of IFRS 1

IFRS 1 applies if an entity’s first IFRS financial statements are for a period beginning on or after
1 January 2004. Earlier application is encouraged.

Overview for an entity that adopts IFRSs for the first time in its annual financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2005.

1. Accounting policies. Select its accounting policies based on IFRSs in
force at 31 December 2005. (The exposure draft that preceded IFRS
1 had proposed that an entity could use the IFRSs that were in force
during prior periods, as if the entity had always used IFRS. That option
is not included in the final standard.)

2. IERS reporting periods. Prepare at least 2005 and 2004 financial
statements and restate retrospectively the opening balance sheet
(beginning of the first period for which full comparative financial
statements are presented) by applying the IFRSs in force at 31
December 2005.

a. Since IAS 1 requires that at least one year of comparative prior period
financial information be presented, the opening balance sheet will be 1
January 2004 if not earlier.

b. If a 31 December 2005 adopter reports selected financial data (but not
full financial statements) on an IFRS basis for periods prior to 2004, in
addition to full financial statements for 2004 and 2005, that does not
change the fact that its opening IFRS balance sheet is as of 1 January
2004.

Adjustments required to move from previous GAAP to IFRSs at the
time of first-time adoption

1. Derecognition of some old assets and liabilities. The entity should eliminate
previous-GAAP assets and liabilities from the opening balance sheet if they do not

qualify for recognition under IFRSs. For example:

a. |IAS 38 does not permit recognition of expenditure on any of the following as an
intangible asset:
* research
o start-up, pre-operating, and pre-opening costs
e training
e advertising and promotion
e moving and relocation

If the entity's previous GAAP had recognised these as assets, they are eliminated
in the opening IFRS balance sheet.
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b. If the entity’s previous GAAP had allowed accrual of liabilities for “general
reserves”, restructurings, future operating losses, or major overhauls that do not
meet the conditions for recognition as a provision under IAS 37, these are
eliminated in the opening IFRS balance sheet.

c. If the entity’s previous GAAP had allowed recognition of reimbursements and
contingent assets that are not virtually certain, these are eliminated in the opening
IFRS balance sheet.

2. Recognition of some new assets and liabilities. Conversely, the entity should
recognise all assets and liabilities that are required to be recognised by IFRS even if

they were never recognised under previous GAAP. For example:

a. |AS 39 requires recognition of all derivative financial assets and liabilities,
including embedded derivatives. These were not recognised under many local
GAAPs.

b. IAS 19 requires an employer to recognise its liabilities under defined benefit plans.
These are not just pension liabilities but also obligations for medical and life
insurance, vacations, termination benefits, and deferred compensation. In the
case of “over-funded” plans, this would be a defined benefit asset.

c. IAS 37 requires recognition of provisions as liabilities. Examples could include
an entity’s obligations for restructurings, onerous contracts, decommissioning,
remediation, site restoration, warranties, guarantees, and litigation.

d. Deferred tax assets and liabilities would be recognised in conformity with IAS 12.

3. Reclassification. The entity should reclassify previous-GAAP opening balance sheet
items into the appropriate IFRS classification. Examples:
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a. IAS 10 does not permit classifying dividends declared or proposed after the
balance sheet date as a liability at the balance sheet date. In the opening IFRS
balance sheet these would be reclassified as a component of retained earnings.

b. If the entity’s previous GAAP had allowed treasury stock (an entity’s own shares
that it had purchased) to be reported as an asset, it would be reclassified as a
component of equity under IFRS.

c. ltems classified as identifiable intangible assets in a business combination
accounted for under the previous GAAP may be required to be classified as
goodwill under IAS 22 because they do not meet the definition of an intangible
asset under IAS 38. The converse may also be true in some cases. These items
must be reclassified.

d. IAS 32 has principles for classifying items as financial liabilities or equity. Thus
mandatorily redeemable preferred shares and puttable shares that may have
been classified as equity under previous GAAP would be reclassified as liabilities
in the opening IFRS balance sheet.
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® Note that IFRS 1 makes an exception from the “split-accounting” provisions of IAS 32.
If the liability component of a compound financial instrument is no longer outstanding at
the date of the opening IFRS balance sheet, the entity is not required to reclassify out of
retained earnings and into other equity the original equity component of the compound
instrument.

e. The reclassification principle would apply for the purpose of defining reportable
segments under IAS 14.

f.  The scope of consolidation might change depending on the consistency of the
previous-GAAP requirements to those in IAS 27. In some cases, IFRS will require
consolidated financial statements where they were not required before.

g. Some offsetting (netting) of assets and liabilities or of income and expense items
that had been acceptable under previous GAAP may no longer be acceptable
under IFRS.

4. Measurement. The general measurement principle — there are several significant
exceptions noted below — is to apply IFRS in measuring all recognised assets and
liabilities. Therefore, if an entity adopts IFRS for the first time in its annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2005, in general it would use the
measurement principles in IFRSs in force at 31 December 2005.

5. Adjustments required to move from previous GAAP to IFRS at the time of first-
time adoption. These should be recognised directly in retained earnings or other

appropriate category of equity at the date of transition to IFRSs.

How to recognise adjustments required to move from previous GAAP
to IFRSs

Adjustments required to move from previous GAAP to IFRSs at the time of first-time adoption
should be recognised directly in retained earnings or, if appropriate, another category of equity
at the date of transition to IFRSs.

B Exceptions to the basic measurement principle in IFRS 1

1.  Optional exceptions. There are some important exceptions to the general restatement
and measurement principles set out above. The following exceptions are individually
optional, not mandatory:

Business combinations that occurred before opening balance sheet date
a. An entity may keep the original previous-GAAP accounting, that is, not restate:
1. previous mergers or goodwill written-off from reserves;
2. the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition
or merger;
3. how goodwill was initially determined (do not adjust the purchase price allocation
on acquisition).
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a. IFRS 1 includes an appendix explaining how a first-time adopter should account
for business combinations that occurred prior to transition to IFRS.

b. However, should it wish to do so, an entity can elect to restate all business
combinations starting from a date it selects prior to the opening balance sheet
date.

c. Inall cases, the entity must make an initial IAS 36 impairment test of any
remaining goodwill in the opening IFRS balance sheet, after reclassifying, as
appropriate, previous GAAP intangibles to goodwill.

d. IFRS 1 includes an appendix explaining how a first-time adopter should account
for business combinations that occurred prior to transition to IFRS.

I Property, plant, and equipment, intangible assets, and investment
property carried under the cost model

a. These assets may be measured at their fair value at the opening IFRS balance sheet
date (this option applies to intangible assets only if an active market exists). Fair value
becomes the “deemed cost” going forward under the IFRS cost model. (Deemed cost
is an amount used as a surrogate for cost or depreciated cost at a given date.)

b. If, before the date of its first IFRS balance sheet, the entity had revalued any of these
assets under its previous GAAP either to fair value or to a price-index-adjusted cost,
that previous-GAAP revalued amount at the date of the revaluation can become the
deemed cost of the asset under IFRS.

c. If, before the date of its first IFRS balance sheet, the entity had made a one-time
revaluation of assets or liabilities to fair value because of a privatisation or initial public
offering, and the revalued amount became deemed cost under the previous GAAP,
that amount (adjusted for any subsequent depreciation, amortisation, and impairment)
would continue to be deemed cost after the initial adoption of IFRS.

H IAS 19 - Employee benefits: actuarial gains and losses

An entity may elect to recognise all cumulative actuarial gains and losses for all defined benefit
plans at the opening IFRS balance sheet date (that is, reset any corridor recognised under
previous GAAP to zero), even if it elects to use the IAS 19 corridor approach for actuarial gains
and losses that arise after first-time adoption of IFRS. If an entity does not elect to apply this
exemption, it must restate all defined benefit plans under IAS 19 since the inception of those
plans (which may differ from the effective date of IAS 19).

H IAS 21 - Accumulated translation reserves

An entity may elect to recognise all translation adjustments arising on the translation of the
financial statements of foreign entities in accumulated profits or losses at the opening IFRS
balance sheet date (that is, reset the translation reserve included in equity under previous GAAP
to zero). If the entity elects this exemption, the gain or loss on subsequent disposal of the foreign
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entity will be adjusted only by those accumulated translation adjustments arising after the opening
IFRS balance sheet date. If the entity does not elect to apply this exemption, it must restate the
translation reserve for all foreign entities since they were acquired or created.

2. Mandatory exceptions. There are also three important exceptions to the general
restatement and measurement principles set out above that are mandatory, not optional.
These are:

Ml IAS 39 - Derecognition of financial instruments

A first-time adopter is not permitted to recognise financial assets or financial liabilities that had
been derecognised under its previous GAAP in a financial year beginning before 1 January 2001
(the effective date of IAS 39). This is consistent with the transition provision in IAS 39.172(a).
However, if an SPE was used to effect the derecognition of financial instruments and the SPE is
controlled at the opening IFRS balance sheet date, the SPE must be consolidated.

H IAS 39 - Hedge accounting

The conditions in IAS 39.122-152 for a hedging relationship that qualifies for hedge accounting
are applied as of the opening IFRS balance sheet date. The hedge accounting practices, if any,
that were used in periods prior to the opening IFRS balance sheet may not be retrospectively
changed. This is consistent with the transition provision in IAS 39.172(b). Some adjustments
may be needed to take account of the existing hedging relationships under previous GAAP at
the opening balance sheet date.

STUDY TEXT

B Information to be used in preparing IFRS estimates retrospectively

In preparing IFRS estimates retrospectively, the entity must use the inputs and assumptions that
had been used to determine previous GAAP estimates in periods before the date of transition
to IFRS, provided that those inputs and assumptions are consistent with IFRS. The entity is not
permitted to use information that became available only after the previous-GAAP estimates were
made except to correct an error.

B Changes to disclosures

For many entities, new areas of disclosure will be added that were not requirements under the
previous GAAP (perhaps segment information, earnings per share, discontinuing operations,
contingencies, and fair values of all financial instruments) and disclosures that had been required
under previous GAAP will be broadened (perhaps related party disclosures).
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I Disclosure of selected financial data for periods before the first
IFRS balance sheet

IAS 1 only requires one year of full comparative financial statements. If a first-time adopter wants
to disclose selected financial information for periods before the date of the opening IFRS balance
sheet, it is not required to conform that information to IFRS, conforming that earlier selected
financial information to IFRSs is optional.

If the entity elects to present the earlier selected financial information based on its previous GAAP
rather than IFRS, it must prominently label that earlier information as not complying with IFRS
and, further, it must disclose the nature of the main adjustments that would make that information
comply with IFRS. This latter disclosure is narrative and not necessarily quantified.

Of course, if the entity elects to present more than one year of full comparative prior period
financial statements at the time of its transition to IFRSs, that will change the date of the opening
IFRS balance sheet.

M Disclosures in the financial statements of a first-time adopter

IFRS 1 requires disclosures that explain how the transition from previous GAAP to IFRS affected
the entity’s reported financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. This includes:

1. Reconciliations of equity reported under previous GAAP to equity under IFRS both (a)
at the date of the opening IFRS balance sheet and (b) the end of the last annual period
reported under the previous GAAP. For an entity adopting IFRSs for the first time in its
31 December 2005 financial statements, the reconciliations would be as of 1 January
2004 and 31 December 2004.
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2. Reconciliations of profit or loss for the last annual period reported under the previous
GAAP to profit or loss under IFRSs for the same period.

3. Explanation of material adjustments that were made, in adopting IFRSs for the first
time, to the balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement.

4. If errors in previous-GAAP financial statements were discovered in the course of
transition to IFRSs, those must be separately disclosed.

5. If the entity recognised or reversed any impairment losses in preparing its opening
IFRS balance sheet, these must be disclosed.

6. Appropriate explanations if the entity has availed itself of any of the specific recognition
and measurement exemptions permitted under IFRS 1 - for instance, if it used fair
values as deemed cost.



ADVANCED FINANCIAL REPORTING

B Disclosure of an impending change to IFRS

If an entity is going to adopt IFRS for the first time in its annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2005, certain disclosure are required in its interim financial statements
prior to the 31 December 2005 statements, but only those interim financial statements purport to
comply with IAS 34. Explanatory information and a reconciliation are required in the interim report
that immediately precedes the first set of IFRS annual financial statements. The information
includes changes in accounting policies compared to those under previous GAAP.

I Compliance in interim reports in the year of first-time adoption
of IFRS

If an entity that adopts IFRS for the first time in its annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2005, it is required to apply IFRS 1 in its interim financial reports for periods
within the year ended 31 December 2005 if those interim reports are described as conforming
to International Financial Reporting Standards. It would not be required to apply IFRS 1 if those
interim reports are described as conforming to previous GAAP.

W Different IFRS adoption dates of investor and investee

A parent or investor may become a first-time adopter earlier than or later than its subsidiary,
associate, or joint venture investee. In these cases, IFRS 1 is applied as follows:

STUDY TEXT

1. If the subsidiary has adopted IFRSs in its entity-only financial statements before the
group to which it belongs adopts IFRS for the consolidated financial statements, then
the subsidiary’s first-time adoption date is still the date at which it adopted IFRS for the
first-time, not that of the group. However, the group must use the IFRS measurements
of the subsidiary’s assets and liabilities for its first IFRS financial statements except for
adjustments relating to the business combinations exemption and to conform group
accounting policies.

2. Ifthe group adopts IFRSs before the subsidiary adopts IFRSs in its entity-only financial
statements, then the subsidiary has an option either (a) to elect that the group date of
IFRS adoption is its transition date or (b) to first-time adopt in its entity-only financial
statements.

3. If the group adopts IFRSs before the parent adopts IFRSs in its entity-only financial
statements, then the parent’s first-time adoption date is the date at which the group
adopted IFRSs for the first time.

4. Ifthe group adopts IFRSs before its associate or joint venture adopts IFRSs in its entity-
only financial statements, then the associate or joint venture should have the option
to elect that either the group date of IFRS adoption is its transition date or to first-time
adopt in its entity-only financial statements.
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H Conclusion

IFRS 1 is a complex accounting standard consisting of three parts (as do all IFRS):

(a) the standard itself

(b) a basis for conclusions which summarises the IASB’s considerations in arriving at the
requirements of the standard

(c) animplementation guide which explains, with the aid of many practical examples, how
the standard’s requirements should be implemented and how IFRS 1 interacts with
other IFRS.

M >>> Example

(@) IFRS 1 ‘First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’ was
issued in June 2003. Its main objectives are to ensure high quality information that is
transparent and comparable over all periods presented and to provide a starting point
for subsequent accounting under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
within the framework of a cost benefit exercise.

Required:

(i) Describe the circumstances where the presentation of an entity’s financial statements
is deemed to be the first-time adoption of IFRSs and explain the main financial reporting
implementation issues to be addressed in the transition to IFRSs. (7 marks)

(i) Describe IFRS 1’s accounting requirements where an entity’s previous accounting
policies for assets and liabilities do not comply with the recognition and measurement
requirements of IFRSs. (8 marks)
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(b) Transit, a publicly listed holding company, has a reporting date of 31 December each
year. Its financial statements include one year’s comparatives. Transit currently applies
local GAAP accounting rules, but is intending to apply IFRSs for the first time in its
financial statements (including comparatives) for the year ending 31 December 2005.
Its summarised consolidated balance sheet (under local GAAP) at 1 January 2004 is:

Additional information:

(i) Transit’s depreciation policy for its property, plant and equipment has been based on tax rules
set by its government. If depreciation had been based on the most appropriate method under
IFRSSs, the carrying value of the property, plant and equipment at 1 January 2004 would have
been $800,000.

(i) The development costs originate from an acquired subsidiary of Transit. They do not qualify
for recognition under IFRSs. They have a tax base of nil and the deferred tax related to these
costs is $100,000.

(iii) The inventory has been valued at prime cost. Under IFRSs it would include an additional
$30,000 of overheads.

(iv) The restructuring provision does not qualify for recognition under IFRSs.

(v) Based on IFRSs, the deferred tax provision required at 1 January 2004, including the effects
of the development expenditure, is $360,000.
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Required:

Prepare a summarized balance sheet for Transit at the date of transition to IFRSs

(1 January 2004) applying the requirements of IFRS 1 to the above items.

Note: Reconciliation to previous GAAP is not required. (10 marks)

Solution

(a)
(i)

(25 marks)

It is important to determine which financial statements constitute the first-time adoption
of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) because IFRS 1 only applies to
those financial statements. It does not apply to subsequent financial statements that
are prepared under IFRSs as these must be prepared under the whole body of IFRSs
(including IASSs). A first time adopter is an entity that makes an explicit and unreserved
statement that its financial statements comply with (all) IFRSs. Compliance with some,
but not all, IFRSs is insufficient as is compliance with all IFRSs without the inclusion of
an explicit statement of compliance.

The main issues to be addressed in the transition to IFRSs are:

(ii)

deciding the date of transition.

selecting accounting policies that comply with IFRSs.

preparing (but not presenting) an opening balance sheet at the date of transition to
IFRSs as a basis for subsequent accounting. The date of transition to IFRSs is the
beginning of the earliest comparative period. If the company’s reporting date for its
first IFRS financial statements is say 31 December 2005 and it intends to disclose one
year’s comparatives, then the date of transition is 1 January 2004.

determining estimates of values for both the opening IFRS balance sheet and all other
presented comparative balance sheets; and finally

presenting IFRS financial statements (including the required disclosures relating to the
transition).

Note: some credit would be given for references to practical issues such as required
changes to information systems and the recruitment of personnel with IFRS
experience.

When a company adopts IFRSs for the first time it must use the IFRSs that are in force
at the reporting date. These IFRSs should be applied throughout all of the periods
presented — normally two years. This means that comparative financial statements
must comply with the IFRSs in force at the reporting date even if they were not in issue
at the date of the comparatives (or different from those that were in issue).

The general principle is that the adoption of IFRSs should be applied retrospectively i.e.
as if the entity had always applied each IFRS. This is contrary to the specific transitional
requirements contained in some individual IFRSs (they often allow prospective
application). More specifically an entity must:

recognise all assets and liabilities that fall to be recognised by IFRSs (e.g. IFRSs require
deferred tax to be recognized on a ‘full’ provision basis)
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— not recognise assets and liabilities if IFRSs do not permit their recognition (e.g. IFRSs
do not permit ‘general’ provisions to be made and some proposed dividends are not
treated as liabilities)

—  reclassify certain items under IFRSs (e.g. convertible debt must be split between its
equity and debt components under IFRSs, but in some jurisdictions it may have been
classed entirely as debt)

— apply IFRS rules to measure the value of all recognised assets and liabilities. This may
mean for example using a no discounted value to measure an item whereas under
previous GAAP it may have been discounted

—  give specified reconciliations for equity and reported profits between previous GAAP

and IFRSs, together with details of any recognition or reversals of impairments when
implementing first time reporting. The resulting adjustments arising from the above
must be recognised directly in equity at the date of transition.
The Standard contains some specific exemptions and exceptions to the above in
the areas of values of property, plant and equipment, employee benefits, translation
differences for net investments in foreign operations and derivative instruments. In
essence the exemptions and exceptions allow the use of alternative value measures
in limited circumstances and where the cost or effort required in determining the value
measurements under IFRSs would be excessive.

[ | The exemptions are permitted but not required and can be applied in full or individually,
whereas exceptions (to retrospective application) are mandatory.
Aparticularlyimportantexemptionis thatthe IFRS rules governing business combinations
are not applied retrospectively. However any intangible that was recognised under
previous GAAP that cannot be recognised under IFRSs should be reclassified as
goodwill and the entity must test for impairment of goodwill at the date of transition.

(b)
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As Transit intends first-time adoption for the year ended 31 December 2005 and to
disclose one year’s comparatives, the date of transition to IFRSs is 1 January 2004.
Transit — summarised balance sheet at 1 January 2004

$000 $000
Property, plant and equipment (w (i)) 800
Goodwill (450 + 300 (w (ii))) 750
Development costs (w (ii)) nil -
1550
Current assets
Inventory (150 + 30 (w (i))) 180
Receivables 250
Bank 20 450
Total asset 2,000
Issued share capital 500
Retained earnings (w (v)) 1320
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 320
Non-current liabilities
Restructuring provision (w (iii)) nil
Deferred tax (w (iv)) 360 680
2000
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In addition the goodwill will be tested for impairment and if there is any indication of impairment
to the other identifiable assets, they too must be tested for impairment.

Workings (all figures in $000)

(i) Property, plant and equipment and inventory are restated to their IFRS base valuations
of $800,000 and $180,000 respectively.

(i) Acquired intangible assets that do not qualify for recognition under IFRSs must be
reclassified as goodwill after allowing for the effect of deferred tax. Thus an amount of
$300 (400 — 100 re deferred tax) is transferred to goodwill and $100 debited to deferred
tax.

(iii) The restructuring provision does not qualify for recognition under IFRSs.
(i) Summarising the effect on deferred tax:

Per question 300
Re development costs (100)
- 200
% Required balance 360
E Charge to retained earnings 160
>
:D) (v) Summarising the effect on retained earnings:
—
n
per question 900
property, plant and equipment (200)
Inventory 30
elimination of restructuring provision 250
deferred tax (160)
820
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410 SMALL AND MEDIUM-SIZED ENTITY FINANCIAL
REPORTING FRAMEWORK

Scope (www.googlo.co.ke —small and medium sized entity financial
reporting framework)

The Small and Medium-sized Entity Financial Reporting Framework (SME-FRF) sets
out the conceptual basis (paragraphs 2-15) and qualifying criteria (paragraphs 16-26)
for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the Small and Medium-
sized Entity Financial Reporting Standard (SME-FRS).

Users

2.

Users of financial statements generally include present and potential investors,
employees, lenders, suppliers and other trade creditors, customers, governments and
their agencies and, in some cases, the public. For SMEs, the most significant users
are likely to be owners, government and creditors, who may have the power to obtain
information additional to that contained in the financial statements. Management is also
interested in the information contained in the financial statements, even though it has
access to additional management and financial information.

Objective

3.

The objective of financial statements is to provide information about the financial position
and performance of an entity that is useful to users of such information. Financial
statements show the results of management’s stewardship of and accountability for the
resources entrusted to it.

Underlying Assumptions

4.

Financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. They are
normally prepared on the assumption that an entity is a going concern and will continue
to operate for at least the foreseeable future.

Qualitative Characteristics

5.

(a)
(b)
(c)

Qualitative characteristics are the attributes that make the information provided in
financial statements useful to users. The four principal characteristics are:
Understandability: It is essential that information provided in financial statements is
readily understandable by users.

Relevance: To be useful, information must be relevant to the needs of users. The
relevance of information is affected by its nature and materiality.

Reliability: Information is reliable when it is free from material error and bias and can
be depended on by users to represent faithfully that which it is said to represent. In
assessing reliability, substance over form, prudence, neutrality and completeness are
also considered.
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(d) Comparability: Users must be able to compare the financial statements of an entity over
time in order to identify trends in the entity’s financial position and performance.

6. Constraints: The balance between benefit and cost is a pervasive constraint rather
than a qualitative characteristic. The benefits derived from information should exceed
the cost of providing it. The evaluation of benefits and costs is, however, substantially a
judgmental process. Users of financial statements should be aware of this constraint.

7. In practice, trade-offs between qualitative characteristics are often necessary.
Determining the relative importance of the characteristics in different cases is a matter
of professional judgment.

Elements

8. An “asset’ is a resource controlled by the entity as a result of past events and from
which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the entity.

9. Afliability” is a present obligation of the entity arising from past events, the settlement
of which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resources embodying
economic benefits.

10. “Equity” is the residual interest in the assets of the entity after all its liabilities have been
deducted.

11. “Income” encompasses both revenue and gains. It includes increases in economic
benefits during the accounting period in the form of inflows or enhancements of assets
as well as decreases of liabilities that result in increases in equity, other than those
relating to contributions from equity participants.
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12. “Expenses” encompass losses as well as those expenses that arise in the course of the
ordinary activities of the entity. Expenses are decreases in economic benefits.

Recognition

13. An item that meets the definition of an element should be recognised if (a) it is probable
that any future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to or from the
entity; and (b) the item has a cost or value that can be measured with reliability. The
interrelationship between the elements means that an item that meets the definition
and recognition criteria for a particular element, for example, an asset, automatically
requires the recognition of another element, for example, income or a liability.

Measurement

14. The measurement base most commonly adopted by entities in preparing their financial
statements is historical cost. This may be combined with other measurement bases
for certain specific items, as referred to in the SME-FRS (for example, Section 15 The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates).

15. Under the historical cost convention:
(a) assets are recorded at the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value
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N

of the consideration given to acquire them at the time of their acquisition; and

Liabilities are recorded at the amount of proceeds received in exchange for the
obligation, or in some circumstances (for example, income taxes), at the amounts of
cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course
of business.

Assets should not be revalued nor should future cash flows be discounted in the
measurement of assets and liabilities except when required or permitted by the SME-
FRS.

Qualifying Entities

16.

17.

(a)

(b)

18.

19.

20.

21.

A company incorporated under the Companies Ordinance qualifies for reporting under
the SME-FREF if it satisfies the criteria set out in section 141D of that Ordinance.
Compliance with the SME-FRF and SME-FRS is necessary in order for financial
statements to give a “true and correct view” when a Hong Kong incorporated company
prepares its financial statements in accordance with section 141D of the Companies
Ordinance.

An entity, other than a company incorporated under the Companies Ordinance, subject
to any specific requirements imposed by the law of the entity’s place of incorporation
and subiject to its constitution, qualifies for reporting under the SME-FRF when the
entity does not have public accountability (paragraphs 22 — 23), and:

All of its owners agree to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the SME-
FRS; and

The entity is considered to be an SME in terms of its size under paragraph 24.

An entity which is a subsidiary or an intermediate holding company of an entity qualifies
for reporting under the SME-FRF for its own financial statements if it also satisfies the
conditions set out in paragraph 17.

Unless the law requires otherwise, it is presumed that, once an agreement is made by
all owners to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the SME-FRS, the
agreement will remain valid until there is a change in the ownership or the agreement is
revoked by an owner or an entity no longer qualifies for reporting under the SME-FRF.

When an entity has not been considered to be an SME in terms of its size under
paragraph 24 and subsequently becomes an SME, the entity will not qualify for reporting
under the SME-FRF in terms of paragraph 17(b) until the entity has been determined to
be an SME for two consecutive reporting periods.

Where an entity has previously qualified for reporting under the SME-FRF in terms of
paragraph 17, the entity will no longer qualify for reporting under the SME-FRF in terms
of paragraph 17(b) until the entity is no longer an SME for two consecutive reporting
periods.
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Public Accountability
22. An entity has public accountability for the purposes of the SME-FREF if:

(a) at any time during the current or preceding reporting period, the entity (whether in the
public or private sector) is an issuer of securities, that is, its equity or debt securities
are publicly traded or it is in the process of issuing publicly traded equity or debt
securities;

(b) the entity is an institution authorised under the Banking Ordinance;

(c) the entity is an insurer authorised under the Insurance Companies Ordinance; or

(d) the entity is a corporation which is granted a license under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance to carry on business in a regulated activity in Hong Kong.

23. An entity does not have public accountability, for the purposes of the SME-FRF, solely
by reason of receiving public funds from another entity that has the power to tax, rate
or levy to obtain public funds.

Size

24. An entity is considered to be an SME if it does not exceed any two of the following:

(a) Total annual revenue of HK$50 million.

(b) Total assets of HK$50 million at the balance sheet date.

(c) 50 employees.

25. For the purposes of paragraph 24, the total revenue and total assets are determined

after the application of the SME-FRS and, in the case where the reporting period is
shorter or longer than a year, the total revenue is determined on an annualised basis.
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26. For the purposes of paragraph 24, the number of employees is the average number of
persons employed by the entity during the reporting period (irrespective of whether in
full-time or part-time employment) determined on a monthly basis as follows:

(a) Determine the number of employees as at the end of each calendar month.

(b) Add together all the monthly numbers in (a).

(c) Divide the number in (b) by the number of months in the reporting period.

Transitional Provisions
27. The transition to the SME-FRF and SME-FRS is accounted for as follows:

(a) All items recognised previously under a different GAAP (for example, deferred tax
liability) which do not meet the recognition criteria under the SME-FRF and SME-FRS
are to be derecognised and dealt with as a change of accounting policy under the SME-
FRS.

(b) Allitems notrecognised previously under a different GAAP which do meet the recognition
criteria under the SME-FRF and SME-FRS are to be recognised in accordance with the
relevant section of the SME-FRS and dealt with as a change of accounting policy under
the SME-FRS.

(c) Allitems recognised previously under a different GAAP, which do meet the recognition
criteria under the SME-FRF and SME-FRS, but which were previously measured
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on a basis inconsistent with the SME-FRF and SME-FRS are to be re-measured in
accordance with the relevant section of the SME-FRS and dealt with as a change of
accounting policy under the SME-FRS.

Effective Date

28. The SME-FRF becomes effective for a Qualifying Entity’s financial statements that
cover a period beginning on or after 1 January 2005. Earlier application is permitted.

[] Definitions

The following terms are used in the SME-FRS with the meanings specified:

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied
by an entity in preparing and presenting financial statements.

An active market is a market in which all the following conditions exist:

(@) The items traded within the market are homogeneous;
(b) Willing buyers and sellers can normally be found at any time; and

(c) Prices are available to the public.

Amortisation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over
its useful life.

An asset is a resource:

(a) Controlled by an entity as a result of past events; and
(b) from which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the entity.
An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and that is neither a

subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by an entity in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset or a liability is recognised in the balance
sheet after the deduction of (if applicable) any accumulated depreciation (amortisation) and
accumulated impairment losses thereon, or any write-down to net realisable value.

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits.

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flows are inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents.

Close members of the family of an individual are those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity. They may include:
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(@) The individual’'s spouse and children;
(b) Children of the individual’s spouse; and
(c) Dependants of the individual or the individual's spouse.

The closing rate is the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date.

A construction contract is a contract specifically negotiated for the construction of an asset or
a combination of assets that are closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design,
technology and function or their ultimate purpose or use. Construction contracts include: contracts
for the rendering of services which are directly related to the construction of the asset, for example,
those for the services of project managers and architects; and contracts for the destruction or
restoration of assets, and the restoration of the environment following the demolition of assets.

A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific
current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilities; and

(b) as aresult, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties
that it will discharge those responsibilities.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity.

A contingent liability is:

(a) Apossible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity; or

(b) A present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:
(i) Itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; or
(i) The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent rent is that portion of the lease payments which is not fixed in amount but is based on
a factor other than the passage of time (e.g. percentage of sales, amount of usage, price indices,
and market rates of interest).

Control (of an asset) is the power to obtain the future economic benefits that flow from the
asset.

Control (of an entity) is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.
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Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration
given to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition, production or construction.

A cost-plus contract is a construction contract in which the contractor is reimbursed for allowable
or otherwise defined costs, plus a percentage of these costs or a fixed fee.

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit
(tax loss) for a period.

Depreciable amount is the cost of an asset less its residual value.

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful
life.

Development is the application of research findings or other knowledge to a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved materials, devices, products, processes, systems or
services prior to the commencement of commercial production or use.

Economic life is either:
(a) The period over which an asset is expected to be economically usable by one or more
users; or

(b) The number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by
one or more users.

Events after the balance sheet date are events, both favourable and unfavorable, that occur
between the balance sheet date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for
issue. Two types of events can be identified:

(a) Those providing evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date (adjusting
events after the balance sheet date); and

(b) Those indicative of conditions that arose after the balance sheet date (non-adjusting
events after the balance sheet date).

Exchange difference is the difference resulting from translating a given number of units of one
currency to another currency at different exchange rates.

Exchange rate is the ratio of exchange for two currencies.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between a
knowledgeable, willing buyer and a knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm’s length transaction.
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A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset. Title may or may not eventually be transferred.

A fixed price contract is a construction contract in which the contractor agrees to a fixed contract
price, or a fixed rate per unit of output, which in some cases is subject to cost escalation
clauses.

Foreign currency is a currency other than the reporting currency of an entity.

Government refers to government, government agencies and similar bodies, whether local,
national or international.

Government assistance is action by government designed to provide an economic benefit specific
to an entity or range of entities qualifying under certain criteria. Government assistance does not
include benefits provided only indirectly through action affecting general trading conditions, such
as the provision of infrastructure in development areas or the imposition of trading constraints on
competitors.

Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to an entity
in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of
the entity. They exclude those forms of government assistance which cannot reasonably have a
value placed on them and transactions with government which cannot be distinguished from the
normal trading transactions of the entity.

Grants related to assets are government grants whose primary condition is that an entity qualifying
for them should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-term assets. Subsidiary conditions
may also be attached restricting the type or location of the assets or the periods during which
they are to be acquired or held.

Grants related to income are government grants other than those related to assets.

Guaranteed residual value is:

(@) in the case of the lessee, that part of the residual value which is guaranteed by the
lessee or by a party related to the lessee (the amount of the guarantee being the
maximum amount that could, in any event, become payable); and

(b) inthe case of the lessor, that part of the residual value which is guaranteed by the lessee
or by a third party unrelated to the lessor who is financially capable of discharging the
obligations under the guarantee.

Historical cost is:

(a) in the case of assets, the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of
the consideration given to acquire them at the time of their acquisition; and
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(b) inthe case of liabilities, the amount of proceeds received in exchange for the obligation,
or in some circumstances (for example, income taxes), at the amounts of cash or
cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of
business.

Historical cost convention is the measurement basis whereby:

(a) Assets are recorded at the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of
the consideration given to acquire them at the time of their acquisition; and

(b) Liabilities are recorded at the amount of proceeds received in exchange for the obligation,
or in some circumstances (for example, income taxes), at the amounts of cash or cash
equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of business;
and whereby:

Assets should not be revalued nor should future cash flows be discounted in the measurement
of assets and liabilities except when required or permitted by the SME-FRS.

Animpairmentloss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The inception of the lease is the earlier of the date of the lease agreement or the date of
commitment by the parties to the principal provisions of the lease.

The lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of interest is the rate of interest the lessee would have to
pay on a similar lease or, if that is not determinable, the rate that, at the inception of the lease, the
lessee would incur to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to purchase the asset.

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

The interest rate implicit in the lease is the discount rate that, at the inception of the lease, causes
the aggregate present value of:

(@) the minimum lease payments; and

(b) the unguaranteed residual value
to be equal to the fair value of the leased asset.

Inventories are assets:

(a) held for sale in the ordinary course of business;
(b) in the process of production for such sale; or

(c) in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in the
rendering of services.
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Investment (in a security) is a financial asset (such as a bond or share or other negotiable
instrument evidencing debt or ownership) held by an entity for trading, the accretion of wealth
through distribution (such as interest and dividends), for capital appreciation or for other benefits
to the investing entity such as those obtained through trading relationships. Current investments
are those that would satisfy the criteria for being classified as currentin accordance with paragraph
1.16 of the SME-FRS.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control over an economic activity, and exists
only when the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the activity require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the venturers).

Ajoint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic
activity that is subject to joint control.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director
(whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a payment or
series of payments the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time.

The lease term is the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has contracted to lease the
asset together with any further terms for which the lessee has the option to continue to lease the
asset, with or without further payment, when at the inception of the lease it is reasonably certain
that the lessee will exercise the option.

A legal obligation is an obligation that derives from:

(a) A contract (through its explicit or implicit terms);
(b) Legislation; or
(c) Other operation of law.

A liability is a present obligation of an entity arising from past events, the settlement of which is
expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resources embodying economic benefits.

Minimum lease payments are the payments over the lease term that the lessee is or can be
required to make, excluding contingent rent, costs for services and taxes to be paid by and
reimbursed to the lessor, together with, in the case of the lessee, any amounts guaranteed by
the lessee or by a party related to the lessee. However, if the lessee has an option to purchase
the asset at a price that is expected to be sufficiently lower than fair value at the date the option
becomes exercisable, and if, at the inception of the lease, it is reasonably certain that the option
will be exercised, then the minimum lease payments comprise the minimum payments payable
over the lease term and the payment required to exercise this purchase option.
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Monetary items are money held and assets and liabilities to be received or paid in fixed or
determinable amounts of money.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

A non-cancellable lease is a lease that is cancellable only:

(a) Upon the occurrence of some remote contingency;
(b) With the permission of the lessor;

(c) Ifthe lessee enters into a new lease for the same or an equivalent asset with the same
lessor; or

(d) upon payment by the lessee of an additional amount such that, at inception, continuation
of the lease is reasonably certain.

An obligating event is an event that creates a legal or constructive obligation that results in an
entity having no realistic alternative to settling that obligation.

An onerous contract is a contract in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.

Operating activities are the principal revenue-producing activities of the entity and other activities
that are not investing or financing activities.

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease.

Prior period errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, the entity’s financial statements for
one or more prior periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse of, reliable information that:

(a) was available when financial statements for those periods were authorised for issue;
and

(b) Could reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account in the
preparation and presentation of those financial statements.

Such errors include the effects of mathematical mistakes, mistakes in applying accounting
policies, oversights or misinterpretations of facts, and fraud.

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that:

(a) Are held by an entity for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental
to others, for investment potential, or for administrative purposes; and
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(b) Are expected to be used during more than one period.

A provision is a liability of uncertain timing or amount.

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale.

Recoverable amount is the greater of an asset’s net selling price and future net cash flow expected
from the continued use of that asset.

Related party: A party is related to an entity if:
(a) Directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:
(i) Controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity (this includes
parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries);

(i) Has an interest in the entity that gives it significant influence over the entity; or
(iii) Has joint control over the entity;

(b) The party is an associate of the entity;

(c) The party is a joint venture in which the entity is a venturer;

(d) The party is a member of the key management personnel of the entity or its parent;

(e) The party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (d); or

(f) The party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by,
or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related

parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Research is original and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of gaining new
scientific or technical knowledge and understanding.

Residual value is the estimated amount that an entity would currently obtain from disposal of the
asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in
the condition expected at the end of its useful life.

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising in the course of
the ordinary activities of an entity when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than
increases relating to contributions from equity participants.
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Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
an entity, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by another entity.

Tax expense (tax income) is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss
for the period in respect of current tax.

Taxable profit (tax loss) is the profit (loss) for a period, determined in accordance with the rules
established by the taxation authorities, on which income taxes are payable (recoverable).

Useful life is:

(@) The period of time over which an asset is expected to be available for use by an entity;
or

(b) The number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by an
entity.

4.11 CASHFLOW STATEMENTS (IAS 7)

FAST FORWARD: A Cashflow Statement simply records monies passing into and out of the
bank, and is not blurred by estimates of accruals, e.t.c.

A trading and profit account is the usual method of describing what has happened in a business
during the past year, and it incorporates many adjustments in order to show a truer and fair view
of the profit. These adjustments have a number of disadvantages:

. They are often estimates, and the profit is consequently an estimate;

. The underlying cash flow becomes blurred by the adjustments and it becomes difficult
to focus on the liquidity position of the organisation.

It is generally felt in many quarters—especially in USA, that these very adjustments mask other
happenings of the year, notably the changes in the liquidity of the business. Depending on the
circumstances of the business, and the particular needs of various users, it may be that a report
which focuses on liquidity will be of more use - cash flow statement.

The cash flow statements should assist the users to:

. Assess the enterprise's ability to generate positive future cash flows;
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. Assess the enterprise's ability to meet its obligations, pay dividends and meet its needs
for external reporting;

. Assess the reasons for differences between net income and related cash receipts and
payments; and

. Assess the effects on the enterprise's financial position of both cash and non-cash
investing and financing transactions during the period.

This statement is mostly recommended because of its objectivity and verifiable nature.

Note that the cash flow statement is somehow different from the statements of source and
application of funds. The essential difference is the cashflow statements are concentrating
strictly on monies passing into and out of the bank account. In contrast, statements of source
and application of funds conventionally focuses on the movement in working capital; i.e.
they incorporate not only movements in stocks, debtors and creditors, but also accruals and
prepayments which we identified as being a prime cause of the subjective nature of the trading
and profit and loss account. Statements of source and application of funds certainly adjust for
‘items not involving movements of funds” such as depreciation but they do not accrue the full
objective simplicity of cashflow statements.

4.11.1 REASONS WHY PROFITS AND THE FLOW OF FUNDS MIGHT

DIFFER
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*  Acompany might have to buy fixed asserts, and the purchase costs of view fixed assets
will differ from the depreciation charge in the year. (Depreciation, in fact does not
represent a flow of funds at all.)

. Profits are calculated on the accruals concept. This means that a company might:-

o  Spend money on the purchase of stocks which are unsold during the period, and their
not charged against profits;

o  Sell goods on credit, thereby making a profit on sales without receiving the cash from
the debtors before the end of the accounting period;

o Incur development expense which is capitalized and not charged against profits until
later periods;

o  Charge taxation and dividends payable against profits, whereas the cash flows are
affected by taxation and dividends actually paid.

. A company might be able to obtain funds from sources other than “Profits” - eg by
issuing new shares or raising a loan. On the other hand, the company might have to
find the cash to redeem some preference shares or debentures or to repay a loan.
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B Relationship between Balance Sheet changes and Cashflows:

. Increases (decreases) in assets represent net cash outflows (inflows) if an asset
increases, the firm must have paid cash in exchange.
For example, when accounts receivable increase, the period’s sales revenues must
have exceeded cash collections. Thus the increase in receivables must be deducted
from the accrued sales revenues to derive the cash collected from customers during the
period.

. Increases (decreases) in liabilities represent net cash inflows (outflows) when a liability
increases, a firm must have received cash in exchange.

For instance, when interest payable increases, that means the firm did not pay all the interest
expense accrued during the period hence, the increase in interest payable must be deducted
from the interest expense to compute the amount of interest paid during the period.

The cash flow for inputs is not affected by the inventory valuation (FIFO, LIFO) method used by
the firm, facilitating comparison for firms.

Components of financing cash flow include inflows from additional borrowing and equity financing
and outflows for repayment of debt, dividend payments, and equity repurchases.

Debt financing for the period is the sum of the changes in short and long-term debt accounts.

I Differences between Cash-Flow Statement (CFS) and Funds Flow
Statement (FFS)
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e Treatment of changes in operating accounts (working capital). FFS equals net income
adjusted only for the non-cash income statement items. No adjustment is made for the
changes in the current operating accounts.

*  Treatment of short-term debt. FFS retains short term debt as a component of working
capital and is not removed to CFF.

. FFO is not a true measure of cash generated from operating activities.

o FFO does not add information value to net income, but CFO does.

4.4.2 METHODS OF PREPARING CASHFLOW STATEMENTS S

The indirect method:

This method starts with the period’s net income and makes two adjustments to arrive at the Cash
Flow from Operations (CFO):

. All “non-cash” expense (revenue) components of the income statement are added
(subtracted)
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. Changes in operating account are added/subtracted as follows:

o Increases (decreases) in the balances of operating asset accounts are subtracted
(added).

o Increases (decreases) in the balances of operating liability accounts are added
(subtracted).

The discrepancies between the changes in accounts reported on the balance sheet and those
reported in the cash flow statement are due to two factors

® Acquisitions and divestitures.
®  Foreign subsidiaries.

Changes in the level of investments in short-term financing instruments are reported NET one
of the few exceptions to he “gross” reporting requirements of SFAS 95. Under that standard,
changes in b/s assets and liabilities that turn over frequently (another example is credit receivable)
may be reported net.

Investments that are long-term, less liquid and riskier (e.g — stocks or long-term bonds) should
be treated differently.

Drawback of indirect Method:

Because of the indirect format, it is not possible to compare operating cash inflows and outflows
by function with the revenue and expense activities that generated them, as is possible from cash
flow statement prepared using the direct method.

In the absence of acquisitions, divestitures and significant foreign operations, the indirect method
simply recasts the income statement and the balance sheet, providing little new or no insight into
a firm’s cash-generating ability.

STUDY TEXT

Direct Method
This method uses a transactional analysis in preparing Cashflow Statements.

Transactional analysis is a technique that can be used to create a cashflow statement for firms
that do not prepare such statements in accordance with IAS 7, FRS 1(UK) or SFAS 95(USA).

It can also be used to convert the indirect method cashflow to the direct method.

One objective of the transactional analysis is to understand the relationship between the accrual
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and their cashflow consequences. Another goal is
to classify cashflows among operating, investing and financing activities.

4.4.3 ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION I

The CSF is intended to help predict the firm’s ability to sustain (and increase) cash from current
operations. In so doing, the statement provides more objective information about:
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. A firm’s ability to generate cash flows from operations.

. Trends in cash flow components and components and cash consequences of investing
and financing decisions.

. Management decisions regarding such critical areas as financial policy (leverage),
dividend policy, and investment for growth.

[[] Free Cash flows

Is the Cash from operations less the amount of capital expenditures required to maintain the
firm’s present productive capacity?

Discretionary measures include:

J Growth oriented capital expenses and acquisitions.
. Debt reduction
. Stockholder payments (dividends and stock repurchase).

The larger the firm’s FCF, the healthier it is because it has more cash available for growth, debt
payment, and dividends.

Invaluation models, required outflows are defined as operating cash flows less capital expenditures
to replace current operating capacity “as well as capital expenditure necessary to finance the
firm’s growth opportunities.” Growth opportunities are defined as those in which the firm can
make “above normal” returns. FCF is generally measured as CFO |ess capital expenditures.

[ ] Relationship of income and cash flows:

. Accrual accounting can be affected by management’s choice of accounting policies and
estimates. It fails to provide adequate information about the liquidity of the firm and
long-term solvency.

. Cash flow is less likely to be affected by variations in accounting principles and estimates,
making it more useful than reported income in assessing liquidity and solvency.

. FCF patterns have to be monitored carefully for growth coys to ensure that they are not
growing too fast, which can cause liquidity problems. Lack of sales growth, coupled
with increases in working capital growth, reduces CFO, and reflects slow receivable
collections and inventory build-up.

o Cash flow statements should be used together with information from the Profit and Loss,
Balance Sheet and footnotes to assess the cash-generating ability of the firm. This
assessment should consider the firm’s liquidity, the viability of income as a predictor of
future cash flows, and the effect of timing and recognition differences.
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. Accrual a/c is generally presumed to be a good indicator of future cashflow. That
predictive ability is subject to a number of implicit assumptions, one of which is the
going concern.

M >>> Examples

The classification of inventories as assets rather than expenses implicitly assumes that
they will be sold in the normal course of business.

. The accrual of revenue from credit sales and the valuation of receivables assume that
the firm will continue to operate normally; failing firms may find that customers are
unwilling to pay.

. When the going concern assumption is subject to doubt, revenue recognition and asset
valuation can no longer be taken for granted. CFS acts as a “check” on the assumptions
inherent in the Profit & Loss account.

* To find out why income can fail as a predictor of cash-generating ability (uncollected
receivables or unsold inventories) requires a comparison of amounts recorded as sales
and cost of goods sold on the Profit and Loss with the pattern of cash collections from
customers and cash paid for inventories on the CFS.

A direct method CFS is helpful in this regard.

. The periodic net income differs because account methods and assumptions of mangers
differ, not because their economic activities differ.
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. The CFS allows the analyst to distinguish between the actual events that have occurred
and the account assumptions that have been used to report these events.

Nonetheless, assumptions made by management may provide useful information.

Problems affecting Cash Flow Classification Issues

Cash flows involving Property, Plant and Equipment.
. Differences due to some accounting methods.

d Interest and dividends received.

. Interest paid.

o Non cash transactions.
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H Problems

H 1. Classification of Cash Flows for Property, Plant and Equipment

Example
Kshs.
Net income 30,000
Add non cash items: depreciation 5,000
35,000
Add change in operating accounts — decrease in inventory 15,000
= CFO 20,000

. The CFS adds both depreciation expense (a non-cash expense) and the decrease in
inventory (change in operating accounts) to net income to arrive at CFO. Their differing
classifications suggest that the reason for these add backs are not identical. On the
other hand, both adjustments reflect cash outflows that occurred in Prior Periods but
are recognized in income in the current period.

Depreciation allocates the cost of fixed assets to the current period, the period in which
they are used. Similarly, the cost of goods sold allocates the cost of inventory to the
current period, when the inventory is actually sold.

. The difference between the two adjustments is the classification of the initial cash
outlays. In one sense, both initial outlays were for investment. In one case, the firm
invested in fixed assets; in the other, it invested in inventories. The latter, however is
classified as an operating cash outflow, deducted from CFO in the period of the initial
outlay and added back to income when expensed to avoid double counting.
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The original investment in fixed assets was reported as an investment cash outflow and its
allocation (depreciation expense) is added back to income because it is never classified as
an operating flow, but always as an investment flow. For inventory, no adjustment to current
period cash flows is required. But the current period allocation of the investment in plant assets
(depreciation expense) must be added back as the outflow has been recorded as an investing
cash outflow — avoiding double counting.

H Implication of this classification issue

CFO does not include a charge for use of the firm’s operating capacity. Cash required replacing
the productive capacity or physical plant used during operations is not included in CFO. A firm
reporting positive CFO may not thrive unless the CFO (generated and retained) is sufficient to
replace the productive capacity used to generate the operating cash flow.

Identical firms with equal capital intensity will report different CFO’s when one firm leases plant
assets and the other owns its assets. The firm that leases reports lower CFO because lease
rentals are operating expenditures (operating cash flows), whereas the other firm’s expenditure
are reported as investment cash flows.
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Cash payments for inventory may also be excluded from CFO. When an acquired firm has
inventories, the cash paid for those inventories is included in investing cash flow. However, the
proceeds from the subsequent sale of such “purchased” inventory are included in CFO, distorting
reported CFO because its purchase cost is never reported in CFO.

Another problem is that “investment” is not precisely defined e.g:-

Hertz classifies its investment in rental cars as inventory, and purchases are included in CFO.
In this case, CFO is understated relative to a firm that classifies its operating assets as property.
Media companies consider Programming Purchases as long-term fixed assets. Although
amortization impacts reported earnings, purchase costs are never reported in CFO. Yet financial
markets seem to value such firms based on multiples of CFO Per share rather than EPS.

H 2. Effects of Differences in Accounting Methods

CFO is not affected by the timing differences generated by revenue and expense recognition
methods.

CFO is less affected by differing accounting policies. However, CFO is affected by reporting
methods that after the classification of cash flows among operating, investing and financing
categories. If one accounting method results in the classification of a cash flow as investing and
an alternative results in its classification as oper